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I.  Names, titles, telephone numbers, and e-mail addresses of the Company's spokesperson and
deputy-spokesperson
Name of Spokesperson: Shumei Kuo
Title: Manager Tel: (02)2551-1100 ext.568
Email address ksm@tunghosteel.com
Name of Deputy-Spokesperson: Ruyu He
Title: Assistant manager Tel: (02)2551-1100 ext.611
Email address juyu@tunghosteel.com
Name of Deputy-Spokesperson: Chen Junliang
Title: Deputy Manager Tel: (02)2551-1100 ext.588
Email address i00kcc@tunghosteel.com
1. Addresses and telephone numbers of the head office, branch offices, and factories.
Head Office: 6F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road, Taipei City 10441

Tel: (02)2551-1100 Fax: (02)2562-6620
Kaohsiung Plant: No. 8, Jiaxing Street, Siaogang District, Kaohsiung City 81257
Tel: (07)802-3131 Fax: (07)801-0696

Taoyuan Plant: No.116, Caoluo, Neighborhood 8, Baozhang Vil., Guanyin Dist., Taoyuan City
32847

Tel: (03)476-1151 Fax: (03)476-1609
Miaoli Plant: No. 22, Pingding, Erhu Vil., Xihu Township, Miaoli County 36842
Tel: (037)923-333 Fax: (037)923-311

Logistics Center at Taichung Port: No. 455, Sec. 3, Lin-gang Rd., Wugqi Dist., Taichung City
43547
Tel: (04)2656-2000 Fax: (04)2656-5500
I11. Name, address, website, and telephone number of stock registration agent
Name: Stock Agent Department, Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.
Address: B1, No. 210, Sec. 3, Chengde Rd., Datong Dist., Taipei City 10366
Website: www.yuanta.com
Tel: (02)2586-5859 Fax: (02)2586-5977
IV. Names of certified accountants, address, website, and telephone number of the accounting
firm auditing the Company’s latest financial report.
Names of certified accountants in 2020: Accountants Cihui Li and Huizhi Kou
Firm Name: KPMG International Cooperative
Address: 68F, No. 7, Sec. 5, Xinyi Rd., Taipei City 11049
Website: www.kpmg.com.tw
Tel: (02)8101-6666
V. Name of the exchange house where overseas eligible securities are traded and the method of
inquiry on the mentioned securities
Exchange house for trading on Global Depositary Receipts (GDR): Bourse de Luxembourg
2


mailto:juyu@tunghosteel.com

Website for Information Query on Global Depositary Receipts (GDR): mops.twse.com.tw
V1. Company Website: www. tunghosteel.com



Table of Contents

A. Letter to Shareholders ... 7
B. Company Profile.........cccoiiiiiiiiie e s 11
I.  Date of EStabliShment ..o 11
1. Company Profile ..o 11
C. Corporate GOVEIMANCE ......cccieeeeeii ittt e e e e e e e e e e 16
I O 10 - LT 4 £ o] o USSR 16

I1. Information of Directors, President, Vice President, Assistant Manager,
Managers of Departments and Branches ..........ccccccoeeveeiiec v, 18

I11. Remuneration paid last year to directors, the president and vice president ...36

IV. Corporate GOVErnance PraCliCeS.........cceiieiieiieiie et se e 42
V. Information on feeST0 CPA.........o i 117
VI. Exchange accountant information.............cccccevveie s 118

VII.The company's chairman, general manager and vice general manager,

financial responsible person, or accounting affairs manager who has served

in a certified public accountant firm or its affiliates within the last year ..... 118
VIII. Share transfer by directors, managers and shareholders holding more

than 10% equity and changes to share pledging by them in the past year

and up to the date Of rePOrt ........c.cooieiii i 119
IX. Information on the relationship between any of the top ten shareholders

(related party, spouse, or kinship within the second degree) ...........cccceeue.. 121
X. The shareholding of the Company, directors, management and an

enterprise that is directly or indirectly controlled by the Company in the

INVESTEA COMPANY ....viiiieiiieiie ettt be e beenre e 122

D. Fund-raising Conditions...........cccccvviiiieiiieeiiiie e 124
I, Capital and SNArES........ccviiiiiiccecc e e 124

[1. Corporate bond ISSUANCE StALUS ........cevvriieeiieree e e 131

[11. Issuance of preferred StOCKS........cccvvviiiiiiii 132



IV. Issuance of global depositary receipts (GDR) .......cccccveeiieiiciiciie e 133
V. Issuance of employee stock options and restricted stock awards.................. 133

VI. Mergers, acquisitions or issuance of new shares for acquisition of shares of

OtNEI COMPANIES ...veeieeciie ettt e e e aeesreesraeanee s 133
VII.Status of the capital utilization plan implementation...............ccccceeeevieeinnnnn 134
. Business Overview of the Company and Its Subsidiaries............. 135
[, BUSINESS CONENT......eiiiiiiiieiiieee ettt e e es 135
[1. Status of Market and SalesS.........ccccoviiiiiiiiiii e 142
1. Staff Practitioners ........coovi i 159
IV. Environmental protection eXpendituresS ...........ccovvevieeiiee e e 160
V. Employer/employee relations ..........ccccceveiiieiieiie e 161
V1. Significant contracts between parent company and subsidiary ................... 165
Financial Status Overview of the Company and Its
SUDSIAIANIES.....eeiiie et 170
I.  Condensed balance sheet and condensed consolidated income statement for
TNE TAST D YRAIS ....ee et 170
I1. Financial analysis for the last five years..........cccocvveiieiii v 174

I11. Report of the Audit Committee on the Review of Recent Individual and

Consolidated Financial RePOrt..........ccocveiiiiie i 178
IV. Latest financial StatementS...........cocviiiii i 179
V. Latest accountant audited individual financial report............cccoccevvviiiennnne 179

VI. Effects of financial difficulties experienced by the company and its

affiliated companies on the Company's financial status from recent year to

the publication date of the annual report...........cccccvv e 179
Financial position and financial performance review analysis
aNd FiSK aSSESSMENTS .......eeeiiiiiic e 180
I, FINANCIAl SUMMAIY ...c.veiiieiie ettt 180
[1.  Financial performance...........ccoiieiii i 182
L. CaSh TIOWS ... e e e e eaee e 184

IV. The effects that significant capital expenditures have on financial



OPerations iN the FECENT VAN .........ceivvi it 185

V. Investment policy in the past year, profit/loss analysis, improvement plan,

and investment plan for the coming year...........cccccoveveiiiiie i 185

VI. Risk issues and analysis evaluation ............ccccecveieniiiiiesne e 186
VI Other CritiCal MatterS.........oovv i 200

. Special NOtE ITEMS ......oo i 201
I.  Relevant information for the affiliated enterprises..........ccceeevevvivnivsinnenne. 201

Il1. Status of private solicitation for marketable securities handling for the

recent year up to the publication date of this annual report..........c...cc.......... 208
I11. Status of company share holding or handling by a subsidiary company for

the recent year up to the publication date of this annual report.................... 208

IV. Other necessary supplemental information.............ccccoeveiiie i 208

Corporate events with material impact on shareholders'

equity or stock prices set forth in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph

3, Article 36 of Securities Exchange Act in the past year and

Up to the date of rePOrt......cccoviv i 208



A. Letter to Shareholders

In 2020, the novel coronavirus COVID-19 pandemic caused serious damage to people's
lives and property, leading to countries implementing strict quarantines and border closure
measures to combat the spread of the virus, which greatly disrupted economic activities such as
production, consumption, and trade and investment, resulting in a global economic recession.
Governments have launched various emergency fiscal and financial relief measures in order to
boost the economy, mitigate business closures and high unemployment rates. Central banks
have also increased money supply and expanded the super-easy monetary policy and ultra-low
interest rate policy that they have adopted since 2008 to boost the lackluster economy after the
financial tsunami. The excessive supply of money has resulted in an overflow of global capital
and an unprecedented boom in financial asset prices, which runs counter to the lackluster real

economy.

In Taiwan, the epidemic negative effects were mild due to the implementation of proper
prevention measures. Except for the catering and tourism industry, which was more severely hit,
people’s lives as well as production and consumption activities were not greatly affected. In
addition to beneficial spillovers from the US-China trade war brought about by industrial supply
chain shifts and order transfers this year, which provided new impetus for Taiwan's economic
growth, domestic and foreign investment in Taiwan for new factories, as well as new demand
for factory construction and housing construction, have also lifted the export industry in
addition to the construction and related industries In addition, the home office, video
conferencing, distance learning, online games, as well as other home economy and cloud
economy business opportunities that have flourished in response to the isolation and quarantines
imposed are driving the explosive growth of new applications and new demands for 5G mobile
communications, the 10T, artificial intelligence and high-speed computing. Most of the critical
semiconductor chips and electronic components required for the operation of these emerging
industries are supplied by Taiwan's semiconductor electronics industry, which is home to the
most comprehensive and competitive industrial cluster. All the above favorable conditions have
enabled Taiwan's economy to ride out the challenges and maintain strong growth with a growth
rate of 3.11%, the highest amongst developed countries. Taiwan’s economic performance has

attracted attention from the world along with its outstanding pandemic prevention efforts.

The global steel industry has been weak this year due to the epidemic, and both raw
materials and finished products have seen a decline in shipments and prices. Taiwan, however,
due to its strong manufacturing performance, has seen a rebound in the overall steel industry.
The construction steel industry has benefited from strong demand due to domestic and foreign
investment in factories, the huge demand from semiconductor and electronics manufacturers in
factory expansion, as well as the booming construction industry, which has led to a strong
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demand in the market, a rise in prices and quantity, and overall profitability.

The Company has also benefited from the booming steel bar industry, with a significant
increase in production capacity and volume, and a significant decrease in production costs. In
addition, we have been able to maintain stable profitability in a highly volatile price
environment due to effectively managing the balance of volume and price between sales,
procurement and production. In addition, the Company's profit has grown significantly as a
result of the excellent operation performance of its reinvestment company, Tung Ho Steel; the
Company's operations in Vietnam have progressed well, with a significant reduction in losses

and even a turnaround in profits contributing towards the Company’s profitability this year.

A consolidated overview of the 2020 business performance of the Company and its primary
reinvestment businesses is outlined below.

I.  Results of Production and Sales:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Production value Sales value
Growth Growth
2020 2019 rate 2020 2019 rate
(%) (%)

Billet 28,068,661| 31,870,845 (11.93) 408,201 1,522,153 (73.18)

Re-bar 17,873,188| 18,954,052|  (5.70)[21,033,467| 21,568,314 (2.48)

H-beam 9,211,570| 9,080,525  1.44/11,491,399| 10,933,327]  5.10

Steel plate 1,757,755/ 1813511 (3.07)| 1,144,587| 912354 2545
(self-made)

Steel plate 0 0 000 123919 32,327 283.32
(transaction)

Channel 648,342 708,728/ (8.52)] 679,283] 778,305 (12.72)

I-Beam 32,318 54,759 (40.98)] 50,975 46,980|  8.48

Steel structure|  6,250,131] 8,157,790| (23.38)| 6,720,585 8,360,839| (19.62)
Environmental

protection 208,521  128,983| 61.67| 208521  128,914|  61.75
processing

Steg:lzzeet 49,573 12,059 311.09 61951 13949 344.11

Wind power 53,248  55146| (3.44)| 53248 55146 (3.44)
generation

Construction 438778  77.552| 465.78| 429.004| 77,682 453.41
revenues

Others 464,773] 519,008 (10.60) 460,250 433,301  6.22

Total 65,056,858| 71,433,858  (8.93)[42,866,290| 44,863,600  (4.45)

I. Profitability Analysis:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars




2020 2019 Growth rate (%)
Operating revenue 42,866,290 44,863,600 (4.45)
Operating costs 36,245,586 40,731,834 (11.01)
Gross profit 6,620,704 4,131,766 60.24
Operating expenses 2,199,217 2,025,168 8.59
Net operating profit 4,421,487 2,106,598 109.89
Net profit before tax 4,489,570 2,122,132 111.56
Net income after tax 3,556,583 1,557,798 128.31
[11. Financial structure and profitability analysis:
Year
Analysis Item 2020 2019
Financial |Debt-to-assets ratio 37.62 49.04
structure (%)|Long-term fund to fixed assets ratio 166.42 162.97
Return on assets (%) 8.05 3.73
Return on shareholder's equity (%) 13.68 6.45
T income. 41.76 20.98
Profitability |Paid-in capital ratio (%) Income
before tax 4240 21.14
Net profit margin (%) 8.3 3.47
Earnings per share (NT$) 3.52 1.56

IV. Overview of Technology and R&D

The Company's research and development expenses for 2020 was NT$38,966,428,
equivalent to 0.11% of the revenue. The research and development achievements of
steelmaking include: Development of high-definition, high-strength steel blanks and flat
steel billets for SM570 steel plates with thickness of 50 mm and continuous development of
ultra-high strength steel. The research and development achievements of steel rolling
include: Developing the technology of continuous uninterrupted rolling of re-bars with
billets, the direct rolling process to increase the strength of ultra-high strength earthquake
resistant re-bars by more than 1.6 times, the universal rolling technology UE (Universal
Edging) to roll H-beam with B-value=300mm, and the automatic in-line dimensional
measurement and surface defect detection system for H-beams/plates. The major R&D
projects in 2021 include: 1. Continuous H-beams UE new rolling technology development
project 2. Angle steel and flat steel H/\V (horizontal/vertical rolling) co-rolling development
project 3. Application of artificial intelligence to smart chemical plant technology
development 4. Carbon steel oxidation ballast asphalt concrete paving and testing research 5.
Electric furnace waste steel preheating and low carbon green process technology
development.



The Company's operational development strategy: Continue to actively refine our
technological capabilities, improve management efficiency, reduce production costs, closely
coordinate production, sales, and procurement to enhance our competitive edge in the
domestic market, actively venture into new markets and customers abroad, research and
develop new steel products and applications, and promote environmental protection and
greenhouse gas emission reduction in order to build a solid foundation for sustainable

operation.

Looking ahead to 2021, the novel coronavirus epidemic is expected to gradually subside
with mass vaccination. The global economy should return to normal and recover rapidly after
border restrictions are lifted. The steel industry in Taiwan is in a favorable environment and
already performing well due to a mild epidemic situation with no disruptions to industrial
production this year. The outlook is further boosted with economic recoveries in other
countries which will create impetus for growth. However, the biggest risk and worry is the
fluctuation and big jump in cost of raw materials and steel prices are. The slightest improper
response could easily lead to losses. Therefore, while we remain optimistic, we should
always be cautious and prevent negligence in business management. With the concerted
efforts of all our employees, the Company has performed well with strong revenue and
impressive profitability, which is truly remarkable. Going forward, all our employees will
continue to uphold the Tungho spirit of self-discipline, wisdom and optimism. We will aim to
strengthen competitiveness, reduce costs, improve management, develop new markets and

new products, improve performance and create maximum value for our shareholders.

We wish you all good health and best of luck

Chairman  Henry C. T. Ho
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B. Company Profile
I. Date of Establishment
May 30, 1962

Il. Company Profile
(1) Mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of re-invested companies for the most recent
year and up to the date of publication of the annual report

May 1962 The Company was founded in Chiayi County, Taiwan Province. The
funding capital was NTD 4.5 million. The Company's business at that
time was disassembling steamships and trading old vessels, metal and
iron materials, and mechanical and electrical materials. The Board
elected Mr. Jindui Hou as the Chairman and Mr. Zhengting Hou as the
General Manager.

May 1965 The Company acquired 44,525 square meters of reclaimed land at Port
of Kaohsiung to build Cian-jhen rolling factory.

December 1965 The Company moved offices from Chiayi County to No.3, Kuojian Rd.,
Cianjhen Dist., Kaohsiung City.

September 1974 The Company acquired industrial land of 91,375 square meters in Linhai
Industrial Park in the Siaogang District of Kaohsiung to build office
buildings and steel plants.

January 1975 The Chairman, Mr. Jindui Hou, passed away from illness due to
overwork. The Board then elected Mr. Zhengting Hou as the succeeding
chairman and Mr. Zhenxiong Hou as the General Manager.

April 1977 The Kaohsiung Plant installed 20 ton electric arc furnace.

September 1977 The Kaohsiung Plant installed the first continuous casting machine in
Taiwan.

March 1978 The Company moved to No.8, Jiaxing Street, Siaogang District,
Kaohsiung City.

July 1981 The Kaohsiung Plant completed trial run tests on its automatic tandem
rolling machines and started to produce steel and steel rods, making the
company a one-stop-shop steel manufacturer that can handle both steel
refining and rolling.

June 1986 The Company purchased and installed two 50 ton electric arc furnaces at
the Bade Plant in Taoyuan. The Company halted its ship-disassembling
business in the same year.

April 1987 The head office was moved to 6F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road,
Taipei City.
July 1988 The Taoyuan Bade Plant's electric furnaces started production. The

Company became listed on the Taiwan stock market.
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April 1990

July 1992
August 1993
October 1993
November 1993
July 1994
January 1996

May 1996
October 1996
November 1996

April 1997

December 1997

March 1998

November 1998

July 2002

October 2005

June 2006

April 2007

November 2007

November 2008

October 2009
May 2010

The Chairman, Mr. Zhengting Hou, resigned. The Board elected Mr.
Zhenxiong Hou as the succeeding chairman and the General Manager,
and appointed Mr. Zhengting Hou as the honorary chairman.

The Taichung Office and Delivery Center was established.

The Miaoli Plant completed trial tests on steel refining.

The Miaoli Plant completed trial tests on steel rolling.

The H-beam steel product was launched.

The Miaoli Plant started mass production and operations.

The Company received the Special Award for ROC 3rd Nuclear Energy
Safety Group from the Atomic Energy Council of the Executive Yuan of
the Republic of China.

The Kaohsiung Plant officially initiated operation expansion.

The Miaoli Plant completed trial tests on refining furnaces.

The Company was granted the Highest Honor of Academic Award by
the Chinese Institute of Mining and Metallurgical Engineering.

The Company's publication, "The Ordinary”, won the Taipei City
Labor
publication, "CI", was granted Taipei City Mayor Award by the Taipei

Government Bureau Secretary Award. The Company's
City Government and Excellence Award by the Council of Labor
Affairs, Executive Yuan.

The Kaohsiung Plant completed trial tests on rolling H-beam steel and
officially discharged its steel-refining furnaces from production.

The section steel mill at the Kaohsiung Plant was built and started mass
production.

The Miaoli plant launched the opening of its newly constructed Oxygen
Factory.

The Miaoli Plant started the production of narrow steel plates.

The No. 2 caster in the Miaoli Plant started mass production.

The Taoyuan Bade Plant successfully developed and started producing
D43 steel bars.

The committee on Taoyuan Plant expansion was formed to take charge
of the preparation for the expansion of the plant.

The Miaoli plant officially launched the opening of its crushed iron
plant.

The Taichung Office and Delivery Center was moved to Taichung Port,
forming the Logistics Center at Taichung Port.

The construction of the Taoyuan Plant officially commenced.

The Board appointed Mr. Jieteng Hou as General Manager.

The Taoyuan Plant completed trial run tests on furnaces and continuous
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June 2010

July 2010

June 2011

November 2011

May 2012

June 2013

September 2013

December 2013

June 2014

July 2014

November 2014

June 2015

July 2015

September 2015

January 2016

casting equipments of the steel-refining mill.
Plant

Construction of the new Taoyuan plant was completed.

The committee on Taoyuan expansion was dismissed.
The Taoyuan Plant completed trial run tests on hot rolling system of the
steel-rolling mill, making the plant the first in Taiwan that adopted a
procedure in hot rolling steel billets directly, without using an additional
heating furnace.

The Taoyuan Plant officially started production of steel wire rods and
bars.

The Miaoli Plant obtained the BV Verification Declaration for the
carbon footprint of beam and steel plate products.

The Company hosted a press conference on the launch of steel rebar and
coupler products.

The Tung Ho Steel Cultural Foundation was established.

The beam products of Kaohsiung and Miaoli Plants passed the ACRS SO
certification, becoming the first steel plant worldwide that manufactures
the ACRS SO-certified beam products.

The Taoyuan and Miaoli Plants were authorized by the Ministry of
Economic Affairs to use the MIT Smile Label.

The Kaohsiung Plant purchased the rebar mesh welding machine,
completed trial tests on the machine, and officially started production
using the machine.

The Board elected Mr. Jieteng Hou as the succeeding chairman and
general manager and Mr. Zhenxiong Hou as the honorary chairman.
Construction for the expansion of the Taoyuan Plant Steel Rolling Line
2 officially began.

The Kaohsiung Plant obtained the BV Verification Declaration for the
carbon footprint of five beam and steel plate products, and was awarded
the Glass Trophy from the Industrial Technology Research Institute,
becoming the first steel plant in Taiwan to have acquired the Carbon
Footprint Certificate.

The Company hosted a press conference on the launcg of steel plate pile
products.

The Company was invited to participate in the 2015 Flag Presentation
Ceremony for Energy-Saving Service Groups hosted by the Ministry of
Economic Affairs Bureau of Energy.

The Miaoli Plant obtained the BV Verification Declaration for the
carbon footprint of 5 types of products.

The Company invested in the acquisition of Fuco International Ltd. and
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August 2016

September 2016

October 2016

November 2016

July 2017

September 2017

November 2017

January 2018

July 2018

September 2018

November 2018

March 2019

assembled the Steel Rolling Expansion Committee.

Tung Kang Wind Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, obtained a license to
operate for 25 years from the Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic
Affairs, and began selling electricity.

The H-beam and steel plate products of the Miaoli and Kaohsiung plants
have passed the Korean Industrial Standards (KS) certification.

Phu Quoc Steel Vietnam changed its name to Tung Ho Steel Vietnam
Ltd, or THSVC in English.

Awarded the 17th National Standardization Awardbyf the Bureau of
Standards, Metrology and Inspection, Ministry of Economic Affairs, for
"Promotion of Orthographic Marking".

Awarded "2016 TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Award", Silver
Award of Corporate Sustainability Report Award [Traditional
Manufacturing Industry].

The Miaoli Plant obtained the BV Verification Declaration for the
carbon footprint of re-bar and steel plate products.

The Taoyuan plant rolling line expansion project was completed and
begun production.

The Taoyuan plant has obtained the 1SO 50001 quality management
system certification.

Awarded "2017 TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Award", Silver
Award of Corporate Sustainability Report Award [Traditional
Manufacturing Industry].

Miaoli Plant has obtained the "Green Product Certification for Resource
Recycling" for carbon steel billets for electric furnaces.

The company became an official member of WSA (World Steel
Association).

Taoyuan plant steel products have obtained the Korean National
Standard (KS) certification.

Participated in the Corporate Energy Conservation Service Group
organized by the Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs, to
promote conservation efforts, and was awarded the "Outstanding
Performance™ award for energy conservation implementation results
from 2015 to 2017.

Awarded 2018 TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Award", Gold
Award of Corporate Sustainability Report Award [Traditional
Manufacturing Industry].

The THSVC steel rolling production line was completed and put into
operation, and a new product launch event was held on March 19.
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October 2019 The Taoyuan Plant co-hosted the “Project of Consulting on Water
Saving for Major Water Users in Central Taiwan 2019” with the Water
Resources Agency and was awarded the certificate of appreciation for
the [On-site Observation Activity for Units with Excellent Water
Conservation Results].
The Taoyuan plant obtained the Material Flow Cost Accounting
(MFCA) verification statement and was awarded the "Material Flow
Cost Analysis Demonstration Plant" award by the Industrial
Development Bureau, MOEA.

November 2019 The Taoyuan plant obtained the "Carbon Footprint Verification
Declaration™ for the product.
Awarded "2019 TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Award", Gold
Award of Corporate Sustainability Report Award [Traditional
Manufacturing Industry].

November 2020 Awarded 2020 TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Award"”, Gold
Award of Corporate Sustainability Report Award [Traditional
Manufacturing Industry].

January 2021 The Miaoli Plant passed the UL certification in the United States and
obtained Environmental Product Declarations (EPD) for steel sections
and steel plates, the first steel company in Taiwan to obtain EPD for

steel sections and steel plates.

(I1)  Mergers, acquisitions, re-investment companies for the most recent year and up
to the date of publication of the annual report: None.

(I11) Substantial transfer or replacement of shareholdings of directors or substantial
shareholders holding more than 10% of the company’s shares during the latest
year and up to the date of printing of the annual report: None.

(IV) Changes in management rights from the most recent fiscal year to the
publication date of this annual report: None.

(V) Significant changes in management methods or business content for the most
recent year and up to the date of printing of the annual report: None.

(V1) Other significant events affecting shareholders’ equity in the most recent year
and up to the date of printing of the annual report and their impact on the
Company: None.
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C. Corporate Governance

I. Organization

(1) Organizational Structure
Organizational Chart of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation
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(11) Business and functions of main departments:
General Manager Office: Responsible for budget control, business analysis, bonus system, project planning, credit management, and customer service.

1.
2.
3.

10.
11.
12.
13.

Legal Affairs Office: Responsible for research and handling of legal affairs, and providing legal advice.

Auditing Office: Responsible for establishing, promoting, and execution of the internal auditing system.

Management Department: Responsible for establishing the company's organizational and management system related to the personnel,
education and training, logistics, and asset management.

Accounting Department: Responsible for establishing the Company's accounting system and managing accounting, costs, finances, foreign
exchange, securities investment, and shareholder services.

Investment Division: Responsible for short, medium and long-term strategic investment planning and managing investee companies.
Information Technology Division: Responsible for the management of information and planning, development, maintenance and performance
enhancement of the computing environment.

Operations Department: Responsible for domestic and foreign client quotations, bidding, and sales.

Assets and Trade Department: Responsible for bulk purchases of raw materials, machinery, and equipment.

Miaoli Plant: Responsible for the production of H-beam and steel plates, as well as other plant management affairs.

Taoyuan Plant: Responsible for the production of steel bars, as well as other plant management affairs.

Kaohsiung Plant: Responsible for the production of steel bars and H-beam, as well as other plant management affairs.

R&D Division: Responsible for research and development of metallurgical technology, product development, and projects-related technologies.

Work safety center: Responsible for managing and supervising safety/health affairs at departments and plants.
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Il. Information of Directors, President, Vice President, Assistant Manager, Managers of Departments and Branches
(1) Director information - 1

April 26, 2021
Shares held by Shareholdin Spouse or relatives of
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Title ] Name Gender| taking z = z = z = z S (educational . pany Note
registered term | elected £ s £ s = g | § S and in other
9 office 3 = 3 = 3 S |32 | & background) _ &
place g8 3 g8 3 g8 |8 |8 |a& companies 4 pd g
= 3 S, T |o | & | |@ = S |5
& & 8 & g | & |8 | &
[°] @D [$°) @D
Corporate . Mao Sheng 3
i Taiwan N/A |2020.05.19 2017.06.16 | 60,407,877 | 6.02 | 66173877 | 6.07 NA | NA| 0 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A | N/A None
director Investment Inc. years
General manager The Chairman of the
of Tung Ho Steel Board of Directors
Enterprise also serves as the
Corporation President of the
Chairman of Tung Company, and the
Kang Steel streamlining of
Structure Co., Ltd. management
Chairman of Tung powers leads to
Kang Wind smooth operations.
Mao Sheng Department of POV\{er Co., Ltd. In order tg maintain
Investment Inc. 3 113,00 Economics Chairman, Far Vice George the effectiveness and
Chairman | R.O.C. _ | Male |2020.05.19 2002.06.27| 142426 | 001 | 142426 0.01 ' 001 | O 0 ' East Steel Inc. . Y.S. |Brother [efficiency of
Representative: years 0 Harvard . Chairman S
Henrv C.T. Ho Universi Chairman, Earle Ho operations, it is
ye. 1 ty Ho and Sons, Ltd. necessary to
Chairman of Wan maintain this model
Nian Department for the time being,
Stores Co., Ltd. where more than
Chairman, He half of the board of
Zhao Investment directors do not
Co,, Ltd. serve as employees
Chairman, Mao or managers for
Sheng Investment supervision
Inc. purposes; however,
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Title

Nationality
or
registered
place

Name

Gender

Date of
taking
office

Office
term

Date first
elected

Shares held upon
appointment

Number of shares held
currently

Shares held by
spouse and
underage
children

Shareholding
by nominee
arrangement

Ssafeys JO JaquunN
(o) abeyuaalad Buipjoyareys

Ssafeys JO JaquunN
(o) abeuBaIad Buipjoyareys

Sareys JO JaquUnN
(9) abeusalad Buipjoyareys

Sareys JO JaquuinN
(9%) aBeyus0iad Buipjoyareys

Main experiences
(educational
background)

Concurrent duties
in the company
and in other
companies

Spouse or relatives of
second degree or closer
acting as Supervisors or
other department heads

oML
alWeN
diysuonefey

Note

Director of Shang
Fu Industrial Inc.
Director of Katec
Creative
Resources Corp.
Director of Katec
R&D Corporation
Director of Tung
Kang Engineering
& Construction
Co., Ltd.

Director of Fata
Xingye Co. Ltd.
Director of Tung
Ho Steel Vietnam
Corp.,Ltd.
Director of
Goldham
Development Ltd.
Director of 3
Oceans
International Inc.
Director of Tung
Yuan
International
Corp.

Director of Fujian
Sino-Japan Metal
Corp.

Dung Tang
Energy Service

considering the need
for long-term and
sound corporate
governance, we are
actively nurturing a
successor to the
President and will
appoint one at an
appropriate time
depending on actual
requirements.
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Shares held by i Spouse or relatives of
Shareholding
Shares held upon | Number of sharesheld | spouse and by nomines second degree or closer
appointment currently underage y acting as Supervisors or
- arrangement
children other department heads
i i w w w w i
Nationality Date of . 2 2 2 2| Main experiences Ctoncurrentdu‘ues
. or . Office| Date first @ 3 3 3 . in the company
Title . Name Gender| taking pd 3 pd 3 pd 3 z =5 (educational . Note
registered office term | elected s = s = 5 s 5 = background) and in other Py
place g 3 g 3 g |a |8 |3 g companies - z =)
s | & | = g | o |8 |a| & g |3 |3
7 3 7 3 g | & |8 | &
Co,, Ltd.
Director of
Mingtai Yule Co.
Ltd.
Director of
Eturnity Corp.
Director of Tung
Ho Steel Cultural
Foundation was
established
Chairman of THS
Foundation
Supervisor of
Earle Hoand
Sons, Ltd.
Director of He
Department of Zhao Investment
Mao Sheng . Co,, Ltd.
Vice Investment Inc 3 Environmentand Director of He Henry
. R.O.C. . | Male |2020.05.19 1996.05.23|10,000 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 |Visual Arts, . Chairman [C.T. |Brother None
Chairman Representative: years Xing Investment
Harvard Ho
George Y. S. Ho University, USA Co.,, Ltd.
' Director of Far
East Steel Inc.
Director of Spring
Foundation was
established
Corporate ) Earle Hoand 3
i Taiwan N/A | 2020.05.19 1988.08.18| 139,505,779 | 13.89 |146,136,779| 1341 | N/A | NA | 0 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A | N/A None
director Sons, Ltd. years
) Earle Hoand 3 Taipei
Directors R.O.C. Male |2020.05.19 2014.06.18| 128,432 0.01 128,432 0.01 0 0 0 0 . None None None | None None
Sons, Ltd. years Engineering
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Shares held by

Spouse or relatives of

Shares held upon | Number of sharesheld | spouse and St)ha:]e(:];:(rj]?eg second degree or closer
appointment currently underage y acting as Supervisors or
- arrangement
children other department heads
i i w w w w i
Nationality Date of . 2 2 2 2| Main experiences Ctoncurrentdu‘ues
. or . Office| Date first @ 3 3 3 . in the company
Title . Name Gender| taking pd 3 pd 3 pd 3 z =5 (educational . Note
registered office term | elected s = s = 5 s 5 = background) and in other Py
place g 3 g 3 g |a |8 |3 g companies - z =)
s | & | = g | o |8 |a| & g |3 |3
8 3 8 3 g | & |8 | &
Representative: Professional
Hui-Ming Wu School, Mining
and Metallurgical
Engineering
Senior vice
general manager
of Tung Ho Steel
Enterprise
Corporation
. |Di f T
Master's degree in |rector_o ung
. Kang Wind
Earle Hoand Business
Power Co., Ltd.
Sons, Lt 3 160,0 Management Director of Tun:
Directors R.O.C. | Representative: | Male |2020.05.19 cars 202005.19| 23381 0 23,381 0 0 0 OO’ 0.01 |from the Business Kana Steel g None | None | None None
Joshua P.H. 4 Institute, National 9
. Structure Co., Ltd.
Tung Chengchi .
Uriversity Director of Tung
Yuan
International
Corp.
Director of
Goldham
Development Ltd.
Corporate ) Episil Holdin 3
_rpo Taiwan P . 9 N/A | 2020.05.19 2014.06.18| 5055649 | 050 | 5055649 | 0.46 NA | NA| O 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A | N/A None
director Incorporation years
Episil Holding Eg?é::‘a” Episil
Incorporation 3 MBA, Califoria Inco gration
Directors R.O.C. | Representative: | Male |2020.05.19 1988.08.18| 484,337 005 | 484,337 0.04 0 0 0 0 |[State University, | _. o None | None | None None
N years Director of Far
Chih-Ming USA
Huan East Steel Inc.
9 Director of Yu Tai
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Shares held by i Spouse or relatives of
Shareholding
Shares held upon | Number of sharesheld | spouse and by nomines second degree or closer
appointment currently underage y acting as Supervisors or
- arrangement
children other department heads
i i w w w w i
Nationality Date of . 2 2 2 2| Main experiences Ctoncurrentdu‘ues
. or . Office| Date first @ 3 3 3 . in the company
Title . Name Gender| taking pd 3 pd 3 pd 3 z =5 (educational . Note
registered office term | elected s = s = 5 s 5 = background) and in other Py
place g 3 g 3 g |a |8 |3 g companies - z =)
s | & | = g | o |8 |a| & g |3 |3
8 3 8 3 g | & |8 | &
Investment Co.,
Ltd.
Supervisor of
Eturmnity Corp.
Supervisor of Hsie
Ho Refractory
Industrial Co. Ltd.
Comorate Liang Cheng 3
di:zgtor Taiwan | InvestmentCo., | N/A |2020.05.19 cars 2014.06.18| 11,185,973 | 1.11 |11,185973| 103 N/A | N/A 0 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A | NA None
Ltd. 4
Chairman,
He-cheng
Investment Inc.
Chairman,
Chi-cheng
Investment Inc.
Chairman,
. Jian-ging
Representatlve of Investment Inc.
Liang Cheng 3 RoyalRoads  |Chairman, Lian
Directors R.O.C. | InvestmentCo., | Male |2020.05.19 1988.08.18| 1,073,205 | 0.11 | 1,073,205 010 | 5106 0 0 0 y . ' ; None | None | None None
years University MBA  |Cheng Investment
Ltd.: Pao-He
Chen Co.,, Ltd.
Chairman,
Jingmei
Xuesheng
Technology Co.,
Ltd.
Chairman,
Mengcheng
Technology Co.,
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Shares held by i Spouse or relatives of
Shareholding
Shares held upon | Number of sharesheld | spouse and by nomiinee second degree or closer
appointment currently underage acting as Supervisors or
. arrangement
children other department heads
Nationality Date of . % % ;g % Main experiences Ctoncurrentdu‘ues
Title .or Name Gender| taking Office| Date first z % z % z % zZ =5 (educational inthe .company Note
registered office term | elected s = s = 5 s 5 = background) and in other Py
place g a g a g a g | 3 companies = z oy
s | & | s g | | &[] g |3 |8
w «Q w «Q %] «Q (%] «Q
[°) [°) [$°) [’]
Ltd.
Chairman,
Shuizhiyuan
Bio-Technology
Co.,, Ltd.
Director,
Jinqunbao
Industrial Inc.
(Professional)
Manager,
Zhucheng
Construction Co.,
Ltd.
Chairman, Enzen
GS Chemical Co.,
LTD.
Chairman,
Hao-Han
3 EMBA at Aalto  |Investment Co.,
Directors R.O.C. | Yen-LiangHo | Male |2020.05.19 years 1999.0523| 361,670 | 004 | 361,670 0.03 0 0 0 0 [University, Ltd. None | None | None None
Finland Chairman,
Sensuous Biotech
Co. Lt
Director, Apply
Information
Service Corp.,Ltd
COMpOrate. | e | TAMBNZNIDE T\ on0osa0| 3 |20140618| 65000 | 001 | 65000 | 001 | NA [ NA| 0 | 0 NIA N/A NA | NA | NA None
director Co. Ltd. years
Directors | ROC. | erreseniaiveot) o oo00s.10| 3 |2011.0624| 318887 | 003 | 318887 | 003 | o | o | o | o [|Pepatmentol ChaimanofRui [\ | None | None None
Taiwan Zhi Di years Economics, Nian
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Shares held by

Spouse or relatives of

Shares held upon | Number of sharesheld | spouse and St)ha:]e(:];:(rj]?eg second degree or closer
appointment currently underage y acting as Supervisors or
. arrangement
children other department heads
i i w w w w i
Nationality Date of . 2 2 2 2| Main experiences C.oncurrentdutles
. or . Office| Date first @ 3 3 3 . in the company
Title . Name Gender| taking pd 3 pd 3 pd 3 z =5 (educational . Note
registered office term | elected s = s = 5 s 5 = background) and in other Py
place g 3 g 3 g |a |8 |3 g companies - z =)
s | & | = g | o |8 |a| & g |3 |3
8 3 8 3 g | & |8 | &
Co. L. Soochow Management &
Chao-He Lin University Consulting Co.,
Ltd.
Supervisor, Tah
M.S., Di .
S epa_rtment Tong Textile Co.,
Independent 3 of Accounting, Ltd
_pe R.O.C. I-Chi Liu Male |2020.05.19 2014.06.18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [National ) None | None | None None
Directors years Chenachi Independent
ngct Director, Mitwell
University
Inc.
PhD in Law,
Political Science
Independen huang-Hsi iol t
dependent| o o, | CMBNGHST e | 20200510 3 |20140618| 6685 | o | 6685 0 |egss| o | o | o |ndSociologyat |\ None | None | None None
Directors Chang years the
Pantheon-Assas
University
Independent
Ph.D.in Director, Lasertek
Independent| o ¢ | Der-Ming Lieu | Male [20200519| ° |20170616] 0 0 0 0 0o | o | o o [FeonomicsThe jTawanCo,ltd |\ 0| None | None None
Directors years Ohio State Independent
University, USA | Director, CSBC
Corporation
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Table 1: Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholder

April 26, 2021
Name of institutional shareholder (Note 1) Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholder (Note 2)
Mao Sheng Investment Inc. Shu-Chau Wang Ho 41.78%, Henry C. T. Ho 11.73%

Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd. Shu-Chau Wang Ho 78.92%

Zheng Mei Chu 47.10%, Huang Yun Xuan 24%, Huang Yu

Episil Holding Incorporation Xuan 24%, Chih-Ming Huang 4.80%

Liang Cheng Investment Co., Ltd. British Virgin Island JUSTIN investment management100%

Taiwan Zhi Di Co. Ltd. Shengyu Chen 52%, Shuzhen Hou 46%

Note 1: Directors who represent institutional shareholders should indicate the institution names they represent.
Note 2: Enter the names of the major shareholders of the corporate shareholders (the top ten in terms of shareholding) and their respective shareholding ratios. If the major
shareholders are corporate shareholders, the following table 2 should be completed.

Table 2: Table 1 Major shareholders who are corporate shareholders and their major shareholders

April 26, 2021
Institution Name Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholder

N/A None
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Director information - 2

December 31, 2020

Has at least 5 years of work experience
and meet one of the following professional

qualifications

Meet the independence requirement (Note)

An Instructor

or higher
Condition|position i
position in a Certified Commercial,
department |
f commerce Judge, legal, i
? i |prosecutor,  [financial, Number of companies
aw, mtzjlnce, lawyer, accounting the person serves as
g?cociﬁzrmg’ accountant, or |or other an independent
I holder of work 1011|12 director
discipline : .
professional  |experiences
related to the o .
.. |qualification |required to
Name Company's
. . relevant to the [perform the
business in a : .
: Company's  |assigned
public or - .
- operations duties
private
College or
University.
Mao Sheng
Investment !nc. v v 0
Representative:
Henry C. T. Ho
Mao Sheng
Investment !nc. v v v 0
Representative:
George Y. S. Ho
Earle Ho and Sons,
Lud. _ v Vv v v 0
Representative:
Hui-Ming Wu
Earle Ho and Sons,
Led. _ v Vv 0
Representative:
Joshua P.H. Tung
Episil Holding
Incorporathn v v vy 0
Representative:
Chih-Ming Huang
Liang Cheng 4 V|V vV 0




Has at least 5 years of work experience
and meet one of the following professional

qualifications

Meet the independence requirement (Note)

An Instructor
or higher
Condition gg;::gg;gta _Certified Commercial,
of commerce Judge, I(_egal, . .
law. finance '|prosecutor, fmanua_l, Number of companies
accéunting " [lawyer, accounting the person serves as
or other ' |accountant, or |or other an |nerendent
discipline holderc_>f work_ 1(2|3|4|5|6|7|8]|9]|10|11|12 director
related to the profgs,_smr_\al experiences
Name Company's qualification |required to
business in a relevant to the perform the
public or Compgny‘s ass[gned
private operations duties
College or
University.
Investment Co.,
Ltd.
Representative:
Pao-He Chen
Yen-Liang Ho v VIiVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVIVI|V 0
Taiwan Zhi Di Co.
Ltd. v VIiVvIVIVIVIVI|IVI|IV|IVI|IVI|YV 0
Representative:
Chao-He Lin
Independent v v viviviviviviviviviv|v]v 1
Directors: I-Chi Liu
Independent
Directors: v v VIivIvIivIiVvIVIVIVIVIV|IVI|V 0
Chuang-Hsi Chang
Independent
Directors: v v VI ivI ivIivIivVvIvVvIvIivVvIVI|IVIvVvIVv 2
Der-Ming Lieu

Note: If any of the following conditions listed below apply to a director within 2 years before being elected or during the

director's tenure, please write a "v™*" in the open space under each condition code.
1.Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

2.Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates (This does not apply to those who are independent

directors of the Company or its parent company, or of a subsidiary with the same parent company in accordance with

the laws of the country it is based in).
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3.Shareholders holding more than 1% of the total issued shares of the company under another name except him/herself,
his/her spouse or children (minor). Those holding such amount of shares on behalf of others; or the top 10 natural person
shareholders.

4.Not (1) a professional manager listed, a spouse, relative of second degree or closer, or direct blood relative of third degree
or closer to any person listed in (2), (3).

5.A director, supervisor or employee of a corporate shareholder who indirectly holds more than 5% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company, is listed as one of the top five shareholders, or who designates a representative as a
director or supervisor of the Company in accordance with Article 27(1) or (2) of the Company Act (except in cases where
the independent directors of the Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiary of the same parent company
established in accordance with this Act or the laws of the local country are concurrently appointed)

6.A director, supervisor or employee of another company that is not controlled by the same person as the company's
directors or more than half of the voting shares (except in the case for independent directors of the company or its parent
company, subsidiaries or subsidiaries of the same parent company established under this Act or the laws of the local
country who serve concurrently with each other).

7.A director (director), supervisor (supervisor), or employee of another company or organization who is not the same
person or spouse of the chairman, president, or equivalent of the company (except in the case for independent directors of
the company or its parent company, subsidiaries or subsidiaries of the same parent company established under this Act or
the laws of the local country who serve concurrently with each other).

8.A director (director), supervisor (supervisor), manager or shareholder holding more than 5% of the shares of a specific
company or organization that does not have financial or business dealings with the Company (Except for cases where the
specific company or organization holds more than 20% but not more than 50% of the total issued shares of the Company
and is an independent director of the Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiary of the same parent
company established in accordance with this Act or the laws of the local country that is concurrently appointed).

9.Professionals, sole proprietors, partners, directors (directors), supervisors (supervisors), managers, and their spouses who
do not provide audit or remuneration for the Company or its affiliates for business, legal, financial, accounting, or other
related services for less than NT$500,000 in the last two years. However, members of the Remuneration Committee, the
Public Tender Offer Review Committee or the Special Committee on Mergers and Acquisitions who perform their duties
and responsibilities in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act or the relevant laws and regulations of the
Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act are not subject to this limitation.

10.Not a spouse or relative of second degree or closer to any other directors.

11.Does not meet the criteria listed in any Sections of Article 30 of the Company Act.

12.Not a representative in the name of a government, institution, or its representative as defined in Article 27 of the
Company Law.
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(INInformation of President, Vice President, Assistant Manager, Managers of Departments and Branches

April 26, 2021
Has a spouse or a
Sf;ggej szeallﬁ dby Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding underage nominee second degree of
children arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other pOSIEO;’(]jS n othelr companies Note
office g =l £ |3 £ =1 background) eld currently
3 =3 3 a3 3 =% &
g |38 | & |g| & | & 4 lz|=
s | £ |2 |8] & | & /31|83
2 |8 | g |28| g4 g 2
5 |& |8 |2| 38 | & N
D 8\/ D
Chairman of Tung Kang Steel The Chairman of
Structure Co., Ltd. the Board of
Chairman of Tung Kang Wind Directors also
Power Co., Ltd. serves as the
Chairman, Far East Steel Inc. President of the
Chairman, Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd. Company, and the
Chairman of Wan Nian streamlining of
Department Stores Co., Ltd. management
Chairman, He Zhao Investment powvers leads to
Co., Ltd. smooth
Chairman, Mao Sheng Investment operations. In
Inc. order to maintain
_ Henry C Department of Director of Shang Fu In_dustrial Inc. the effe_ct_iveness
President | R.O.C. T Ho Male |2009.10.16|142,426| 0.01 |113,000| 0.01 0 0 Economics, Harvard | Director of Katec Creative None | None | None [and efficiency of
' University Resources Corp. operations, it is
Director of Katec R&D necessary to
Corporation maintain this
Director of Tung Kang model for the time
Engineering & Construction Co., being, where
Ltd. more than half of
Director of Fata Xingye Co., Ltd. the board of
Director of Tung Ho Steel Vietnam directors do not
Corp., Ltd. serve as
Director of Goldham Development employees or
Ltd. managers for
Director of 3 Oceans International supervision
Inc. purposes;
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Has a spouse or a

Szgfjsze;ﬁgy Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding underage nominee second degree of
children arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other pOSIEO;’(]jS n othelr companies Note
office g =l £ |3 £ =1 background) eld currently
2152 |S|2 |8 2
o @ e | = e @ 4| & | &
s | & | || o | @ 513 |8
« |8 |5 |8| % | 8 N
D 8\/ D
Director of Tung Yuan however,
International Corp. considering the
Director of Fujian Sino-Japan need for long-term
Metal Corp. and sound
Dung Tang Energy Service Co., corporate
Ltd. governance, we
Director of Mingtai Yule Co., Ltd. are actively
Director of Eturnity Corp. nurturing a
Director of Tung Ho Steel Cultural successor to the
Foundation was established President and will
Chairman of THS Foundation appointone at an
appropriate time
depending on
actual
requirements.
Chairman of Tung Ho Steel
Vietnam Corp., Ltd.
Exective Bt MMtast'e: c[j)egrele fromt SDtirecttor Cof Ij'tgng Kang Steel
- inghua aterial Development [Structure Co., Ltd.
Pr;gligeent R.O.C. Huang Male |2019.05.14| 6,444 0 0 0 |1,075000[ 0.10 Institute of National | Director of Dongjing Investment None | None | None None
Cheng Kung University |Co., Ltd.
Director of Tung Ho Steel Cultural
Foundation was established
Senior Vice Fusiin Kaohsiung Municipal ~ |Chairman of Katec Creative
General R.O.C. Cr{e ng Male |2020.06.30( 589 0 0 0 | 504,000 0.05 |Kaohsiung Industrial Resources Corp. None | None | None None
Manager High School Director, Taiwan Steel United Inc.
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Has a spouse or a

Szgfjsze;ﬁgy Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding underage nominee second degree of
children arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other pOSIEO;’(]jS n othelr companies Note
office g =l £ |3 £ =1 background) eld currently
3 = 3 3 3 = &
g |8 | & |g| & | & 4 lz |z
s | £ |2 |8] & | & /31|83
2 |8 | g |28| 4 8 * |2
D 8\/ D
Director of Tung Kang
Engineering & Construction Co.,
Ltd.
eragerof Kuanren Depatmentof | of g Kang
Sales R.O.C. Gu Male |2009.10.16| 99,855 | 0.01 | 100 0 0 0 [Economics, Chl_nese Steel Structure Co.. Ltd None | None | None None
N Culture University . o
Division Supervisor, Fujian Tung Kang
Steel Co., Ltd.
Director of Tung Ho Steel Cultural
Foundation was established
Chairman of Fujian Sino-Japan
Metal Corp.
Director of 3 Oceans International
Inc.
Director of Tung  Yuan
International Corp.
Vice General Department of Materials |Director, Siaogang Warehousing
Manager of s Science and Inc.
Trading R.O.C. | QixieLin | Male |2009.10.16| 21,799 0 0 0 0 0 Engineering, Tsinghua  |Director, Chien Shing Harbour None | None | None None
Division University Service Co., Ltd.
Director of Tung Ho Steel Vietnam
Corp., Ltd.
Director of Duc Hoa International
J.S.C
Director of Tung Ho Steel Cultural
Foundation was established
Senior Vice Master's degree in Director of Tung Kang Wind
General Joshua Business Management  (Power Co., Ltd.
Manager, R.O.C. P.H. Tung Male |2020.11.12| 23,381 0 0 0 |160,000 | 0.01 from the Business Director of Tung Kang Steel None | None | None None
Finance and Institute, National Structure Co., Ltd.
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Has a spouse or a

Szafj szealﬁ db Y Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding gn derace nominee second degree of
childr egn arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other posﬁ[qlglr(\js (;Er?grﬁlr companies Note
office g 3 £ | 3 £ =1 background) y
3 = 3 3 3 = &
g |8 | & |g| 8 | & 4| | 2
s | £ |2 |8] & | & 13|89
2 |8 | g |8| & g * |2
® e\? @
Accounting Chengchi University Director of Tung Yuan
Division Department of International Corp.
Economics at National  |Director of Goldham Development
Taiwan University Ltd.
Assistant International Trade
manager of Ru-ying Major, International
the sales R.O.C. Fan Female {2009.11.01| 16,000 0 0 0 0 0 Business Professional None None | None | None None
department School
Assistant
manager of Zhenvuan Department of
the R.O.C. Ch)éﬁ Male |2009.11.01f O 0 0 0 0 0 [International Trade, Feng None None | None | None None
investment Chia University
division
M.S., College of Chairman of Duc Hoa International
; Technology J.S.C.
r:aisftgpéf Management, Tsinghua [President of Duc Hoa International
g Hou-sheng University J.S.C
the R.O.C. . Male |2009.11.01( 870 0 0 0 0 0 ; N None | None | None None
. Jian Industrial Engineering
investment - .
division Major, Taipel
Engineering Professional
School
Chairman, Fujian Tung Kang Steel
Co., Ltd.
rrﬁazsa:;t:?éf Mechanical Engineering Etléector of Goldham Development
the R.O.C. Zhe(zgr}%bln Male |2010.06.01| 5,027 0 0 0 0 0 En inl\e/le?iﬁr, grrg;:gsional General Manager of Tung Kang | None [ None | None None
investment g chh ool Steel Structure Co., Ltd.
division Director of Tung Kang Steel
Structure Co., Ltd.
Director, Li-Yu Venture Capital
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Has a spouse or a

Szgfjsze;ﬁgy Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding underage nominee second degree of
children arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other pOSIEO;’(]jS n othelr companies Note
office g =l £ |3 £ =1 background) eld currently
2152 |S|2 |8 2
o @ e | = e @ 4| & | &
s | £ |2 |8] & | & 13|89
2 |8 | g |28| 4 g * |2
5 |& |8 |2| 38 | & N
D 8\/ D
Inc.
Supervisor of Fujian DongSheng
metal processing Co., Ltd.
Director, Li-Shi Venture Capital
Inc.
. EMBA, Tsinghua
Assistant University Director of Duc Hoa International
TR Roc. | xuvinni | wae |20te0211| 307 | o | o | o o o [Masterdegreefrom —1J.S.C. None | None | None |~ None
investment e u iz T Mat_erial Devel_opment Pr_esidentofTung Ho Steel
division Institute of Natlo_nal ~ Vietnam Corp., Ltd.
Cheng Kung University
Supervisor of Tung Kang
Engineering & Construction Co.,
Ltd.
Supervisor of Fata Xingye Co. Ltd.
Investment Fu Jen Catholic ggﬁzxg o[tg) ung Tang Energy
Division RO.C. | ZhaoLiu | Male |2019.11.11| 8,000 0 4141 ( O 0 0  [University Department | . S - None | None | None None
Manager of Accounting Director of Tung Kang Wind
Power Co., Ltd.
Director of Katec Creative
Resources Corp.
Supervisor of Duc  Hoa
International J. S. C.
Head of Director  of Katec R&D
Corporate Master degree in Corporation
Governance Business Administration [Supervisor of Katec Creative
and Assistantf R.O.C. | RuyuHe | Female |2011.10.01| 7,000 0 0 0 0 0  [from Institute of Resources Corp. None | None | None None
Manager of Business, Chung Yuan [Supervisor, Tung Kang Wind
the Christian University Power Co., Ltd.
Management
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Has a spouse or a

Szafjsze;ﬁgy Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding gn derace nominee second degree of
childr egn arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other posﬁ[qlglr(\js (;Er?grﬁlr companies Note
office g 3 £ | 3 £ =1 background) y
3 S 3 | g | 3 S &
T |8 |8 |5| § |3 Slz |2
s | £ |2 |8] & | & 13|89
2 |8 | g |8| & g * |2
® e\? @
Department
Master degree in
Assistant Information
manager of Zhe-chong Management from
T R.O.C. Lin Male |2005.05.01( 9,822 0 |18000| O 0 0 Institute of Management, None None | None | None None
Department National Sun Yat-sen
University
Manager of Yilin Department of
Work Safety| R.O.C. Wan Male |2008.12.01| 18,444 0 8242 | 0O 0 0  |Economics, Tamkang None None | None | None None
Center g University
Manager of Junxian Department of Law,
Legal Affairs] R.O.C. Zhao Male |2012.09.01( 4,318 0 0 0 0 0  [Chinese Culture None None | None | None None
Office University
Assistant
Deputy .
Manager, | ROC. |YiruChen| Female [2011.1001| o0 o | o o] o o |Departmentof Statistics, None None | None | None None
Audi Feng Chia University
uditing
Office
Director of Texiu Master's degree in
Taoyuan R.O.C. Chen Male |2019.02.11| 56,911 | 0.01 0 0 0 0 |Information, New Jersey None None | None | None None
Works Institute of Technology
Director of Mina-zon g/(lz?gltqecresgszaterlals Director, Taiwan Steel United Inc.
Miaoli R.O.C. Eiu 9 Male 20080001 0 0 0 0 | 290,000 | 0.03 Engineering, National Director of Fujian Sino-Japan None | None | None None
Works Taiwan University Metal Corp.
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Has a spouse or a

Szafjsze;ﬁgy Shareholding by relative within the
Shareholding gn derace nominee second degree of
childr egn arrangement kinship who are the
Company's managers
Date of < @ Main experiences N .
Title  |Nationality| Name | Gender | taking 3 &) 3 (educational Other posﬁ[qlglr(\js (;Er?grﬁlr companies Note
office g =l £ |3 £ =1 background) y
2152 |2| 2 |8 2
@ Q @ S @ Q — Z 2
s | & |s |8| s | & 5132 |3
< |8 | % |&| g 8 =
s e 51028 | & s
@ e\? @
. Master's degree in
Director of .
; Zong-yu Financial Management,
Kaohsiung | R.O.C. Wang Male [2011.0701| 37 0 0 | 5000 National Sun Yat-sen None None | None | None None
Works A
University
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I11.Remuneration paid last year to directors, the president and vice president
(DRemuneration for directors (including independent directors)

December 31, 2020

Directors' remuneration (NT$)

Remuneration received as the Company's employee (NT$)

Total_ Total Remuneration | \Whether or
Remuneration
R ion (&) | Resignation/retirement| Director remuneration Business | (A+B+C+D) asa| salaries, bonuses, and Resignationvretirement) tion (G a(? a+ (E;WS%;%ZIE Iﬂggg; remurrl,gﬁaﬁon
emuneration (A) pension (B) © efgjﬁsu;c}%) % of Net Income | special allowances (E) pension (F) Mployee remuneration (G) from the
All companies ely
. com or
Title Name > > > > > > > | Thiscompany | in the financial > in\,ﬁé’e
% |35| 2 (55| 2 |9 |2 |38|2 /38| 2 |38 | 2 |38 ot | 2| =g | compenes
2 |32 | %2 |82 % |33 |Z 22|22 |33| % |22 | % |32z 2 | 33 |fomousie
El 25 3 235 el 235 3 235 3 25 g 25 3 2S5 g (2] g <) 3 23 the
3 37 3 37 3 3% |8 |28 |8 |87 3 37 3 87 > | B > | B | B 38 subsidiaries
2 |85 | & |85| 2 |85 |2 |85(<|85| <2 |85 | < |85 |8 |3|8 3|2 | 85 |wercrcemwed
=2 =2 5 =2 =2 5 5 =] 23 Q £ =2
@ @ 9] 9] @ @ @ % S % 5 @
Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Chairman  |Representative:|2,520,000 |2,520,000(0 0 13,326,861|13,326,861|45,000 {45,000 (045 [0.45 12,101,347|13,733,347|550,225 550,225 |995,420(0 995,420|0 083 088 None
Henry C. T.
Ho
Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Directors  |Representative:|360,000 360,000 |0 0 13,326,861|13,326,861|45,000 (45,000 |0.39 |0.39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 039 (039 None
George Y. S.
Ho
Earle Hoand
Directors gons, L. | .|360,000 {360,000 |0 0 36,163,591|36,163,591(45,000 {45,000 |1.03 |1.03 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 103 (103 None
epresentative:
Hui-Ming Wu
Earle Hoand
Sons, Ltd.
Directors  |Representative:|210,000 {210,000 |0 0 22,300,881|22,300,881{30,000 {30,000 [0.63 |0.63 4,636,080 |4,636,080 [238465 |238465 |390,060(0 390,060(0 078 |0.78 None
Joshua P.H.
Tung
Episil Holding
Incorporation
Directors  |Representative:|360,000 {360,000 |0 0 2,062827 (2,062,827 (45,000 {45,000 [0.07 |0.07 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 007 |0.07 None
Chih-Ming
Huang
Liang Cheng
Investment
Directors  |Co., Ltd. 360,000 |360,000 |0 0 4,564,147 |4,564,147 (45,000 {45,000 [0.14 |0.14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 014 (014 None
Representative:
Pao-He Chen
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Directors | Yen-Liang Ho [360,000 [360,000 |0 0 147570 147570 [45000[45000 002 [002 |0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 Joo2 Joo2 None
Taiwan Zhi Di

. Co. Ltd.

Directors | contative 300000 360,000 |0 0 26522 |26522  |45000(45000 [001 001 |0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 |oo1 [o01 None
Chao-He Lin

gﬁggg‘gem I-Chi Liu 1,080,0000{1,080,000|0 0 0 0 45000 45000 (003 (003 |0 0 0 0 0 0o o 0 [003 003 None

Independent|Chuang-Hsi

Dirodors | Ghang 1,200,000 |1,200,000/0 0 0 0 45000 45000 (003 [003 |0 0 0 0 0 0o o 0 [003 003 None

Independent) e\ ing Lieu| 1,080,000 |1,080,000[0 0 0 0 45000 45000 (003 (003 |0 0 0 0 0 0o o 0 [003 003 N

Directors er-iviing Lieu| 1, A , A A A A A A A one

@

1. Please describe the policy, system, criteria and structure for the remuneration of independent directors, and the relevance to the amount of remuneration paid based on the responsibilities, risks and time commitment:
Independent directors receive monthly fixed remuneration and do not participate in the distribution of earnings, and are paid attendance fees on a per-meeting basis based on the actual number of meetings attended.
(2) The above fixed remuneration is based on each independent director's participation in and contribution to the Company's operations and the value of their contributions to the Company. It is proposed to the Board of Directors after evaluation and

discussion by the Remuneration Committee, taking into account the payout to listed companies in the same industry and related industries.
(3) For serving asa member of each functional committee of the Company, the functional committee member shall be paid a fixed monthly remuneration and shall be paid attendance fees in accordance with the actual number of meetings attended.
2. Except as disclosed in the table above, the remuneration received by the directors of the Company for services rendered to all companies listed in the financial statements (e.g. as consultants to non-employees, etc.) in the most recent year: None.

Note: Remuneration paid to the driver assigned to the Chairman in 2020 was NT$574, 899.

(I1)Remuneration Paid to thePresident and Vice President

December 31, 2020

Resignation/retirement

Bonuses and Allowances,

Total Remuneration

Comp((elr\lls?g)on A) pension (B) etc. (C) Employee remuneration amount (D) (NT$) | (A+B+C+D) asa % | \Whether or not
(NT$) (NT$) of Net Income remuneration
= = = All companies in the = from the parent
= = = H =
. = s 2 = ® Z = s Z This company financial report - = comparly of
Title Name = S o 2. S o = e = 5o investee
o 23 o 23 o 83 Q @) Q &) o 85 companies
g 33 g 32 g 33 & = B = g 33 banis
3 ] 3 ] 3 5 9 = 2 = 2 3 5o from outside
° = 3. o = 3. o = 3. @ @ %) @ o - 3. T
2 I @ 2 T @ 2 I @ = < 35 < 2 3@ the subsidiaries
< s 2 < ° 2 < S 2 e = ) = < S 2 ived
e s S5 S s = c c = SEE were receive
President Henry C.T.
Ho
Executive Vice Binghua
President Huang
Seengeglce Fujing Chen 20,493,581| 22,125581 | 2,067,646 | 2,067,646 | 18,852,454 | 18,852,454 (3,063,800 O [3,063800| O 1.25 1.29 None
Manager
Senior Vice Joshua P.H.
General Tun
Manager g

37




Vice President

Kuanren Gu

Vice President

Qixie Lin
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Remuneration scale table

Levels of remuneration paid to General Manager and Vice General
Manager of the Company

Name of President and Vice President

This company

All companies in the financial report

Less than NT$1,000,000 None None
NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None
NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) None None
NT$3,500,000 (inclusive)-NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$10,000,000 (exclusive)

Binghua Huang, Fu-jing Chen, Joshua P.H.
Tung, Kuanren Gu, Qixie Lin

Binghua Huang, Fu-jing Chen, Joshua P.H.
Tung, Kuanren Gu, Qixie Lin

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) Henry C. T. Ho Henry C. T. Ho
NT$15,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None
NT$30,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None
NT$50,000,000 (inclusive)-NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) None None
Over NT$100,000,000 None None
Total 6 persons 6 persons
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(11 Manager's name and the distribution of employee remuneration

December 31, 2020

Ratio (%)
Title Name Share value Cash amount Total accounted
(NT$) (NT$) (NT$) compared to the
total net income
President Henry C. T. Ho
Executive President Binghua Huang
Senior Vice General Fu-jing Chen
Manager
ﬁﬂegrll(;é;ﬁlce General Joshua P.H. Tung
Vice General Manager Kuanren Gu
Vice General Manager Qixie Lin
Plant director Te-xiu Chen
Manager |p|ant director Ming-zong Liu 0 6,220,480 6,220,480 0.17
Plant director Zong-yu Wang
Assistant manager Ru-ying Fan
Assistant manager Zhenyuan Chen
Assistant manager Hou-sheng Jian
Assistant manager Zhengbin Qiu
Assistant manager Xu Yizhi
Assistant manager Ruyu He
Assistant manager Zhe-chong Lin

(IV)Comparison of remuneration paid by the Company and all the consolidated entities in the last two years to the
Company's directors, president and vice president as a percentage to the net income of individual financial
statement. Explanation on remuneration policies, standards and combination of the procedures in determining
remuneration, and association with business performance and future risks.

1. Remuneration paid by the Company and all the consolidated entities to the Company's directors, president and vice president as a percentage to the

income of the individual financial statement.
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Remuneration of the Company's directors,
president and vice president as a percentage to the
net income (%) of the individual financial

statement.

2019

2020

This company

All companies in the
financial report

This company

All companies in the
financial report

5.83

5.93

4.07

412

2. The policy, criteria and composition of remuneration payments, the procedures for determining remuneration, and the correlation with
operating performance and future risks
(1)(Professional) Manager remuneration
a.The (Professional) manager's remuneration is determined based on the overall market position of the company, the results of salary
surveys in related industries, and the achievement of the manager's goals, contributions, and other correlated considerations.
b.The (Professional) manager's remuneration includes a fixed salary, supervisor's bonus, fuel subsidy, work bonus (or sales bonus),
various allowances, bonuses, year-end bonus, and employee remuneration.
c.The (Professional) manager's remuneration is determined in accordance with the Company's relevant rules and regulations, and the
Remuneration Committee periodically evaluates the reasonableness of the remuneration.
(2)Directors' remuneration:
a.In accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation, up to 2% of the Company's profit for the year may be allocated as
remuneration to the Company’s directors for the year, and the amount shall be allocated based on the results of the performance
evaluation of each director for the year.
b.In accordance with Article 22-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the Remuneration Committee shall recommend a fixed
monthly remuneration with reference to the standards of relevant industries and listed companies, and the responsibilities assumed by
the directors, and shall submit it to the Board of Directors for approval.
c.In addition to the fixed monthly remuneration, the directors shall receive a monthly attendance fee based on the actual number of
meetings attended.
d.If concurrently serving as a member of the varioys functional committees of the Company, the director shall be paid a fixed monthly
remuneration and attendance fees in accordance with the actual number of meetings attended.
(3)Independent directors' remuneration:
a.Independent directors receive monthly fixed remuneration and do not participate in the distribution of earnings, and are paid attendance
fees on a per-meeting basis based on the actual number of meetings attended.
b.The above fixed remuneration is based on each independent director's participation in and contribution to the Company's operations
and the value of their contributions to the Company. It is proposed to the Board of Directors after evaluation and discussion by the
Remuneration Committee, taking into account the payout to listed companies in the same industry and related industries.
c.For serving as a member of each functional committee of the Company, the functional committee member shall be paid a fixed
monthly remuneration and shall be paid attendance fees in accordance with the actual number of meetings attended.
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IVV. Corporate Governance Practices
(1)1.Board of Directors Operation Status

In the last year, board meetings were held 9 (A) times. The attendance status is as follows:

NuaTt?JE;rl of Actu_al_ att(_endance
Title Name attendee A;;eg;jg)r(];e (partlcu()(z;:[) |)on) rate Note
(participant)
(B) [B/A]
Mao Sheng
. Investment Inc. Re-appointed on May
Chairman Representative: d 0 100 19, 2020
Henry C. T. Ho
Mao Sheng
Vice Investment Inc. 6 0 100 Appointed on May 19,
Chairman | Representative: 2020
George Y. S. Ho
Mao Sheng
. Investment Inc. Period in office ended
Directors Representative: 3 0 100 on May 19, 2020
George Y. S. Ho
Earle Ho and Sons,
. Ltd. Re-appointed on May
Directors Representative: 9 0 100 19, 2020
Hui-Ming Wu
Earle Ho and Sons,
. Ltd. Appointed on May 19,
Directors Representative: 6 0 100 2020
Joshua P.H. Tung
Episil Holding
. Incorporation Re-appointed on May
Directors Representative: 9 0 100 19, 2020
Chih-Ming Huang
Liang Cheng
Investment Co., .
Directors | Ltd. 9 0 100 Re-appainted on May
Representative: '
Pao-He Chen
Taiwan Zhi Di Co.
. Ltd. Re-appointed on May
Directors Representative: 9 0 100 19, 2020
Chao-He Lin
. O Re-appointed on May
Directors | Yen-Liang Ho 9 0 100 19, 2020
Independent - Re-appointed on May
Directors | -Chi Liu d 0 100 19, 2020
Independent e Re-appointed on May
Directors Chuang-Hsi Chang 9 0 100 19, 2020
Independent VT . Re-appointed on May
Directors Der-Ming Lieu 9 0 100 19, 2020
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Other matters that should be recorded:

I.The operation of the board of directors' meeting shall state the date and period of the board meeting, the
content of the motion, the opinions of all independent directors and the Company's handling of the
opinions of the independent directors if any of the following circumstances apply:

(DMatters listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: The Company has established an
audit committee, which is not applicable.

(INIn addition to the above items mentioned, other matters resolved by the Board of Directors with the
objection or reservation of the independent directors that are recorded or stated in writing: None.

I1.The directors' avoidance of interest motion should indicate the names of the directors, content of the

motion and reasons of avoidance of interest as well as the involvement in voting.

Date and Time

Content of motion

Reason for recusal of
conflicts of interest

Voting participation

2020.06.03

2nd meeting of
the 24th board

Appointment of the
members of the 4th
Remuneration
Committee of the
Company.

The independent directors
of the Company,
Chuang-Hsi Chang and
I-Chi Liu, are nominated
in this case.

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.

2020.06.03

2nd meeting of
the 24th board

Appointment of the
members of the 2nd
Corporate Governance
Committee of the
Company.

The Chairman of the
Board, Henry C. T. Ho,
the Independent Director,
Chuang-Hsi Changi, and
the Independent Director,
Der-Ming Lieu, are
nominees, and the Vice
Chairman, George Y. S.
Ho, is a relative of the
Chairman, Henry C. T.
Ho.

The case was discussed and
voted on by I-Chi Liu, the
acting chairman of the
independent directors;
except for the
above-mentioned directors
who were recused due to
their interest involvement,
the rest of the directors
passed the case without
objection.

2020.06.03

2nd meeting of
the 24th board

Mr. Hou Jincheng was
appointed as a
consultant of the
Company.

The director, Yen-Liang
Ho, in this case is a first
degree relative of one of
the appointees.

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

Contribution to the
activities and expenses
of the Tung Ho Steel
Cultural Foundation.

The Chairman of the
Board, Henry C. T. Ho, is
a director of the
Foundation and the Vice
Chairman, George Y. S.
Ho, is a second degree
relative of the Chairman,
Henry C. T. Ho.

The case was discussed and
voted on by I-Chi Liu, the
acting chairman of the
independent directors;
except for the
above-mentioned directors
who were recused due to
their interest involvement,
the rest of the directors
passed the case without
objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

Proposed remuneration
for the Chairman and
Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors.

Chairman Henry C. T. Ho
and Vice Chairman
George Y. S. Ho are the
parties to this motion.

The case was discussed and
voted on by I-Chi Liu, the
acting chairman of the
independent directors;
except for the
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above-mentioned directors
who were recused due to
their interest involvement,
the rest of the directors
passed the case without
objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

It is proposed that the
remuneration of the
corporate
representative director
of the Company be
established.

Directors Hui-Ming Wu,
Joshua P.H. Tung,
Chih-Ming Huang,
Pao-He Chen and
Chao-He Lin are the
parties to the motion.

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

Proposed remuneration
for Director Yen-Liang
Ho.

Director Yen-Liang Ho is
a party to this motion.

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

Proposed remuneration
for independent
directors.

The independent directors
of the Company,
Chuang-Hsi Chang, I-Chi
Liu, and Der-Ming Lieu
are parties to this motion.

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

Proposed remuneration
for functional
committee members.

The Chairman of the
Board, Henry C. T. Ho,
the Independent Director,
Chuang-Hsi Changi, and
the Independent Director,
Der-Ming Lieu, are
functional committee
members, and the Vice
Chairman, George Y. S.
Ho, is a second degree
relative of the Chairman,
Henry C. T. Ho.

The case was discussed and
voted on by Chih-Ming
Huang, the acting chairman
of the board; except for the
above-mentioned directors
who were recused due to
their interest involvement,
the rest of the directors
passed the case without
objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting of
the 24th board

The Company intends
to sign a technical
service contract and
assign a manager to
Dong Youn Xin
Industrial Corporation.

The chairman of the
board of directors, Henry
C. T. Ho, and the
director, Chih-Ming
Huang, are the directors
and supervisors of Dong
Youn Xin Industrial
Corporation, and the vice
chairman, George Y. S.
Ho, is a second degree
relative of the chairman,
Henry C. T. Ho.

The case was discussed and
voted on by Chuang-Hsi
Chang, the independent
director and acting chairman
of the board; except for the
above-mentioned directors
who were recused due to
their interest involvement,
the rest of the directors
passed the case without
objection.

2020.11.12
5th meeting of

Appointment of Senior
vice general manager

Director Joshua P.H.
Tung is a party to this

Except for the above
mentioned directors who
were recused due to their
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the 24th board | of the Company. motion. interest involvement, all
other directors passed the
motion without objection.
I11.Listed companies should disclose information on the periodicity and duration, scope, method and
content of the evaluation of the self (or peer) evaluation by the board of directors, and fill out Exhibit

2(2) on the implementation of the board evaluation.

IV.Programs this year and in the recent year in strengthening the functionality of the Board (for example,
set up an auditing committee, improve transparency, etc.) and execution evaluation:

()The Company's important rules and regulations and corporate governance-related regulations are
disclosed on the Company's website or on the Market Observation Post System in accordance with
regulations.

(INDTo enhance the professional knowledge of directors and to implement corporate governance, in
FY2020, in addition to arranging relevant education courses according to the needs of individual
directors, two further education courses for directors are planned, namely, "Corporate Risks and
Crises in the Face of the Digital Wave" and "Management Rights Competition and Case Analysis".
The information on the directors' training is disclosed on the Company's website and the Market
Observation Post System.

(11 The Company has taken out the "Directors' and Supervisors' and Key Employees' Liability
Insurance” to mitigate the risk of directors' legal liability and enhance corporate governance. The
Company has submitted the report of the 24th session (5th meeting) Board of Directors' Meeting
on November 12, 2020.

V.Succession planning for board members and key management personnel:
The company must, in accordance to its own development direction and goals,plan for a successor
who possess not only professional ability, but also the personality traits of honesty and integrity and
one who holds values that are consistent with the company.
(DSuccession planning for Board of Directors
The Company currently has 11 directors (including 3 independent directors), all of whom possess
business, financial accounting or corporate business skills. The future composition of the
Company's Board of Directors and the background of its members will continue to adopt this
framework.
With regard to the succession planning of the board of directors, we maintain periodic good
communication with the existing corporate shareholders and discuss the succession planning with
them. With regard to independent directors, they are required by law to have working experience
in the fields of business, law, finance, accounting or corporate business. Therefore, they will be
selected by professionals in domestic academic and industrial fields.
(I)Management succession plan
The company regularly reviews and selects the potential list of candidates for each level,
establishes a talent pool, and conducts training programs. The content of the talent development
program includes professional ability, management ability, individual development program
(IDP) and job rotations:
1.Develop the ability to make decisions and evaluations through the mechanism of work practice
reports and participation in important meetings on goals and management. Provide guidance
and feedback for individuals throughout the process via regular performance evaluations by
supervisors.
2.Cultivate diversified working abilities and nurture broadened horizons, and provide practical
experience through cross-functional or cross-departmental (factory) job rotation, project
planning and execution, part-time duties, work agency or assignment to investee companies,
etc.
3.Participate in internal and external related training to develop decision making and judgment
ability according to annual individual development needs.
4.Establish a comprehensive training record and regularly review the talent development plan in
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order to implement adjustments according to the organization's operational needs.

5.Encourage middle and senior level talents to unleash their creativity and to initiate further study,
research or alternative training and internship programs. The company will provide resource
support or adjust the content of their duties, so as to facilitate the diversity and resilience of the
company's overall human resources.

2.Board of Directors' Evaluation of Implementation Status

Evaluation | Evaluation Evaluation Evaluation Evaluation Content

Cycle Period Scope Method
Performed | To evaluate | This includes | Conducted via (DThe "Self-Evaluation Questionnaire for
once a the performance self-evaluation board members" is filled out by all board
year performance | evaluation of | The evaluation members, and the evaluation aspects

of the board
of directors
from
January 1,
2020 to
December
31, 2020.

the board of
directors,
individual
board
members, and
functional
committees
(Remuneration
Committee,
Audit
Committee,
and Corporate
Governance
Committee).

results are sent
to the
Remuneration
Committee for
review on March
19, 2021, and the
review results
will be submitted
to the 24th
session (8th
meeting) board
of directors'
meeting report
on March 23,
2021, as the
basis for review
and
improvement.

include: There are 28 items in 6 categories:
mastery of corporate goals and tasks,
awareness of directors' responsibilities,
participation in corporate operations,
internal relations and communication,
professionalism and continuing education
of directors, as well as internal control.

(INThe "Functional Committee Performance

Appraisal Self-Evaluation Questionnaire™
is evaluated by the convenor of each
functional committee. Evaluation aspects
include: There are five major aspects:
participation in the company's operation,
awareness of functional committee
responsibilities, improvement of the quality
of functional committee decisions,
composition and selection of functional
committee members, and internal control.

(111 The "Board of Directors' Performance

Self-Evaluation Questionnaire" is evaluated
by the Head of Corporate Governance for.
Evaluation aspects include: There are 45
items in 5 major categories: participation in
company operations, improving the quality
of board decisions, board composition and
structure, selection and continuing
education of directors, and internal control.
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(1) Audit Committee Operation Status

In the last year, audit committee meetings were held 8 (A) times. The attendance status of independent directors

is as follows:
. Actual Attendance | Actual attendance rate
Title Name attendance bY DIOX (%) [BIA] Note
number (B) y proxy °
Independent - Re-appointed on May 19,
Directors I-Chi Liu 8 0 100.00 2020
Independent | Chuang-Hsi Re-appointed on May 19,
Directors Chang 8 0 100.00 2020
Independent | Der-Ming Re-appointed on May 19,
Directors Lieu 8 0 100.00 2020

Other matters that should be recorded:

|.The operation of the board of directors’ meeting shall state the date and period of the board meeting, the
content of the motion, the audit committee review results and the Company’s handling of the audit
committee’s opinions if any of the following circumstances apply:

(I)Matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Date and Time

Content of motion

Audit committee
review results

The Company’s
handling of the audit
committee review
opinions

1.2019 Ratified business
report and financial report

2020.02.27

2.Surplus allocation table for
2019

1st session
(20th meeting)

3.Issuance of the "Statement
of Internal Control" for the
year 2019

All members
present agreed to
approve the
proposal and
submit it to the
board of directors
for resolution. The

The resolution of the
board of directors
was approved as
written.

4.Endorsement and guarantee ipdependent
of credit facilities to directors have no
subsidiaries objection.
1.Passed the company's All members

Quarter 1 consolidated
financial reports for 2020.

present agreed to
approve the

2020.05.12 | 5 Endorsement and guarantee | Proposal and The resolution of the
1st session of credit facilities to submit it to the board of directors
(22nd subsidiaries board of directors | was approved as
meeting) for resolution. The | written.
independent
directors have no
objection.
1.Contribution to the activities | All members
and expenses of the Tung | present agreed to | The resolution of the
2020.06.22 .
) Ho Steel Cultural approve the board of directors
2nd session

Foundation

(1st meeting)

2.Endorsement and guarantee
of credit facilities to

proposal and
submit it to the
board of directors

was approved as
written.
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subsidiaries

for resolution. The
independent
directors have no
objection.

2020.08.13
2nd session

1.Passed the company's
Quarter 2 consolidated
financial reports for 2020

2.Endorsement and guarantee
of credit facilities to

All members
present agreed to
approve the
proposal and
submit it to the

The resolution of the
board of directors

2020.11.12

2nd session
(3rd meeting)

3.Proposal on the 7th issuance
of domestic unsecured
convertible bonds

4.Contracting for the
construction of additional
plants at Taichung Harbor

present agreed to
approve the
proposal and
submit it to the
board of directors
for resolution. The

. idiari board of directors | was approved as
(2nd meeting) subsiiaries for resolution. The | written.
independent
directors have no
objection.
1.Passed the company's
Quiarter 3 consolidated
financial reports for 2020
2.Accountant public expenses
review proposal for 2020 All members

The resolution of the
board of directors
was approved as
written.

2020.12.22

2nd session
(4th meeting)

Logistic Office independent
5.Appointment of the directors have no
Company’s accounting objection.
supervisor
6.Endorsement and guarantee
of credit facilities to
subsidiaries
1.Amendments to the Internal | All members

Control System and
Guidelines for the
Implementation of Internal
Audits.

2.Endorsement and guarantee
of credit facilities to
subsidiaries

present agreed to
approve the
proposal and
submit it to the
board of directors
for resolution. The
independent
directors have no
objection.

The resolution of the
board of directors
was approved as
written.

(I In addition to the above mentioned items, other resolutions not approved by the Audit Committee
but approved by two-thirds or more of the Company’s directors: None.

I1.The independent directors' avoidance of interest motion should indicate the names of the independent
directors, content of the motion and reasons of avoidance of interest as well as the involvement in
voting: None.

I1l.Independent directors’ communication with internal auditors and accountants (for example, methods

and results of communication over the Company's financial and business status, etc.):

(Communication status between independent directors and accountants:
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Prior to the annual review of the financial statements, the independent directors and the certified
public accountants will discuss and communicate the scope and manner of the review, and the key
audit issues.

The certified public accountant communicates with the independent directors at the audit
committee meetings on a quarterly basis regarding the review results or financial statement audits
of the Company and its subsidiaries, and has reached consensus on relevant matters through
adequate and excellent communication.

The accountant will explain and communicate with the independent directors on an irregular basis
regarding the update of relevant regulations and whether the amendment of laws and regulations
affects the way of accounting.

Summary of communication for FY 2020:

Date Communication content Handling and
implementation
results
2020.01.06 | Pre-audit discussion and communication regarding . .

Audit the scope of audit, audit approach, and key audit NO. mconsmtency of
Committee | issues for the 2019 financial report. opinion.

2020.02.27 | To communicate and discuss the results of the 2019 ) _

Audit individual and consolidated financial report audit. NO. |ncon5|stency of
Committee opinion.
2020.05.12 | To communicate and discuss the results of the 2020 . .

Audit Quarter 1 individual and consolidated financial report NO_ |pcon3|stency of
Committee | audit. OPINION.
2020.08.13 | To communicate and discuss the results of the 2020 ) _

Audit Quiarter 2 individual and consolidated financial report NO_ mconswtency of
Committee | audit. opinien.
2020.11.12 | To communicate and discuss the results of the 2020 . .

Audit Quarter 3 individual and consolidated financial report NO_ |pcon3|stency of
Committee | audit. opinian.

(I Communication between independent directors and internal auditors:

The Company's head of internal audit sends monthly audit reports and tracking report related
information to the independent directors for review, who will provide guidance to the internal
audit unit through this communication mechanism.

The head of internal audit attends and presents business reports at the board of directors and
audit committee meetings.

Summary of communication for FY 2020:

Date Communication content Handling and
implementation results
2020.02.27 | Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
Audit improvement report on January 2020, as well as | opinions, submission
Committee | communication and discussion on related issues. to the board of
directors.
1.Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
improvement report on February 2020, as well as | opinions, submission
2020.03.31 . . ) .
) communication and discussion on related issues. to the board of
AUd_'t directors.
Committee ) . . . .
2.In response to the impact of the novel coronavirus | No inconsistency in
epidemic, the audit office proposed an amendment to | opinions, submission
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the "2020 Audit Plan" to adjust the audit schedule for | to the board of
overseas subsidiaries; committee members suggested | directors.
that follow-up audits should still be conducted regularly
for overseas subsidiaries.
2020.05.12 | Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
Audit improvement report for March - April 2020, as well as | opinions, submission to
Committee | communication and discussion on related issues. the board of directors.
1.Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
improvement report for May 2020, as well as | opinions, submission to
communication and discussion on related issues. the board of directors.
2.In response to the impact of the novel coronavirus | Proposal to conduct a
2020.06.22 epidemic, the audit office proposed an amendment to | remote audit and
Audit the "2020 Audit Plan" to adjust the audit plan and | submit it to the board
Committee method for overseas subsidiaries. of directors; the
resolution was
approved by the
board of directors as
written.
2020.08.13 Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
o improvement report for June - July 2020, as well as | opinions, submission
Audit - . . .
. communication and discussion on related issues. to the board of
Committee .
directors.
1.Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
improvement report for August - October 2020, as well | opinions, submission
as communication and discussion on related issues. to the board of
2020.11.12 .
directors.
Audit ) ) ; - . " . . .
. 2.The audit office submitted the "Audit Plan for 2021". No inconsistency in
Committee . .
opinions, submission
to the board of
directors.
1.Audit of business execution and missing items tracking | No inconsistency in
improvement report for November 2020, as well as | opinions, submission
communication and discussion on related issues. to the board of
2020.12.22 .
directors.
Audit . . .
Committee 2.Amendments to the “Internal Control System” and | No inconsistency in
“Guidelines for the Implementation of Internal Audits” | opinions, submission
by the audit office. to the board of
directors.

IV.Audit Committee 2020 Work Agenda:
1.Review the appropriateness of the annual financial report and quarterly reports.
2.Review the business report and the distribution of earnings.
3.Review the independence and suitability of the accountant and the accountant's fee.
4.Review the appointment of the Company’s accounting supervisor
5.Review the operating procedures related to the internal control system.
6.Review the annual audit plan.
7.Assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system.
8.Review major asset transactions and major investment cases.

9.Review of derivative transactions, major capital loans, and provision of endorsements and guarantees.
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(111)Differences and Reasoning for the Status of Corporate Governance and Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies

Operations Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Assessed areas ves|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
I.Does the The "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles" was approved by the 23rd session (12th meeting) Board of |No
company Directors' Meeting on March 26, 2019 and is posted on the Company's website. Please refer to the Company's | gifference.
establish  and website/Investor Services/Corporate Governance/Important Regulations of the Company
disclose its (https://www.tunghosteel.com/investors/norm).
corporate
governance
principles in
accordance with| v/
the  Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles  for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies?
I1.Company Stock
Equity
Structure  and
Shareholders'
Rights v No
(HDid the (The Company has a spokesperson and an acting spokesperson to explain and disseminate important information to | difference.
company the public, and to handle and reply to investors' suggestions. The Company has a dedicated contact window for
establish various external stakeholders, which is posted on the Company's website to receive notifications, suggestions,
internal complaints and reports on the Company, and assigns dedicated personnel to handle and reply to such feedback.
procedures
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

for
addressing
shareholder
suggestions,
doubts,
disputes,

and

litigation
matters and
implement
the
procedures
accordingly?

(INDoes  the

company
have in
possession
the list of
major

shareholders
that have
actual

control over
the company

as well as
the list of
major
shareholders
with  final
control?
(1nHDid the

(INThe Company's share operations are handled by a professional share agent, and a person is responsible for the
reporting of changes in shareholdings of internal and major shareholders.

(I Guarantee endorsement and financing for affiliated enterprises are subjected to strict internal regulations. The
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

company
establish
and execute
risk control
mechanism
for
affiliates,
and firewall
methods?

(Iv)Did the
company
establish
internal
regulations
stipulating
that
employees
shall not
use
undisclosed
information
to engage
in the
transaction
of
marketable
securities?

"Regulations Governing Related-Party Transactions” have been established to improve the financial transactions
between the Company and its related companies and to prevent non-conventional transactions or improper transfer

of benefits.

(IV)The company has a “Code of Ethics for Directors, Supervisors and Managers” to prohibit employees from using
undisclosed information to engage in the transaction of marketable securities, and also regularly promotes

awareness on insider trading related laws.

I11.Board

compositions
and

No difference.
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

responsibilities
()Did the board
establish

diverse goals

based on its
member
compositions
and realize
such goals?

(HSpecific management objectives and achievements of the board's diversity policy:
1.Board of directors’ composition diversity policy:

(1)In accordance with Chapter 3, Article 22 of the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”, the Company
shall strengthen the functions and regulations of the Board of Directors, and shall consider diversity in the
composition of the Board of Directors and formulate appropriate diversity guidelines for its operations, business
model and development needs, including but not limited to the following two major criteria:
a.Basic qualifications and value: Gender, age, nationality and culture.
b.Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (e.g. legal, accounting, industry, finance,

marketing, or technology), professional skills and industry experience, etc.

(2)Each board member shall have the necessary knowledge, skill, and ability. To achieve the desired objectives of
corporate governance, the board as a whole must have abilities that include: Operational judgment, accounting
and financial analysis, operational management, crisis management, industry knowledge, international market
perspective, leadership, decision-making, and sustainability management.

2.Board of Directors Diversity Specific Management Objectives:

The Board of Directors shall direct the Company's strategies, supervise management, and be responsible to the
Company and its shareholders. The operations and arrangements of the Company's corporate governance system
shall ensure that the Board of Directors exercise its authority in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the
Articles of Incorporation, or the resolution of the shareholders' meeting. Specific management objectives are as
follows:

(1)The Company’s board of directors also places emphasis on gender equality and should include at least one
female director.

(2)The Company’s board of directors places emphasis on operational judgment, management and crisis
management capabilities. At least 2/3 of the members of the Board of Directors should be competent in the
relevant core items.

(3)Independent directors may not serve more than three consecutive terms in order to stay independent.

(4)The number of directors who are employees of the Company, its parent, subsidiary or sister company shall be
less than (including) 1/3 of the total number of directors for the purpose of supervision.

3.Progress in Diversity Goals for Board Members:

The Company's board members possess the knowledge, skills, and education necessary for business execution, as
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

well as the ability for management and decision-making. The Company continues to arrange a variety of continuing
education programs for its board members in order to enhance the quality of their decision-making and supervisory
responsibilities, and to further strengthen the functions of the board of directors.

The 24th board of directors of the company has 11 members, including 3 independent directors, to ensure the
independeny nature of the board of directors. There are 2 concurrent employees, accounting for 18.18% of the
board. The Company expects to add one female director in the future to achieve the goal of gender equality.

The members of the Board of Directors are highly qualified in management, possess relevant professional
backgrounds and the necessary professional knowledge, skills and education to perform their duties; at least 1/3 of
the members possess the relevant business execution capabilities for each of the 9 core items, and more than 80% of
the members possess core capabilities for each of the 3 keys items including operational judgment, management
and crisis management.

The Company also resolved at the 8th meeting of the 24th session of the Board of Directors on March 23, 2021 to
change the name of the Corporate Governance Committee to "Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee"
in order to strengthen the mechanism for the appointment of directors (independent directors) and to establish a
diverse and professional board of directors.

Sustainable management ability

International market perspective

Accounting and financial analysis

Achievement rate AGE OF DIRECTORS

Decision-making

Above 70
years of
age
2%

Leadership 90.91%

72.73%

Knowledge of the Industry 45.45%

Crisis management 81.82%

Business management 90.91% 60-70 years
of age
36%

81.82%

Business judgments

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
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Assessed areas

Operations

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice

Yes|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
Age of director Independent dircctor’s Core item
office term
Whether
or not
he/she is Abili :
Name of . . - ility to | Accounting An
Director Nationality | Gender | alsoan Below | 60-70 | Above make and Operational Crisis understanding . - . Sustainable
employee | 60 | years | 70 1st 2nd 3rd . . Industry Leadership | Decision-making
ploy B A - sound financial | management | management of . - management
of the years of years | session | session | session . . S i knowledge | . . ability ability i
ofage | age | of age business analysis ability ability international ability
Company 9 g g judgments ability markets
He”zc' T| roc. | Mae | v v v v v v v v v v v
o
George Y. | poc. | Mate v 4 v v v v
S.Ho
HUi\;vMing ROC. | Male v v v v v v v v v v
u
Josiua PHA Roc. | Mae | v v v v v v v v v v v
ung
ChiMing | e oc. | Male v v v v v v v v v v
Huang
PaoHe 1 poc. | Malke v v v v v v v v
Chen
Yen:iang ROC. | Male v v v v v v v v v
o
Chi‘?‘“‘* ROC. | Male v v v v v v v v v v
in
I-ChiLiu | ROC. | Male v v v v v v v v v
Chuang-Hsi | oc. | Mate v v v v v
Chang
Delr_'i':'u'"g ROC. | Male v v v v

4.The board of directors diversity policy is disclosed on the Company's website, please refer to the Company's
website/Investor Services/Corporate Governance/Board of Directors/Board of Directors Diversity Policy for
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Assessed areas

Operations

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice

Yes|No Summary PrlnCIples for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
specific management objectives and progress (https://www.tunghosteel.com/investors/member).
(I1NThe Company also has a corporate governance committee, in addition to the remuneration committee and audit
committee. It was resolved to amend the articles of incorporation at the 24th session (8th meeting) Board of
Directors on March 23, 2021, to change the name of the corporate governance committee to "Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committee”.
(1HDoes the
company
voluntarily
establish
other
functional
committees
in  addition
E:c:)mpensatio (1M1In 2017, the Company adopted the “Board of Directors' Performance Evaluation Guidelines”, which stipulates that
n committee the internal performance evaluation of the Board of Directors shall be conducted once a year, and that the
and  audit evaluation may be conducted by an external professional and independent organization or a team of external
committee? experts and scholars as necessary; the evaluation shall be disclosed on the Company's website, annual report and
(IhDoes  the the Market Observation Post System in accordance with regulations.
Company The performance evaluation r_esults of the_board of directors for the year 2020, the performance evaluation resqlts
have a set of the board members, functional committees and the board of directors as a whole are above the evaluation
of board of standards, indicating that the overall operation status is good.
directors The performance evaluation report of the board of directors will be submitted at the board of directors' meeting on
performanc March 23, 2021, for review and improvement and as a reference for reappointment nomination after being
e reviewed at the 4th session (3rd meeting) remuneration committee on March 19, 2021; the relevant evaluation
evaluation contents, evaluation methods, implementation status and evaluation results will be disclosed on the Company's
guidelines website (please refer to the Company's website/Investor Services/Corporate Governance/Board of Directors/Board
and its of Directors Performance Evaluation Report for 2020 (https://www.tunghosteel.com/investors/member)), the
evaluation Annual Report (the implementation status of the relevant board evaluation for 2020 is also listed in schedule 2 of
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https://www.tunghosteel.com/investors/member

Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

method,
conduct
performanc
e
evaluation
annually
and
regularly,
and report
the results
of
performanc
e
evaluation
to the
board of
directors to
serve  as
reference
of
individual
director's
remunerati
on and
nomination
for
reappointm
ent?
(IV)Does  the
company
evaluate

the annual report on the board of directors’ operations), and will be presented to shareholders at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors previously resolved at the 18th meeting of the 23rd session on December 31, 2019 to
approve the method of calculating the remuneration of directors, taking into account the results of the performance
evaluation of directors.

(IV)In accordance with the "Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies”, the
Company evaluates the independence and suitability of the appointed accountants once a year:

1.The certified accountant reports to the audit committee on a quarterly basis on the content of the performance
review/check and independence compliance.

2.A letter of independence is issued by the certified accountant.
3.The accounting department conducted a preliminary assessment of the independence and suitability of the
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Assessed areas

Operations

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice

Yes|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
the certified public accountants for the year 2020 by taking reference from the assessed items set forth in the R.O.C.
independen Professional Ethics Guidelines No. 10, "Integrity, Impartiality, Objectivity and Independence”, and Article 47 of
ce of CPAs the Certified Public Accountant Act. The evaluation report was submitted to the 2nd session (6th meeting) of the
on a Audit Committee for discussion and then proposed to the 24th session (8th meeting) Board of Directors Meeting
regular on March 23, 2021 for approval.
basis?
IV.Does the listed The Company has allocated a suitable and appropriate number of corporate governance personnel and approved the
company have appointment of Ms. Ruyu He as the Head of Corporate Governance at the 23rd session (12th meeting) of the Board of
a suitable and Directors on March 26, 2019, as the top executive responsible for corporate governance related matters.
appropriate Please refer to the Company's website/Investor Services/Corporate Governance/Board Operations/Corporate
number of Governance Officer (https://www.tunghosteel.com/investors/resolution) for the annual highlights of corporate
corporate governance-related business and the training of the corporate governance officer.
governance
personnel and
does the
company No
designate al v difference.
corporate
governance

officer to be
responsible for
corporate
governance
related matters
(including but
not limited to
providing
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

information
necessary for
directors and
supervisors to
perform their
operational
duties,
assisting
directors and
supervisors to
comply  with
laws and
regulations,
conducting
board and
shareholders'
meeting
related matters
in accordance
with the law,
and preparing
minutes of
board and
shareholders'
meetings,
etc.)?
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for

stakeholders,
and properly
respond to
corporate
social
responsibility
issues of
concern to the
stakeholders?

person responsible for handling the suggestions or reactions of the residents, and keep in touch with them at all
times to ensure adequate communication and to establish good relations.

(1M Customers: Hold monthly dealer meetings and conduct regular customer satisfaction surveys. Our sales staff visit
customers from time to time to gain an in-depth understanding of customer needs and obtain customer feedback.

(IV)Employees: Employees may file complaints and reports in writing, by e-mail, verbally or by telephone to the unit
supervisor or to the management of each plant. If the Company receives complaints or reports via designated units
or personnel, the Company will make a report and notify the independent directors in writing if significant
violations are found or if there is a risk of significant harm to the Company; if any violations by directors or
managers are substantiated after investigation, the Company will immediately disclose the relevant information on
the Market Observation Post System. The Company shall endeavor to protect the identity and safety of the
whistleblower against retaliation and any form of threats. An employee can also fully express his/her opinions
through the Company's labor union or regular labor meetings.

TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
V.Does the Tung Ho Steel values the rights and opinions of its stakeholders, establishes an open and direct communication channel
company with them, and publishes an annual CSR report. In addition to providing information on the management of Tung Ho
establish Steel's corporate social responsibility, Tung Ho Steel also provides information on issues that are of concern to its
communicatio stakeholders in order to continuously review and improve the performance of its corporate social responsibility.
n channels (I)Shareholder communication channel:
(including but 1.The shareholders' meeting is held in the second quarter of each year and motions are voted on a case-by-case
not limited to basis. Shareholders can exercise their voting rights through electronic means and fully participate in the voting
shareholders, process.
employees, 2.The annual report of the shareholders' meeting is issued annually for investors.
customers and 3.Hold corporate meetings on an irregular basis. Held two corporate meetings in 2020.
suppliers, etc.) 4.The shareholders' area of the Company's website (https://www.tunghosteel.com/shareowner/shareholders)
and build a discloses information related to shareholders’ meetings, announces revenue and significant information, the
designated contact window for the Company's spokesperson, proxy spokesperson, as well as stock transfer agent and stock |\,
section on its v transfer agent. Shareholders can respond by phone or email. difference.
website  for (ICommunity: Participate in local activities from time to time to listen to the opinions of the residents; designate a
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Operations Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Assessed areas L
Yes NO Summary PrInCIples fOI‘
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
(V)A stakeholder area has been set up on the Company's website (Company Website/Corporate Social
Responsibility/Sustainability Management/Stakeholders,
https://www.tunghosteel.com/CSR/mp_investment.html), providing a contact window for each stakeholder and a
complaint mailbox at:
1.Tungho mailboxtungho@tunghosteel.com
2.External stakeholder contact window
Customers: Weng Ruihong (02)2551-1100 ext.538 rhweng@tunghosteel.com
Shareholder and media: Shumei Kuo (02)2551-1100 ext.568 ksm@tunghosteel.com
Suppliers: Pam Mingchong(02)2551-1100 ext.604 pcm@tunghosteel.com
3.Internal stakeholder contact window
*Tungho mailbox: tungho@tunghosteel.com
*Independent directors’ feedbacl mailbox
I-Chi Liu 617ycliu@gmail.com
Chuang-Hsi Chang drachang@livemail.tw
Der-Ming Lieu dmlieu@hotmail.com
VI.Does the The Company’s shareholders' meeting will be handled by Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd’s stock agent department.
company Address: B1, No. 210, Sec. 3, Chengde Rd, Taipei City.
deS|gna.te a Tel: (02)2586-5859 (Representative code)
professional Website: https://www.yuanta.com No
shareholder v :
i difference.
service agency
to deal with
shareholder
affairs?
VIl.Information v No
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

disclosure

() Has the
company
established
a corporate
website to
disclose
informatio
n
regarding
the
company's
financial,
business
and
corporate
governanc
e status?

(1Did the
company
adopt
other
informatio
n
disclosure
methods
(such  as
establishin

(DThe Company has set up a website to disclose the important rules and regulations of the Company, as well as the
related information and execution of financial, business and corporate governance.

(1) The Company's information is disclosed in the following manner:

1.We have set up a website in English and Chinese, and appointed dedicated staff to collect and disclose relevant
information.

2.Designated a spokesperson and an acting spokesperson.

3.The Company's financial information is disclosed to public investors through the Company's website and the
Market Observation Post System.

4.Information and presentation materials related to the corporate meeting are announced on the Company's
website for investors' reference.

difference.
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

g English
websites,
assign
dedicated
personnel
to collect
and
disclose
company
data,
implement
the
spokespers
on system,
upload the
investor
conference
processes
to the
company's
website,
etc.)?
(11NDid the
Company
announce
and report
the annual
financial
report

(1M The financial reports for the first, second and third quarters as well as the operating results for each month were
announced and reported within the prescribed time limits.
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

within two
months
after  the
end of the
fiscal
year? Did
the
Company
announce
and report
the  first,
second,
and third
quarter
financial
reports and
the
monthly
operating
conditions
well in
advance of
the
required
deadline?

VIILIs there any
other
important

(NDThe company has formulated Management Regulations for Transactions with Related Parties. Each related party and
the Company have complied with such regulations and recused from matters of conflict of interests.

(1) The Company established a Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles in March 2019, which was disclosed on

No
difference.
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Operations Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Assessed areas oL
Yes|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons
information the Market Observation Post System and the Company's website.
to facilitate a (1) The establishment of the Company's risk management policy was approved at the 24th session (3rd meeting) of the
better Board of Directors on June 22, 2020; the establishment of the "Risk Management Policy and Procedures” was
understandin approved at the 24th session (5th meeting) of the Board of Directors on November 12 of the same year.
g of the (IV)The amendment to the "Intellectual Property Management Regulations™ was approved at the 24th seesion (4th
company's meeting) of the Board of Directors' Meeting on August 13, 2020, which incorporates intellectual property
corporate management into the corporate governance structure and elevates it’s supervision level to that of the Board of
practices (V)The "Intellectual Property Management Plan in Conjunction with Operational Objectives" was formulated in 2020
(including and submitted to the 24th session (6th meeting) of the Board of Directors on December 22, 2020.
but not (VI)The "Compensation Policy", "Greenhouse Gas Management Strategy, Reduction Targets and Plans" and "Supplier
limited  to Management Policy” were formulated in 2020 and approved at the 24th session (6th meeting) of the Board of
employee Directors on December 22, 2020.
rights (VII)Directors will participate in various training programs as required and will disclose the status of their training on
employee the Company's website and the Market Observation Post System.
wellness (VI The company has a systematic approach for collecting, analyzing and integrating business information pertaining
investor to exchange rates, market situations and the economy and for formulating necessary strategies. Furthermore, the
relations company convenes meetings to track and review such information to identify risks so that necessary response
supplier ' measures can be taken.
relations (IX)The company has purchased liability insurances for directors to reduce and disperse the risks of directors from
richs ’ of causing major damages to the company and its shareholders due to illegal actions; After the policy is renewed for
g the year 2020, it will be submitted to the 24th session (5th meeting) Board of Directors on November 12, 2020.
stakeholders . . . .
. (X)Please reference the operations overview section of the annual report for related comments on laborer and supplier
continuing

education of
directors and
supervisors,
the

relations.
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Operations Deviations
from
Corporate
Bout-Practice
est-
Assessed areas ves|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed

Companies
and reasons

implementat

ion of risk

management

policies and

risk

evaluation

standards,

the

implementat

ion of

customer

relations

policies, and

purchasing

insurance

for directors

and

supervisors)

2

IX.Please describe the improvements that have been made based on the corporate governance evaluation released by the Corporate Governance Center of the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation in the most recent year, and propose priorities and measures to enhance areas that have not yet been improved.
The following is a description of the evaluation indicators based on the results of the Company's 7th Corporate Governance Review, for which the Company did
not achieve the required scores but has made improvements.
(D(Indicator 2.2): Does the Company have a policy on diversity of board members? Does the Company disclose the specific management objectives and
implementation of the diversity policy on the Company's website and annual report?
Improvement progress: The Company has established a policy on diversity of board members, and the contents of the "Specific Management Objectives
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Assessed areas

Operations Deviations
from
Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Yes|No Summary Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies
and reasons

and Progress of the Policy on Diversity of Board Members" have been amended and disclosed on the Company's website and
annual report.
(I (Indicator 2.3): Are the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager or other person of equivalent rank (top manager) not the same person
or are they related to each other as spouses or first degree relatives?

Improvement progress: The Chairman of the Board of Directors also serves as the President of the Company, and the streamlining of management powers
leads to smooth operations. In order to maintain the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, it is necessary to maintain this
model for the time being, where more than half of the board of directors do not serve as employees or managers for supervision
purposes; however, considering the need for long-term and sound corporate governance, we are actively nurturing a successor to
the President and will appoint one at an appropriate time depending on actual requirements.

(1 (Indicator 2.6): Does the company's board of directors include at least one female director?

Improvement progress: The Company also resolved at the 24th session (8th meeting) of the Board of Directors on March 23, 2021 to change the name of
the Corporate Governance Committee to "Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee” in order to strengthen the
mechanism for the appointment of directors (independent directors) and to establish a diverse and professional board of directors.
In the future, if the opportunity arises, the Company will add one female director to achieve the goal of gender equality.

(IV)(Indicator 2.23): Does the Company's Board of Directors' performance evaluation guidelines, as approved by the Board of Directors, specify that an
external evaluation will be conducted at least once every three years? Will the evaluation will be conducted in accordance with the
deadlines specified in the plan? Will the implementation status and evaluation results be disclosed on the Company's website or in the
annual report?

Improvement progress: The Company will amend the Board of Directors' Performance Evaluation Guidelines in 2021 to specify that external evaluations
will be conducted at least once every three years, that evaluations will be conducted in accordance with the deadlines set forth in
the Regulations, and that the status of implementation and evaluation results will be announced on the Company's website or in
the annual report.

(V)(Indicator 3.1): Did the company follow the procedures for investigation and public handling of any material information of listed companies and was the

Company subject to penalties for any breach of contract?

Improvement progress: The Company will continue to pay attention to the verification and public handling procedures of material information to avoid

oversight and omission of reporting.
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Board of Directors Performance Evaluation Guidelines

Article 1 In order to ensure corporate governance and enhance the functions of the Company's Board of Directors,
and to establish performance targets to strengthen the efficiency of the Board of Directors' operations, the
Company establishes these rules and regulations for compliance.

Article 2 The main evaluation cycle, evaluation period, evaluation scope and method, evaluation implementation
unit, evaluation procedures and other matters to be followed in the performance evaluation method of the
Company’s Board of Directors shall be in accordance with the provisions of these Regulations.

Article 3 The Company shall conduct internal board performance evaluation annually in accordance with the
evaluation procedures and evaluation indicators stipulated in these guideines. The Company may appoint
an external professional and independent organization or a team of external experts and scholars to
conduct the evaluation as necessary.

Article 4 The Company's board evaluation scope may cover the evaluation of the board as a whole, individual
directors and functional committees.

Methods of evaluations include the internal evaluation of the board, self-evaluation by individual board
members, and evaluation by appointed external professional institutions, experts, or other appropriate
methods.

Article 5 The Remuneration Committee of the Company is the review unit of the Board of Directors for
performance evaluation.

Article 6 At the end of each year, the Board of Directors' Meeting Affairs Unit shall collect information related to
the activities of the Board of Directors and distribute the "Self-Assessment Questionnaire for Board
Members" (Table 1-A-01-17-1). After the questionnaires are collected, the evaluation will be conducted
according to the evaluation indexes of this method. The evaluation results will be computed and sent to the
Remuneration Committee for review together with the "Performance Evaluation Self-Assessment
Questionnaire for the Functional Committee” (Exhibit 11-A-01-17-2) and the "Performance Evaluation
Self-Assessment Questionnaire for the Board of Directors™ (Exhibit 111-A-01-17-3). The results of the
evaluation shall be submitted to the Board of Directors at its most recent meeting as a basis for review and
improvement.

Article 7 The Company shall comply with the following requirements if it arranges for an external evaluation
agency or a team of external experts and experts to conduct performance evaluation of the Board of
Directors:

I.The external evaluation organization or team of external experts should be professional and
independent.

I1.The external evaluation institution shall be an institution or management consulting firm mainly
engaging in the provision of services for educational and training programs for board of directors and
improvement of corporate governance of enterprises, as well as the writing of external evaluation
analysis reports.

I11.The panel of external experts and scholars shall appoint at least three experts or scholars specialized in
the fields of board of directors or corporate governance to conduct evaluations of board performance
of the company and prepare external evaluation analysis reports. The results of the external evaluation
shall be reported to the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at the most recent
meeting.

Article 8 The Company's Board Performance Evaluation shall include at least the following five major aspects:
|.Participation in the operation of the company.

I1.Improvement of the quality of the board of directors' decision making.

I11.Composition and structure of the board of directors.

IV.Election and continuing education of the directors.
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V.Internal control.
The criteria for evaluating the performance of the board members should cover, at a minimum, the
following six aspects:
I.Familiarity with the goals and missions of the company.
I1.Awareness of the duties of a director.
I11.Participation in the operation of the company.
IV.Management of internal relationship and communication.
V.The director's professionalism and continuing education.
VI.Internal control.
The Functional Committee’s Performance Evaluation shall include at least the following five major
aspects:
|.Participation in the operation of the company.
I1.Awareness of the duties of the functional committee.
I11.Improve the quality of functional committee decisions.
IVV.Composition and selection of functional committee members.

V.Internal control.
The indexes of board performance evaluation shall be determined based on the operation and
needs of the Company and suitable and appropriate for evaluations by the company. The
Remuneration Committee will review and make recommendations on a regular basis.

Scoring criteria may be modified and adjusted based on the company's needs. The weighted scoring
method may be adopted based on the aspects of evaluation.

Article 9 The evaluation results of each evaluation questionnaire according to this method are:
I.A score of 90 or above is considered "excellent".
I1.A score of 80 or more to less than 90 is considered "above satisfactory".
I11.A score of 70 or more to less than 80 is considered "satisfactory".
IV.A score of 60 or more to less than 70 is considered "less than satisfactory".

V.A score of less than 60 is “room for improvement”

Article 10 The results of the Board Performance Evaluation shall be used as a reference for the selection or
nomination of directors; and the results of the performance evaluation of individual directors shall be
used as a reference for setting their individual remuneration.

Article 11 This policy shall be disclosed on the Company's website, annual report and Market Observation Post
System.

The Company should disclose the content of the Board Performance Evaluation, the evaluation method,
the implementation status and the evaluation results in the annual report, and submit the results of the
performance evaluation to the shareholders' meeting. If external institution or experts are appointed to
conduct evaluations of board performance, the Company, in the annual report, discloses the names of the
external evaluation institution, names and expertise of the experts, and indicates if the external institution
and experts have business dealings with the Company and if they are independent.

Article 12 These Rules shall come into effect by resolution of the board of directors. The same applies to all
subsequent amendments.

Article 13 These Rules were formulated on December 18, 2017.
The 1st amendment was on December 18, 2018.
The 2nd amendment was on December 31, 2019.
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Table 1 (A-01-17-1)
Self-Assessment Questionnaire for Directors of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation for year 0000

Evaluation results

Evaluation Items

1
Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

A.Familiarity with the goals and missio

ns of the company

1.1 understand that integrity is a core
value of our company.

2.1 understand the company's policies
and goals for future development.

3.1 understand the characteristics and
risks of the industry in which the
Company operates.

B.Awareness of the duties of a director

4.1 understand the legal obligations of
a director.

5.1 understand the duties of a director
and have exercised a high degree of
self-discipline and prudence in
carrying out my duties and
responsibilities with due diligence and
good stewardship.

6.1 am familiar with the operation and
environment of the company.

7.1 shall observe the duty of
confidentiality with respect to the
internal information of the Company
obtained in the course of my duties as
an Executive Director.

8.1 have not improperly interfered
with the Company's decisions or
impeded its business activities, and |
have refrained from interfering with
my personal interests.

C.Participation in the operation of the ¢

ompany

9.1 have physically attended this year's
Board meeting (excluding attendance

by proxy).

5 points:  100%
attendance rate
4 points: 90% and

above attendance
rate
3 points: 80% and
above attendance
rate
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Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1
Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

2 points: 70% and
above attendance
rate

1 point: Less than
70% attendance rate

10.1 have personally attended this
year's Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting.

5 points:
Attendance:
1 point: Absent

11.1 will read and understand the
meeting information before attending
so that I can fully perform my duties
at the Board meeting.

12.1 have devoted sufficient time to
board-related matters.

13.1 actively participate in the
discussion of motions at Board
meetings and provide specific
suggestions in a timely manner in
order to make effective contributions.

14.1 read the contents of the Board of
Directors' meeting minutes carefully
and confirm that they have properly
recorded the discussions, reservations
Oor concerns.

15.1 am able to exercise professional
and appropriate judgment to
understand the dynamics of the
company's management team and the
industry environment to which it
belongs.

16.1 have assessed and monitored the
existence or potential risks of the
Company and have paid attention to
the implementation and tracking of
internal control systems.

17.We understand and monitor the
appropriateness of the Company's
operating reports, accounting system,
financial position and financial
statement presentation.

18.1 do not hold any directorships in
more than five listed companies and |
do not hold any independent
directorships in more than three other
publicly traded companies.

5 points: Not more
than the required
number

1 point: More than
the required number
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Evaluation results

Evaluation Items

1
Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

D.Management of internal relationship

and communication

19.1 regularly communicate with the
management team on information
related to the company's operations
and maintain good interaction with
them.

20.Before the Board of Directors
makes its decisions, | will fully
consider the opinions of the
management team, make independent
and objective judgments and
decisions.

21.1 communicate well with other
Board members when the Board of
Directors’ meetings are held and
respect different opinions.

22.1 have had good communication

with the certified accountant.

E.The director's professionalism and co

ntinuing education

23.1 have the necessary expertise to
execute the decisions of the Board of
Directors.

24.In the current year, the number of
hours of study has been fulfilled in
accordance with the "Key Points of
Continuing Education for Directors
and Supervisors of Listed and OTC
Companies".

5 points: More than
6 hours of training
4 points: 6 hours of
training

1 point: Less than 6
hours of training

25.1 continue to pursue a wide range
of courses outside of corporate
governance and professional
competencies in order to refine my
professional knowledge and skills.

F.Internal control

26.Confirmed recusal in the event that
the relevant motion requires recusal of
interest.

27.The effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management
(including supervision and
management of subsidiaries) is

regularly evaluated and monitored,
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Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1 5 Note
Strongl 2 3 4 Strongl
. gy Disagree | Average | Disagree aly
disagree agree

System" is issued.

and the "Statement of Internal Control

28.1 am able to understand and
monitor the company's accounting

reports, audit reports and their
tracking.

system, financial status and financial

New item added

Other supplementary explanations

Note 1.  Please specify in the comment box if the score of each indicator cannot be fully expressed.
Note 2.  The evaluation period is from January 1 to December 31 of the year under evaluation.

Note 3.  The evaluation period shall be completed and reported to the Board of Directors by the end of the
first quarter of the following year from evaluation.

Note 4.  Evaluation score explanation:

(1) Corresponding scores of evaluation results: 5 for strongly agree, 4 for agree, 3 for agree, 2 for disagree,
and 1 for strongly disagree. The scores were summed and converted into percentages; score = (total

score of assessment results + total score of assessment indicators) X 100.

(2) Performance evaluation results:

Evaluation scores Evaluation results
Above 90 Excellent
ints or more ~ | han .
80 points 0 ore ess tha Above satisfactory
90 points
7 ints or more ~ | han .
0 points o ore ess tha Satisfactory
80 points
60 points or mo_r € ~ less than Less than satisfactory
70 points
Below 60 Room for improvement

(Signature and date of filling out the form)

(The following is to be filled in by the executive unit)

Evaluation Evaluation score
Evaluation indicators indicators full
results
score
A. Familiarity with the goals and 15
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missions of the company

B. Awareness of the duties of a
director

C. Participation in the operation
of the company

D. Management of internal
relationship and 20
communication

E. The director's professionalism

25

50

. . 1

and continuing education >

F. Internal control 15
Total 140

Evaluation scores: point

Performance evaluation results: [ JExcellent [ JAbove satisfactory [ |Satisfactory [ JLess than satisfactory
[]JRoom for improvement
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Table 2 (A-01-17-2)
Self-evaluation Questionnaire for ooo committee of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation for year
0000

Evaluation results

Evaluation Items 1 2 3 4 5 Note

S'_[rongly Disagree | Average | Disagree SHireiy
disagree agree

A.Participation in the operation of the company

1. The average actual attendance of functional 5 points:
committees by members (excluding delegated 100%
attendance). attendance

rate

4 points:

90% and

above

attendance
rate

3 points:

80% and

above

attendance
rate

2 points:

70% and

above

attendance
rate

1 point: Less

than 70%

attendance

rate

2. Members have read and understood the
information before the meeting so that they
can fully perform their duties during the
meeting.

3. All members are able to make effective
contributions to the functional committees.

4. This functional committee conducts regular
meetings.

B.Awareness of the duties of the functional committee

5. The various rights and responsibilities of the
functional committees are clear and
appropriate.

6. The functional committee is able to assess and
monitor the existence or potential risks of the
company.

7. The Functional Committee is able to make
timely, professional and objective
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Evaluation results
Evaluation Items 1 2 3 4 5 Note
Strongly | . . Strongly
. Disagree | Average | Disagree
disagree agree
recommendations to the Board of Directors for
discussion and decision making.

8. The Audit Committee and the certified public Applicable to
accountants have had sufficient the Audit
communication and exchange of views (a Committee
meeting is required in case of implementation
of new accounting standards or significant
adjustments to the financial statements).

9. The Audit Committee regularly evaluates the Applicable to
independence and suitability of the appointed the Audit
accountants. Committee

10.The Remuneration Committee establishes and Applicable to
regularly reviews the policies, systems, the
standards and structures for performance Remuneration
evaluation and remuneration of directors and Committee
managers.

11.The Remuneration Committee periodically Applicable to
reviews and submits to the Board of Directors the
for approval the performance evaluation Remuneration
standards of the Company's directors and sets Committee
the directors' remuneration based on the results
of the performance evaluation.

C.Improve the quality of functional committee decisions.

12.The information provided by the Company to
the Functional Committee is comprehensive,
timely and of such quality as to enable the
Committee to carry out its duties successfully.
If necessary, relevant managers, internal
auditors, accountants, legal advisors or other
personnel will be invited to attend the meeting.

13.Sufficient discussion time for the Functional
Committee.

14.The Company resolution submitted to the
functional committee is appropriate.

15.1n the case of a motion requiring recusal of a
member's interest, the member’s recusal has
been confirmed and the minutes of the meeting
have been recorded.

16.The minutes of functional committee meetings
appropriately record discussions and, where
appropriate, individual or collective
reservations or concerns.

17.Each functional committee meeting’s
resolution has appropriate follow-up
implementation.
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Evaluation results

Evaluation Items 1 2 3 4 5 Note

S'_[rongly Disagree | Average | Disagree Sy
disagree agree

18.This functional committee has regular and
efficient performance evaluation.

D.Composition and selection of functional committee members

19.The membership of the functional committee
is appropriately composed and has the required
expertise for decision-making processes.

20.Members of the Functionality Committee
maintain their independence during their term
of office.

21.The selection of functional committee
members is based on the actual needs of the
Company, taking into full consideration the
skills, knowledge and experience of the board
members, as well as the performance
evaluation results of the functional committee.

E.Internal control

22.The Audit Committee is able to effectively Applicable
evaluate and monitor the effectiveness of to the Audit
various internal control systems and risk Committee
management.

23.The internal control system approved by the Applicable
Audit Committee contains five major to the Audit
elements/principles and covers control Committee

practices for all operating activities and
transaction cycles.

24.The Audit Committee understands and Applicable
monitors the Company's accounting system, to the Audit
financial position and financial reports, audit Committee

reports, and their tracking status.

Other supplementary explanations

Chairman evaluation

Note 1.Please specify in the comment box if the score of each indicator cannot be fully expressed.
Note 2.The evaluation period is from January 1 to December 31 of the year under evaluation.

Note 3.The evaluation period shall be completed and reported to the Board of Directors by the end of the first quarter
of the following year from evaluation.

Note 4.Evaluation score explanation:
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(1)Corresponding scores of evaluation results: 5 for strongly agree, 4 for agree, 3 for agree, 2 for disagree, and 1 for
strongly disagree. The scores were summed and converted into percentages; score = (total score of assessment results
+ total score of assessment indicators) X 100.

(2)Performance evaluation results

Evaluation scores Evaluation results

Above 90 Excellent

80 points or more ~ less than .

P . Above satisfactory

90 points

70 points or mo_re ~ less than Satisfactory
80 points

60 points or mo.re ~ less than Less than satisfactory
70 points
Below 60 Room for improvement

(Signature and date of filling out the form)

(The following is to be filled in by the executive unit)

Full scores for
Full scores for Full scores for trl:e (S:g? ?)sratoe
the Audit the Remuneration P Evaluatio
. . . Governance
Evaluation indicators Committee Committee . n score
Committee
assessment assessment results
L L assessment
indicators indicators L
indicators
A Participation in the operation of 20 20 20
the company
B.Awareness of t_he duties of the o5 o5 15
functional committee
C.Imp_rove the _qgallty of functional 35 35 35
committee decisions.
D.Co_mposmon a_nd selection of 15 15 15
functional committee members
E.Internal control 15 - -
Total 110 95 85

Evaluation scores: point

Performance evaluation results: [_|Excellent [ _JAbove satisfactory [ |Satisfactory [ ]Less than satisfactory [ JRoom for
improvement
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Table 3 (A-01-17-3)

Self-evaluation Questionnaire for the Board of Directors of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation for year 0000

Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1

Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

A. Participation in the operation of the company

1. Physical attendance of Board members at
Board meetings during the year (excluding
attendance by proxy).

5 points:
100%
attendance
rate

4 points: 90%
and above
attendance
rate

3 points: 80%
and above
attendance
rate

2 points: 70%
and above
attendance
rate

1 point: Less
than 70%
attendance
rate

2. Attendance of board members at shareholders'
meetings during the year.

5 points:
100%
attendance
rate

4 points: 90%
and above
attendance
rate

3 points: 80%
and above
attendance
rate

2 points: 70%
and above
attendance
rate

1 point: Less
than 70%
attendance
rate

3. Members of the Board were able to
understand the content of the motion before
the meeting and actively participated in the
discussion of the motion.

80




Evaluation results

Evaluation ltems 1 5 3 4 5 Note

Strongly | ~: . Strongly
disagree Disagree | Average | Disagree agree

4. The interaction between the Board members
and the management team is good.

5. The Board of Directors has ensured that the
management team complies with legal
regulations and guidelines.

6. Board members are able to make an effective
contribution to the Board.

7. The Board of Directors continues to promote
the formulation of corporate
governance-related regulations, support the
Company's participation in corporate
evaluation, and adequately protect
shareholders' rights and interests in order to
enhance corporate governance.

8. The members of the Board of Directors have
sufficient understanding of the internal
environment, the management team and the
dynamics of the industry in which the
Company operates.

9. The Board of Directors is able to evaluate and
monitor management strategies as well as the
existence or potential risks of the Company,
and monitors the implementation and tracking
of internal control systems.

10.The Board of Directors ensures that it
understands and monitors the adequacy of the
Company's operating reports, accounting
system, financial position and presentation of
financial statements.

11.There is good communication between the
Board of Directors and the certified
accountant.

12.The Board of Directors regularly reviews the
management performance of the management
team and provides timely guidance.

13.The Board is able to obtain adequate and
timely reports on the performance of the
Company's operations and to keep abreast of
any adverse trends.

B.Improvement of the quality of the board of directors' decision making

14.The frequency of the Board of Directors' 5 points: Held
meetings is appropriate. for more than

6 times

4 points: Held

for more than
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Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1

Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

5 times

3 points: Held
for more than
4 times

2 points: Held
for more than
3 times

1 point: Held

for less than 3
times

15.The information provided by the Company to
the Board of Directors for its proceedings is
comprehensive, timely, and of such quality as
to enable the members of the Board of
Directors (including the independent
directors) to perform their duties successfully.

16.The Board of Directors' meeting minutes
appropriately record the content of
discussions, individual or collective
reservations or concerns.

17.Appropriate time is allocated for each motion
at the Board meeting to facilitate adequate
discussion by the Directors.

18.The Company submits motions to the Board
of Directors for discussion as appropriate. (As
required by law or to be brought to the Board
of Directors for discussion as determined by
the approval authority of the Company.)

19.All independent directors were present at the
Board of Directors' meeting for the resolution
which required the attendance of all
independent directors by law.

5 points: All
in-person
attendance

3 points: With
proxy
attendance

20.The Company provides a good
communication channel for the independent
directors to properly communicate with the
directors, accountants, auditing unit and the
management team.

21.Each resolution by the Board of Directors has
appropriate follow-up implementation.

22.1n the event that the relevant motion requires
the recusal of a director due to conflict of
interest, the relevant director has either
recused himself/herself, or the chairman had
requested for the recusal and recorded the
proceedings.
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Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1

Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

23.The Board of Directors, Board of Directors
members, and functional committees perform
regular and efficient performance evaluations
and disclose the results on the Company's
website or in the annual report.

C.Composition and structure of the Board of Direc

tors

24.The Board of Directors has established the
number of independent directorships in
compliance with the relevant regulations.

5 points: The
number of
seats satisfies
the
requirements
1 point: The
number of
seats does not
satisfy the
requirements

25.The Company's independent directors possess
the requisite professional knowledge and
maintain their independence during their term
in office.

26.Members of the Board of Directors do not
hold any directorships in more than five listed
companies and do not hold any independent
directorships in more than three other publicly
traded companies.

5 points: Not
more than the
required
number
1 point: More
than the
required
number

27.The Board of Directors has established
appropriate and sufficient functional
committees.

28.The existing functional committees are
capable of performing the duties appointed by
the Board of Directors.

29.The Company has a policy of diversity for the
composition of the Board of Directors in
accordance with the development needs of the
Company.

30.No more than two members of the Board of
Directors shall be related to each other as
spouses or two-degree relatives, and the
Board of Directors must be able to operate
objectively and independently.

31.The Board of Directors’ composition is
appropriate and has the necessary expertise in
the decision-making process.
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Evaluation results

Evaluation ltems o 1 I 5 3 4 | 5 I Note
rongly | . ; rongly
disagree Disagree | Average | Disagree agree

D.Election and continuing education of the directors

32.The Company has a rigorous and transparent
process for the election of directors and a
succession plan.

33.The election process of board members is
based on the criteria of the Company's board
member diversity policy.

34.The selection process of board members takes
into account the results of individual directors'
performance evaluation.

35.The selection process of the Board members
is based on the actual requirements of the
Company and with due consideration to the
various skills, knowledge and experience of
the Board members.

36.The Board has arranged appropriate job
orientation for new directors to enable them to
understand their duties and familiarize
themselves with the operations and
environment of the Company.

37.Members of the Board of Directors continue
to pursue diversified courses in addition to
corporate governance and professional
competency, and have fulfilled the required
number of hours of study as stipulated in the
"Guidelines of Continuing Education for
Directors and Supervisors at Listed
Companies".

38.Training hours for board members are
formally documented and there is a
continuous professional development program
to enhance the knowledge and skills of board
members.

E.Internal control

39.The Board of Directors ensures that
management integrates risk assessment and
control into the corporate decision-making
process.

40.The Board of Directors regularly evaluates
and monitors the implementation and tracking
status of each internal control system, reviews
the effective implementation of risk
management policies, and issues a "Statement
of Internal Control System".
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Evaluation Items

Evaluation results

1

Strongly
disagree

2
Disagree

3
Average

4
Disagree

5
Strongly
agree

Note

41.The internal control system approved by the
Board of Directors contains five major
elements/principles and covers control
practices for all operating activities and
transaction cycles.

42.The Company’s Head of auditor attends the
Board of Directors' meetings and presents
internal audit reports in accordance with the
regulations, and delivers the audit reports
(including follow-up reports) to the audit
committee and independent directors.

43.The appointment, removal, evaluation, and
remuneration of internal auditors shall be
submitted to the Board of Directors or signed
by the Head of Audit for approval by the
Chairman.

44.The Board regularly evaluates the
independence and suitability of the certified
accountant to ensure that the objectivity and
independence of the accountant is maintained
when providing non-audit services.

45.Members of the Board of Directors are able to
understand and monitor the company's
accounting system, financial status and
financial reports, audit reports and their
tracking.

Other supplementary explanations

Chairman evaluation

Note 1.Please specify in the comment box if the score of each indicator cannot be fully expressed.
Note 2.The evaluation period is from January 1 to December 31 of the year under evaluation.

Note 3.The evaluation period shall be completed and reported to the Board of Directors by the end of the first quarter

of the following year from evaluation.
Note 4.Evaluation score explanation:

(1)Corresponding scores of evaluation results: 5 for strongly agree, 4 for agree, 3 for agree, 2 for disagree,
and 1 for strongly disagree. The scores were summed and converted into percentages; score = (total score
of assessment results + total score of assessment indicators) X 100.

(2)Performance evaluation results:

Evaluation scores

Evaluation results

Above 90 Excellent

80 points or more ~ less than
90 points

Above satisfactory
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70 points or more ~ less than .
80 points Satisfactory

60 points or mo_r € ~ less than Less than satisfactory
70 points
Below 60 Room for improvement

(Signature and date of filling out the form)

(The following is to be filled in by the executive unit)

Evaluation Evaluation score
Evaluation indicators indicators full
results
score
A. Participation in the operation 65

of the company

B. Improvement of the quality of
the board of directors' 50
decision making

C. Composition and structure of

the Board of Directors 40

D. Election and continuing 35
education of the directors

E. Internal control 35

Total 225

Evaluation scores: point

Performance evaluation results: [_|Excellent [ _]JAbove satisfactory [ |Satisfactory [ JLess than satisfactory[ JRoom for
improvement
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(IV)If the company has established a remuneration committee, the committee's
composition and operations must be disclosed.

1.Remuneration Committee Member Information

Condition Also served
as a member
of
Has.at least 5 years of work Meet the independence requirement remuneration
experience and meet one of the . Note
- . N (Note) committees
following professional qualifications
for how
many other
companies
Above Certified Have work
public and |judge, experience
private prosecutor, in
Identity college  [lawyer, commerce,
lecturer accountant, or (law,
data are holder of finance, or
required  |professional |accounting
for qualification |ora 1123456 |7 ]|8]9]10
business, |relevant to the [profession
Name law, Company's  [necessary
finance,  |operations for the
accounting, business
or of the
company Company
operations.
. Re-appointed
Indgpendent Chuang-Hsi v v Jlvlvlslylvlslvlv v 0 on Jupnpe 3
Directors Chang 2020
Re-appointed
Independent| | 0 iy v v |vlv|vl|vlv]|v|v|v]|v]|v + Jonmes
Directors
2020
Period in
Others Kuntong v slolvlivslvlvlslvivly 0 office ended
Yu on May 19,
2020
. Appointed
Others  |CTENIMING| vlv|v|v|v|v|v|v|v]|v o Jonwunes
Zhu 2020

Note: If any of the following conditions listed below apply to a member within 2 years before being elected or during the member's
tenure, please write a *v"" in the open space under each condition code.

(1)Not an employee of the company or its affiliates.

(2)Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates (This does not apply to those who are independent directors of the
Company or its parent company, or of a subsidiary with the same parent company in accordance with the laws of the country it is based
in).

(3)Shareholders holding more than 1% of the total issued shares of the company under another name except him/herself, his/her spouse or
children (minor). Those holding such amount of shares on behalf of others; or the top 10 natural person shareholders.

(4)Not (1) a professional manager listed, a spouse, relative of second degree or closer, or direct blood relative of third degree or closer to any
person listed in (2), (3).

(5)A director, supervisor or employee of a corporate shareholder who indirectly holds more than 5% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company, is listed as one of the top five shareholders, or who designates a representative as a director or supervisor of the Company
in accordance with Article 27(1) or (2) of the Company Act (except in cases where the independent directors of the Company and its
parent company, subsidiary or subsidiary of the same parent company established in accordance with this Act or the laws of the local
country are concurrently appointed)

(6)A director, supervisor or employee of another company that is not controlled by the same person as the company's directors or more than
half of the voting shares (except in the case for independent directors of the company or its parent company, subsidiaries or subsidiaries
of the same parent company established under this Act or the laws of the local country who serve concurrently with each other).

(7)A director (director), supervisor (supervisor), or employee of another company or organization who is not the same person or spouse of
the chairman, president, or equivalent of the company (except in the case for independent directors of the company or its parent company,
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subsidiaries or subsidiaries of the same parent company established under this Act or the laws of the local country who serve concurrently
with each other).

(8)A director (director), supervisor (supervisor), manager or shareholder holding more than 5% of the shares of a specific company or
organization that does not have financial or business dealings with the Company (Except for cases where the specific company or
organization holds more than 20% but not more than 50% of the total issued shares of the Company and is an independent director of the
Company and its parent company, subsidiary or subsidiary of the same parent company established in accordance with this Act or the
laws of the local country that is concurrently appointed).

(9)Professionals, sole proprietors, partners, directors (directors), supervisors (supervisors), managers, and their spouses who do not provide
audit or remuneration for the Company or its affiliates for business, legal, financial, accounting, or other related services for less than
NT$500,000 in the last two years. However, members of the Remuneration Committee, the Public Tender Offer Review Committee or
the Special Committee on Mergers and Acquisitions who perform their duties and responsibilities in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Act or the relevant laws and regulations of the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act are not subject to this limitation.

(10)Does not meet the criteria listed in any Sections of Article 30 of the Company Act.

2. Operation status information for the remuneration committee
(1) The company's remuneration committee comprised 3 members.
(2) Current term for the members: The term of the 24th board of directors expires on June 3,
2020. The latest remuneration committee has held three meetings (A); member qualifications
and attendance records are as follows:

Title Name Actual Attendance by Actual Note
attendance proxy attendance rate
number (B) (%) (B/A)
Chuang-Hsi Re-appointed on June 3,
Convener Chang 3 0 100.00 2020
Committee - Re-appointed on June 3,
Members I-Chi Liu 3 0 100.00 2020
Committee | Kuntong Period in office ended on
Members Yu 1 0 100.00 May 19, 2020
Committee | Chengming Appointed on June 3,
Members Zhu 2 0 100.00 2020

Other matters that should be recorded:

I.If the board meeting does not adopt or revise the remuneration committee's proposals, the board meeting's
date, period, motion contents, and resolution decisions as well as the method in which the company
handles the compensation committee's opinions shall be disclosed in detail (e.g. if the salary rate adopted
by the board committee is superior to that proposed by the remuneration committee, the differences and
reasons shall be explained):

The Company’s
Remuneration handling of the
D_al_tiemaend Content of motion Commit_tee Rem_uneratio_n
Resolution Committee review
opinions
1.Report on the 2019 | All members present | The resolution of the
distribution of | agreed to approve the | board of directors was
remunerations to | proposal and submit | approved as written.
employees and it to the board of
2020.02.21 directors. directors for
3rd session resolution.
(7th meeting) | 2.2019 Board of | All members present | Acknowledged by the
Directors agreed to approve the | Board of Directors
Performance proposal and submit
Evaluation it to the board of
Guidelines directors for
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resolution.

3.Amend some
provisions of the "
Employee

Remuneration
Method" of the
Company.

Proposal passed.

Amended in accordance
with the content of the
resolution, announced
and implemented.

2020.06.16

4th session
(1st meeting)

(1)To

review the
remuneration of the
24th director of the
Company.

All members present
agreed to approve the
proposal and submit
it to the board of

The resolution of the
board of directors was
approved as written.

independent director
and a member of the
various  functional
committees.

accordance with law,
and with the consent
of the Chairman and
in consultation with
the remaining
members present, the
case was submitted
to the Board of
Directors for
resolution.

directors for
resolution.

(2)To consider the | The Chairman, | The resolution of the
remuneration of | Chuang-Hsi  Chang, | board of directors was
Chuang-Hsi Chang |was  recused  in|approved as written.
as an independent | accordance with the
director and a|law, and I-Chi Liu,
member  of  the | the acting Chairman,
various  functional | presided over the
committees. discussion and voting

of this case. With the
consent  of  the
remaining members
present, the proposal
was submitted to the
Board of Directors
for resolution.

(3)To consider the | Committee member | The resolution of the
remuneration of [ I-Chi  Liu recused | board of directors was
I-Chi Liu as an |himself in | approved as written.

(4To

consider  the
remuneration of
Der-Ming Lieu as an
independent director

All members present
agreed to approve the
proposal and submit
it to the board of

The resolution of the
board of directors was
approved as written.

Henry C. T. Ho as
the Chairman of the
Board of Directors
and a member of the
Corporate
Governance
Committee.

proposal and submit
it to the board of
directors for
resolution.

and a member of the directo_rs for
various  functional | resolution.
committees.
(5)To consider the | All members present | The resolution of the
remuneration of | agreed to approve the | board of directors was

approved as written.
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(6)To  consider the
remuneration of
Chengming Zhu as a
member  of the
Remuneration
Committee.

Committee member
Chengming Zhu
recused himself in
accordance with law,
and with the consent
of the Chairman and
in consultation with
the remaining
members present, the
case was Ssubmitted

The resolution of the
board of directors was
approved as written.

2020.12.11

4th session
(2nd
meeting)

to the Board of
Directors for
resolution.

(7)Appointed  Fu-jing | All members present | The resolution of the
Chen as the | agreed to approve the | board of directors was
Company’s  Senior | proposal and submit | approved as written.
Vice General | it to the board of
Manager and | directors for
considered the | resolution.
remuneration
proposal.

(1)Amended the | Upon discussion, | The resolution of the
“Remuneration some articles were | board of directors was
Committee Charter” | amended and | approved as written.
partially submitted to the

Board of Directors
for resolution.

(2)Formulated the
remuneration policy
of our company.

Upon discussion,
some articles were
amended and
submitted to the
Board of Directors
for resolution.

The resolution of the
board of directors was
approved as written.

(3)The percentage of

All members present

The resolution of the

directors' and | agreed to approve the | board of directors was
employees' proposal and submit | approved as written.
remuneration in|it to the board of
fiscal 2020. directors for
resolution.
(4)Review the | Proposal passed. Implemented in
performance accordance with the

evaluation standards
for professional
managers in 2020.

contents of the
resolution.

(5)Year-end bonus for
2020 resolution.

All members present
agreed to approve the
proposal and submit
it to the board of
directors for
resolution.

The resolution of the
board of directors was
approved as written.

I1.If there are objections or reservations by the members that have been recorded in writing during the
remuneration committee resolution, the remuneration committee meeting's date, period, motion content,
the opinions of all of the members, and treatment of the member's opinions must be disclosed in detail.

None.
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(V)Deviation from Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX listed companies and reasons for

deviation

such units and report to the board regarding
handling status?

JOb. . Name Gender | Education Professional competence

position

Convener Henry C. T. Male Departm_ent of Management, C_:orporate
Ho Economics, Governance, Finance,

Operations Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEx
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation
I.Does the company conduct risk assessment The Company has a Corporate Governance Committee, which is responsible for
on environmental, social and corporate formulating and monitoring policies, management policies and objectives on
governance issues related to its operations corporate governance, corporate social responsibility, ethical corporate
in accordance with the principle of management, environmental sustainability and risk management. The Company's
materiality, and establish relevant risk risk management policy was approved at the 24th session (3rd meeting) Board of
management policies or strategies? Directors in June 2020. The policy is "to effectively identify, prevent and control
risks through systematic and institutionalized management to maintain normal
v operations and achieve sustainable business operation for the Company”. In No difference
November 2020, the 24th session (5th meeting) Board of Directors established '
risk management policies and operating procedures to classify risks into four
major areas, including operational risks, financial risks, environmental risks, and
operational risks, with respect to environmental, social, and corporate
governance issues. Risk identification, risk measurement, risk response, and risk
monitoring will be performed by relevant departments in accordance with their
duties and responsibilities, and submitted to the Corporate Governance
Committee for discussion and implementation on an annual basis.
11.Did the company establish full (part) time The Corporate Governance Committee is a non-statutory functional committee.
corporate social responsibility promotional The Committee meets at least twice a year with three members, more than half of
units, and did the board of directors whom are independent directors with professional competence in management,
authorize high-level managements to handle| corporate governance, finance and risk control. No difference.
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

Harvard University | Risk Management

PhD in Law,
Political Science

Committee | Chuang-Hsi Male and Sociology at

Corporate Governance,

Members | Chang the Pantheon-Assas Risk Management
University
Ph.D. in
Committee | Der-Ming Male Economics, The Finance, Risk
Members | Lieu Ohio State Management

University, USA

Responsibilities include:

1.Review of Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles, related regulations
and the effectiveness of their implementation

2.Formulation, monitoring and review of corporate social responsibility policies,
systems or related management policies.

3.To establish, monitor and review ethical corporate management policies and
prevention programs.

4.Establishment, monitoring and review of environmental sustainability systems
and objectives.

5.The Company establishes, monitors and reviews risk management policies and
management mechanisms.

6.0ther matters as directed by the Board of Directors.

The General Manager assigns the head of the relevant unit to be in charge of the
execution of each plan, reports on the handling of the plan on a regular basis
each year, and submits it to the Board of Directors after discussion by the
Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance Committee
reported at the 24th session (3rd meeting) Board of Directors on June 22, 2020
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Assessed areas

Operations

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for

Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEXx
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

and the 24th session (6th meeting) Board of Directors on December 22, 2020 on
the handling of the and promotion of corporate governance, including:
1.Report on ethical corporate management performance.
2.2019 Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
3.Establish risk management policy and supplier management policy.
4.Develop intellectual property management plans that are linked to operational
objectives.
5.Program to prevent dishonest behavior.
6.2020 Stakeholder Identification and Communication.
7.Risk, information security, and vendor management.
8.The Environmental sustainability team operation.
9.Formulation of greenhouse gas management strategies, reduction targets and
plans.
I11.Environmental issues ) _
(1)Did the company establish an appropriate (IEach factory has obtained the environmental management system (ISO 14001)
) pl y Pprop certification, and comply to the legal requirements of the environmental
environmental  management  system management system (ISO 14001 the matters related). Monthly compliance
based on its industry characteristics? audits and annual compliance assessments are conducted in January of each
year to ensure the applicability of relevant environmental protection policies
v at the plant. No difference.

(11)Is the company committed to improving
the efficiency of the various resources
and using recycled materials which have
a low impact on the environment?

(I The Company’s main raw material is scrap steel. Iron resources are reusable,
remanufactured and have the highest recycling rate, therefore playing an
important role in the recycling process. In 2020, the proportion of recyclable
raw materials used in the production of steel scrap was 98.86% by weight;
the water used in the manufacturing process was recycled and reused several
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

(1IMDid the company assess the potential
risks and opportunities of climate
change for the business now and in the
future, and take measures to address
climate related issues?

times, and the water recycling rate for the whole area of each plant was over
91%.

(1I)The Company pays close attention to global climate changes and

international response trends, includes climate change as one of the major
issues and critical risk items for corporate sustainability, continues to
analyze and manage climate change, and is committed to greenhouse gas
emission adaptation and mitigation. Since 2003, we have been conducting
greenhouse gas emission inventories, participating in voluntary reduction
programs, and proactively disclosing greenhouse gas management
information. Short-term and medium-term reduction targets will be set from
2019 onwards and based on the actual emission intensity in 2019. The
reduction targets will be set as follows:

Short-term goals (2021~2023): 1% reduction in emission intensity from
2019

Medium-term goals (2024~2030): 2% reduction in emission intensity from
2019

The Taoyuan, Miaoli and Kaohsiung plants all reached their targets in 2020.

Starting in 2020, the Company will refer to TCFD's Climate Related
Financial Information Disclosure Proposal to assess the possible risks and
opportunities based on its climate related financial information, and in 2020,
the Environmental Sustainability Group of the Corporate Governance
Committee will assess the risks of climate change including: the five risks:
"change in average rainfall”, "total control/emissions trading”, "increased
pricing of greenhouse gas emissions”, "tropical cyclones"”, and "renewable
energy regulations™; the opportunities: "Use of more efficient production”,
"Use of low carbon energy". In February 2021, the Company will officially
sign up as TCFD Supporters, and we expect to issue a TCFD report in 2021.
In response to global warming and to effectively mitigate the impact of
climate change, the Company has been actively promoting energy
conservation and carbon reduction by continuing to participate in the World
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

(IV)Has the company compiled statistics on
greenhouse gas emissions,  water
consumption and total weight of waste
for the past two years, and formulated
policies for energy saving and carbon
reduction, greenhouse gas reduction,
water use reduction or other waste
management?

Steel Association's Climate Action Plan as well as actively attending energy
conservation and carbon reduction seminars and regulatory presentations to
seek possible improvement opportunities.

The Company started the EPD certification process in the second half of
2020 and has been verified by UL, obtained a third-party verification
institute, and obtained the certificates for steel sections and steel plates at the
end of January 2021. The Company expects to obtain the EPD certificate for
steel bars in 2021.

(IV)The Company's total greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 will be 819,129

metric tons of CO2e, an increase of 2.9% from 796,076 metric tons of CO2e
in 2019 due to increased production capacity (actual emissions are based on
inventory results from external verification institutes). The Company’s total
water withdrawal in 2020 was 2,155.620 million liters, an increase of 0.59%
compared to 2,142.965 million liters in 2019; total waste weight in 2020
was 308,785 metric tons, an increase of 1.33% compared to 304,733 metric
tons in 2019. The Company ensures compliance with environmental
regulations and implements policies to manage energy, implement pollution
prevention, conserve energy, and promote industrial waste reduction. The
Company will continue to improve our production operations, products and
services, establish an environmental management system, focus on the
control of pollution sources and on pollution prevention, in order to reduce
the impact on the natural environment and achieve environmental
improvement results.

1V.Social issues

(IDid the company formulate management
policies and procedures in accordance
with related regulations and
internationally recognized conventions

(DThe Company respects and supports internationally recognized human rights

norms and principles, including the Universal Declaration of Human Rights,
the UN Global Compact, and the International Labor Organization's
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, and complies
with the laws and regulations of the jurisdiction where the Company is

No difference.
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

for human rights?

(INDid the Company establish and
implement reasonable employee benefits
(including remuneration, vacation and
other benefits) and appropriately reflect
operational performance or results in
employee remuneration?

located. Regularly cooperate with relevant laws and regulations, take
inventory of company related forms and documents, and review the legality of
various operation processes.

(IDIn order to provide comprehensive care of our employees and their living
conditions, and to provide reasonable and competitive remuneration to
attract, retain and motivate talents for the long-term development of the
company and to achieve business objectives, the Company pays salaries
based on stable remuneration, and also pays flexible remuneration by taking
into account the content of respective duties, the responsibilities undertaken,
the degree of contribution and the performance of each individual. Based on
the principle of profit-sharing, the Company has established a remuneration
policy and related remuneration, bonuses and performance appraisal methods
to effectively link performance with individual remuneration. Article 28 of
the Company's Articles of Incorporation also specified that if the Company
achieves a profit for the year, the contribution to employees' remuneration
shall not be less than 2.5%.

In order to meet the needs of employees, in addition to providing basic
protection in accordance with the law, the Company provides or sponsors the
promotion of various welfare programs. Through the establishment of joint
employee welfare committees in each factory, the Company prganizes
various employee welfare activities and subsidies, such as: education
scholarships for employees' children, gifts for festivals, birthday gifts,
wedding and funeral subsidies, community subsidies and retirement
subsidies, etc. The Company has formulated retirement policy for employees
in accordance with the Labor Standard Act and Labor Pension Act and was
approved to set up a "retirement reserve fund supervisory committee,”
Calculate the labor pensions under the old system year by year (the
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

(11NDid the company provide workers with
a safe and healthy

environment as well
operational  safety
education?

as
and

working
periodic
health

contribution rate is 7% from 2008 to 2017 and 10% from 2018), and hold
regular meetings to protect the rights and interests of employees. The pension
fund as of the end of 2020 will be sufficient to pay for the retirement benefits
of eligible employees in the following year. Employees who are eligible for
the new pension system will contribute 6% monthly to their individual
pension accounts according to their pension brackets.

(11)In order to provide a safe and healthy working environment for employees,

an Occupational Safety and Health Committee is formed in each plant, with
the plant manager serving as the chairman and the head of the Labor and
Safety Center as the management representative. The committee convenes a
meeting once a month to review potential safety and health risks, discuss
and track safety and health issues, give instructions on safety and health
related issues, and invite representatives of contractors/consultants to attend.
In addition to communication, coordination and resolution of health and
safety issues with workers through occupational safety and health committee
meetings,the Company also performs monthly work safety inspections,
safety observations, safety interviews, annual health inspections, health
management, and occasional work safety promotion meetings and
occupational disaster prevention promotions by the Labor Inspection
Division. In view of the harm caused by unsafe behaviors and a dangerous
environment, the Al team of the Information Technology Department has
started to apply Al image auto-detection, environment recognition
monitoring and alarm, Al interlock auto-protection, immediately stopping
operation upon detection of personnel entering, warning or broadcasting to
expel intruders, according to the respective hazardous equipment and
equipment areas informed by the three plants to control (manage) the unsafe
behaviors or environment in order to enhance on-site safety and health
management.

Each plant arranges monthly health consultation for colleagues performed
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

(IV)Did the company establish effective
training and development programs for
employees' career development?

(V)Did the company follow relevant laws,
regulations and international standards
regarding customer health and safety,
customer privacy, marketing and
labeling of products and services, and
has a policy and complaint procedure to
safeguard consumer rights?

by occupational medicine specialists, and performs arranges health seminars
and individual doctor consultation for level 2 (and above) staff who perform
special operations. In 2020, there were 1,555 general health check-ups and
1,618 special health check-ups, with examination fees totaling
approximately 2.66 million NTD, an 18% increase over 2019.

In 2020, each plant arranged education and training for new recruits as well
as various types of on-the-job education and training related to safety and
health, with an investment of about 1.92 million NTD and a total of 16,528
participant hours. Each plant will follow the PDCA of the occupational
safety and health management system to implement safety and health
management step by step. Each plant has also converted to 1SO 45001
certification in 2020. The scope of implementation of this system and the
applicable items cover the operating sites and all workers in each plant,
contractors or consultants will be stipulated in the contract. This
occupational safety and health management system is applicable for I1SO
45001: 2018 and all operational activities covered under TOSHMS.

(IV)The company offers training programs, builds a positive environment

necessary for operational requirements and duty planning, and arranges
career development programs depending on occupational adaptability and
career planning.

(V)In order to ensure the appropriateness of the quality assurance system, each

plant has set up a quality management committee and a quality control
laboratory to maintain a good quality standard of products. We actively value
the feedback of our customers in order to provide them with excellent
products and satisfactory services. In addition to dedicating staff to provide
procurement services, consultation and advice, we also have a dedicated
email address to handle and respond to customer comments and suggestions.
In 2020, we did not receive any reports from customers regarding data
privacy violations or data breaches. The Company has passed verification
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

standards of relevant certification organizations:

1.CNS trademark certification from the Bureau of Standards, Ministry of
Economic Affairs

2.Bureau of Standards, Ministry of Economic Affairs, product registration
and certification records

3.1SO 9001 quality management system certification (Valid till: December 7,
2021)

4.1SO 14001 quality management system certification (Valid till: June 28,
2022

5.1SO 50001 quality management system certification (Valid till: November
30, 2023)

6.Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry JIS MARK factory certification
7.British Lloyd's E.U. construction use steel material CE Mark certification

8.Australasian Certification Authority for Reinforcing and Structural Steels
hot-rolled steel product ACRS certification

9.American Bureau of Shipping ABS marine steel manufacturing
certification

10.Det Norske Veritas DNV marine steel manufacturing certification
11.Zulassungsbescheinigung GL marine steel manufacturing certification
12.Bureau Veritas BV marine steel manufacturing certification

13.British Lloyd's Register LR marine steel manufacturing certification
14.Nippon Kaiji Kyokai Class NK marine steel manufacturing certification

15.KS certification from Korea Standards Association for hot rolled steel
products
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

(VI)Does the company have a supplier
management policy that requires
suppliers to follow relevant regulations
on environmental protection,
occupational safety and health or labor
human rights issues, as well as their
corresponding implementation?

16.Type Il Product Environmental Declaration (EPD) Certificate
Certification

(VI)The Company’s supplier management policy: Tung Ho Steel views our

suppliers as important operation partners. In addition to ensuring the quality,
cost, delivery and service capability of our suppliers, the Company also
urges our suppliers to jointly implement environmental protection,
information disclosure in response to the impact of climate change and on
labor human rights, in order to fulfill our social responsibility and to grow
together with our suppliers for mutual benefit and to establish a long-term
stable supply chain.
1.The Company views economic, environmental and social aspects as the
core of our common development and urge suppliers to comply with laws
and regulations in order to achieve sustainable development and create a
win-win situation.

2.We safeguard the rights and interests of stakeholders, and include social
responsibility, labor safety, human rights and environmental protection
issues as the basis for management decisions and implementation.

3.Business ethics and morality, equality of opportunity and fair trade are the
highest guiding principles of supply chain interaction, eliminating illegal
interests and severely punishing illegal acts.

4.We will work together to strengthen the response and disclosure of
information on the impact of climate change and take action on
greenhouse gas emissions.

The Company has established the "Regulations for the Selection and
Evaluation of Suppliers of Raw Materials, By-products and Materials" to
establish basic information on suppliers and to effectively manage the
selection and evaluation of suppliers. At the same time, the integration of
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Assessed areas

Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

suppliers of by-products includes guiding them to take into account of
product quality, energy-saving and environmental protection requirements.
For example, the selected suppliers should pass 1SO 9000 quality
management system certification, 1ISO 14001 environmental management
system certification, use environmental labels for products, use
environmentally friendly and recyclable packaging methods and materials,
and comply with our environmental policy and related industrial waste
reduction, energy conservation, pollution prevention, and environmental
protection laws and regulations; in addition, suppliers should be urged to pay
attention to labor rights, workplace safety and hygiene, and improve
unfavorable labor conditions. Suppliers who sign contracts with the Company
from November 13, 2020 onwards are required to sign a corporate social
responsibility pledge, which covers labor rights and human rights,
environmental protection, climate change mitigation and adaptation, as well
as honest management and ethical standards. By 2020, a total of 257
companies have signed the pledge, with the proportion of signatories
reaching 17%. In the event of actual or foreseeable significant poor
environmental, labor conditions, human rights, social or other impacts on
existing suppliers, they will be obliged to improve or terminate the contract
immediately.

V.Does the company make reference to
international standards or guidelines for the
preparation of reports, such as corporate
social responsibility reports that disclose
non-financial information about the
company? Did you obtain confirmation or
assurance from a third-party verifier for

The Company's CSR Report 2019 published in 2020 has been verified by British
Standards Institution (BSI), a third-party impartial organization and meets the
requirements of GRI Standards (Core) and AAL1000AS Type 1 Medium
Assurance Level. The report is publicly disclosed in the CSR section of the
website.

No difference.
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Operations Deviation from
Corporate Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEx
listed companies
and reasons for
deviation

your report?

VILIf the company itself has established its own corporate social responsibility principles based on the "Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies", please specify the differences between its own principles and the code. No difference.

VI1.Other critical information conducive to understanding the corporate social responsibility practices:

(DOur company is concerned about social issues and actively participates in public welfare. The total pro bono public donation for 2020 is NTD 6.88

million.

(1DTung Ho Steel is committed to caring for social welfare and fulfilling its responsibility to thrive along with Taiwan. The Company established the Tung
Ho Steel Foundation with the purpose of promoting cultural and artistic qualities, actively cultivating artistic talents, promoting artistic education,
promoting the development of cultural and creative industries, and organizing or sponsoring cultural and artistic activities. Since its establishment,
the foundation has held six "Tung Ho Steel International Artist-in-Residence Program”, which is one of the most important cases of collaboration
between Taiwanese enterprises and the arts community, which has created a new synchrony between industrial production and artistic expression.

(1) The Company was ranked in the top 6%-20% of the Stock Exchange's corporate governance rating for five consecutive years from 2015-2019, and was
selected as a constituent stock of the "Taiwan Corporate Governance 100 Index" from 2018-2020, demonstrating the Company's achievements in
promoting corporate governance.

(IV)The TCSA Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Awards, organized by the Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Institute, are known as the "Oscars of
Corporate Sustainability in Taiwan". In 2020, the company was awarded the "Traditional Manufacturing Industry - Gold Award" again. In addition,
we have taken actions to fulfill our commitment to sustainability reporting, to demonstrate our corporate social responsibility and the implementation
of sustainability issues, and to drive our company toward sustainable development.
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(V1)The Company's compliance with the integrity of its operations and deviation from Ethical Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX listed companies and reasons for deviation

Operations Deviation from
"Ethical
Corporate
Management
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEXx
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
deviation
I.Formulate ethical corporate management
policies and programs
() Has the company established an ethical (DThe Company has established the Ethical Corporate Management Policy, the
corporate management policy approved Ethical Corporate Management Operating Procedures and Code of Conduct,
by the board of directors, and has the which have been approved by the Board of Directors, implemented and
policy and practice of ethical corporate publicly disclosed on the Company's website. In order to implement the
management been stated in the bylaws ethical corporate management policy, we have established the "Commitment
and external documents? Is there to Ethical Conduct", which is signed by the management and employees, as
commitment from the board of directors well as the "Declaration of Compliance”, which is signed by the directors, to
and the senior management to actively implement the ethical corporate management best practice principles.
v No difference.

(I

implement the management policy?

Has the company established a
mechanism to assess the risk of
dishonest acts, regularly analyzed and
evaluated the business activities within
the scope of business that have a higher
risk of dishonest acts, and formulated a
corresponding plan to prevent dishonest
acts. Does the plan cover the preventive
measures for the acts mentioned in
Article 7, Paragraph 2 of the "Code of

(IDIn order to prevent unethical behavior in business activities, the Company's

code of conduct for ethical corporate management stipulates the prohibition
of unethical behavior, benefits and attitudes, and the "Procedures and
Conduct Guidelines for Ethical Corporate Management™ to specifically
regulate and prevent unethical behavior. The Company also conducts risk
assessment and prepares necessary preventive measures annually when
each department performs self-evaluation of its internal control system.
The Company has established stringent behavioral norms, ethical standards
and regulations relating to appeal, reward and punishment systems in the
company's "Board of Directors' Meeting Procedure”, "Ethical Code of
Conduct for Directors, Supervisors and Managers"”, "Critical Internal
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Operations Deviation from
"Ethical
Corporate
Management
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEXx
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
deviation
Conduct for Listed Companies with Material Information Processing Procedures” and "Work Rules”. On
Integrity"? October 28, 2020, the Company instructed each unit to perform risk
assessment of unethical acts and to prepare necessary prevention plans and
measures.
(1) Has the Company established policies (11)In accordance with the code of conduct for ethical corporate management,
to prevent unethical conduct with the Company has established the "Procedures and Guidelines for Ethical
relevant procedures, guidelines of Corporate Management" to prevent unethical behavior, and has regularly
conduct, punishment for violation, rules reviewed the procedures, guidelines, disciplinary actions, complaint
of appeal clearly stated in the policies? system, and has established the "Employee Rotation Regulations”. The
Has the Company implemented the company encourages its employees to report to the directors, supervisors,
policies and regularly reviewed and managers, internal audit directors, or director of management department,
amended the said policy? in the event that they discover or suspect violation of laws and regulations
or standards of ethical conduct and provide sufficient evidence proving
thereof.
I1.Implement Ethical Corporate Management
(1) Has the company evaluated the ethical (DThe company appoints its General manager's office to provide customer
records of parties it does business with credit surveys during the company's external business activities and
and stipulated ethical conduct clauses in designates Legal Affairs Office to review and execute contract terms. In
business contracts? accordance with Article 20 of the Company's "Ethical Corporate
v No difference.

Management Operating Procedures and Code of Conduct,” when the
Company enters into a contract with another party, the Company shall fully
understand the other party's integrity ethical corporate management status
and include compliance with ethical corporate management in the contract
terms. Starting from May 2020, the Company requires that the terms of
ethical corporate behavior be stipulated in procurement and business
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Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
"Ethical
Corporate
Management
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
deviation

(IV)Has

(1) Does the Company have a dedicated unit

under the Board of Directors to promote
ethical corporate management, and report
regularly (at least once a year) to the
Board of Directors on its ethical
management policies and plans to
prevent unethical practices and monitor
their implementation?

(11)Did the company establish policies that

prevent conflict of interests, provide
appropriate channels for filing related
complaints and implement such policies
and channels?

the Company established an
effective accounting system and internal

contracts, and requests credit units to include ethical corporate behavior in
the credit history and credit evaluation criteria.

(I The dedicated unit of the Company's ethical corporate management is the

Corporate Governance Committee, which meets at least twice a year with
three members, more than half of whom are independent directors; the
Management Department and the Legal Affairs Office are considered
part-time units. The information on the implementation of ethical corporate
management is discussed annually by the Corporate Governance
Committee and reported to the Board of Directors; on October 28, 2020,
each unit was asked to perform risk assessment of unethical acts and to
prepare necessary preventive plans and measures. The implementation of
the 2020 Unethical Corporate Practices Prevention Program was reported
to the 24th session (6th meeting) Board of Directors Meeting on December
22, 2020.

(1)In order to prevent conflicts of interest, the Company has set forth the

principles of preventing conflicts of interest in the "Rules of Procedure for
the Board of Directors' Meetings", "Ethical Corporate Management
Operating Procedures and Code of Conduct”, "Code of conduct for Ethical
Corporate Management, "Code of Ethical Conduct for Directors and
Managers" and other relevant regulations. The Company also announces on
its website that it accepts notifications, suggestions, complaints and reports
on the Company, and has set up mailbox for internal and external
stakeholders to voice their complaints.

(IV)The Company has established an effective accounting system and prepared

financial statements in accordance with the "Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” and the
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Operations

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
"Ethical
Corporate
Management
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
deviation

control system for the implementation of
ethical corporate management, and has
the internal audit unit prepared an audit
plan based on the evaluation results of
the risk of unethical acts? Has the
Company checked the compliance of the
unethical act  prevention plan
accordingly, or appointed an accountant
to perform the audit?

(V)Did the company periodically provide

internal and external training programs on
ethical corporate management?

"International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS" in order to properly
present its operating results and financial position. Through each unit's
annual internal control system self-evaluation, the Company also reviews
and amends the system constantly to ensure that the design and
implementation of the system continues to be effective in response to
changes in the company's internal and external environment. Based on the
risk evaluation results, the audit office will include the higher risk
operation items in the annual audit plan to review the actual
implementation of the operation. Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards issued by the accountant in 2020: “In the course of this audit, no
doubts about the integrity of management were raised and no fraud was
found to have been committed by management.”

(V)The company occasionally promotes integrity management principles on its

quarterly magazines, official websites or during major meetings and
requests its employees to comply with such principles. On August 19,
2020, the "Anti-Corruption Regulation and Case Analysis under the
Principle of Ethics" training course was held for 118 participants, totaling
236 hours, including all company and affiliated companies' supervisors at
or above the division level, sales staff, IT/information personnel, finance
and accounting personnel, and purchasing personnel. On November 2,
2020, the Company conducted an online insider trading related law
promotion on the company's internal platform, targeting all employees of
the company and related companies. On November5, 2020, the Company
educated directors and managers on the importance of insider shareholding
changes.
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Management
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Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEXx
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Companies" and
reasons for
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I11.0peration of the company's whistle-blowing
system
0 D'O.l the company establish a _specmc (DIn order to protect the rights and interests of employees and to follow the
whistle-blowing, reward and punishment N o .
i . rules for reporting improper violations of the company's interests, the
system, set up a convenient complaint : " . . N
. . Company has established the "Employee Grievance and Reporting Rules
channel and assign designated personnel . . .
. and has set up a grievance box in each factory, where employees can submit
to handle the reported complaint? . .
complaints and reports to the unit manager or the management of each
factory through the grievance box or email, verbally or by phone. When
handling a report, the Management Department, the Audit Office, the Legal
Office, and the relevant department heads as necessary will form an
investigation team to conduct a factual investigation. In addition, the "Code
of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers" has been established to
v No difference.

(INDoes the Company have standard
operating procedures for investigation of
whistleblower matters, follow-up

encourage employees to report to the directors, audit committee members,
managers, internal audit supervisors or the head of the management
department with sufficient evidence if they discover any violation of laws
and regulations or violation of the Code of Ethical Conduct by a director or
manager. The Company will reward the whistleblowing employee in
accordance with relevant regulations if the report is substantiated. When
material violations or concerns involving material impairment to the
Company come to their awareness upon investigation, the dedicated
personnel or unit handling the whistle-blowing system shall immediately
prepare a report and notify the independent directors or supervisors in
writing.

(1 The Company's "Employee Grievance and Whistleblower Policy" provides

for the following grievance handling procedures: Preliminary hearings,
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"Ethical
Corporate
Management
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEXx
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
deviation
measures to be taken after the completion fact-finding, findings and resolutions. The relevant personnel responsible
of the investigation and the related for handling the complaint (prosecution) shall maintain absolute
confidentiality mechanism? confidentiality and shall not disclose it to the public. If the case information
is leaked due to intentional negligence, the responsible personnel will be
(IDid the company adopt measures for punished in accordance with the relevant regulations corresponsing to the
protecting the whistle-blower against severity of the leak.
improper treatment or retaliation? (1MAccording to the nature of the reported case and the situation of the
whistle-blower, the company adopts necessary protective measures for
keeping the whistle-blower's identity confidential to protect the
whistle-blower against retaliation.
IV.Strengthen information disclosure The Company has established the Ethical Corporate Management Policy, the
Did the company disclose the content and Ethical Corporate Management Operating Procedures and Code of Conduct,
effectiveness of its integrity management which have been publicly disclosed on the Company's website. The Company
principles on the company's website and the| v/ has also regularly reported on the progress of prevention of unethical conduct|No difference.

Market Observation Post System?

to the Board of Directors.

V. The company shall establish its own Code of Business Integrity based on the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies™ and clearly articulate the differences between its operations and the established code.
The company has established its own principles of integrity management based on the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Companies™. There are no differences in the company's operation and the regulations specified in the code.

VI.Other critical information conducive to understanding the operation of the company's integrity management: (e.g., review/revision of the company's

integrity corporate management principles)

(DSuppliers who sign contracts with the Company from 2020 onwards are required to sign a corporate social responsibility pledge, which covers labor
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"Ethical
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Management
Best Practice
Assessed areas Principles for
Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEx
Listed
Companies" and
reasons for
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rights and human rights, environmental protection, climate change mitigation and adaptation, as well as honest management and ethical standards.
(IDThe "Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors' Meetings"” clearly describes that a director shall recuse himself or herself when matters that
involve his or her interests arise. If his or her participation is likely to damage the interest of the Company, the concerned person may not participate in
discussion of or voting on the proposal and shall recuse himself or herself from the discussion or the voting. He or she may not exercise voting rights
as a proxy for another director. The company's directors uphold a high level of self-discipline. If a motion involves the interests of the directors
themselves, the directors shall adhere to the principles of recusal and abstain from participation.
(11N The company has established Critical Internal Material Information Processing Procedures, which mandates that the company's directors, supervisors,
managers and employees shall exercise due administrative diligence and duty of loyalty, undertake business activities according to the procedures and
may not disclose important internal information to other parties.

(VIDIf the company has established corporate governance codes and related bylaws, their query methods shall be disclosed:

The Company's Code of Corporate Governance Best Practices was approved by the 23rd session (12th Meeting) on March 26, 2019 and is disclosed on the
Company's website:https://www.tunghosteel.com/Home/Index, Path: Investor Services / Corporate Governance / Important Company Regulations).

(VI Critical information that can enhance the understanding of the company's corporate governance practices shall be disclosed

Operations relevant to the company and its subsidiaries' corporate governance and material information, for example: the company's crucial regulations,
Board of directors nomination and election methods, continuing education of directors and supervisors, and key resolutions of the Board of directors are all

disclosed on the company's website (https://www.tunghosteel.com/Home/Index, path: CSR/Corporate Governance).

(IX)The internal control system implementation status shall disclose the following matters
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1.Internal Control System Statement

Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation

Internal Control System Statement
Date: March 23, 2021

Based on the results of self-evaluation, the Company's 2020 internal control system hereby declares the
following:

I.The Company acknowledges that the Company's Board of Directors and managers are responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of the internal control system, and that the company has already
established such a system. The objective is to provide reasonable assurances that the goals of
operational effectiveness and efficiency (including profitability, performance, asset security, etc.),
financial report reliability, timeliness, transparency, and regulatory compliance will be achieved.

Il.Internal control regulations possess inherent shortcomings. Regardless of its design, an effective
internal control system can only provide reasonable assurance of the three objectives as mentioned
above. Furthermore, its effectiveness may change due to changes in the Company's environment and
circumstances. However, self-supervision measures were implemented within the Company’s
internal control policies to facilitate immediate rectification once procedural flaws have been
identified.

I11.The Company shall determine the effectiveness of the internal control system design and execution
based on the internal control system effectiveness review items as provided by the "Regulations
Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies” (hereafter "Handling
Regulations”). The criteria introduced by the "Governing Regulations™ cover the process of
management control and consist of five major elements, each representing a different stage of
internal control: 1. Control environment, 2. Risk assessment, 3. Control operations, 4. Information
and communication, and 5. Monitoring operations. Each component also comprised several items.
Please refer to "Governing Regulations" for details.

IV.The company has already adopted the aforementioned internal control system judgment items to
inspect the effectiveness of the internal control system design and implementation.

V.Based on the aforementioned evaluation results, the company believes that the design and execution
of its December 31, 2020 internal control system (including those adopted for supervision and
management of subsidiary branches) are effective in terms of understanding of operational
effectiveness, level of efficiency fulfillment, financial reporting reliability, timeliness, transparency,
and regulatory compliance-related internal control system items; and that the company can
reasonably achieve the aforementioned goals.

VI.This statement will be the main content of the Company's annual report and public statement, and
will be made available to the public. Should any of the aforementioned disclosure contents be
fictitious or concealed in an illegal manner, the company shall bear legal responsibilities pursuant to
Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities Exchange Act.

VII.This declaration statement has been authorized by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2021, and
all eleven attendees of the Board have approved the contents of the declaration statement.

Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation
Chairman: Henry C. T. Ho

General manager: Henry C. T. Ho
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2.

If the internal control system review is conducted by commissioned accountants,

the said accountant review's report shall be disclosed: None.

(X)The Company's major deficiencies improvement status for internal personnel
who have received penalties for violating provisions provided by the internal
control system in recent years and up to the publication date of this annual
report must be listed clearly for situations when the said penalties may impact

shareholders’ interest or share prices: None.

(XI)Critical resolutions made during shareholders and Board of Directors' meetings

in recent years and up to the publication date of this annual report

Date

Meeting

Critical resolution matters

Board of
Directors
(Shareholder's
meeting)

Resolution result

2020.02.27

19th meeting
of the 23rd
board

1.2019 Board of Directors Performance
Evaluation Report

2.Passed the independence and suitability
evaluation of the accountant.

3.Passed the distribution of employee and
director remuneration for 2019. The total
employee remuneration was NT$54,696,060,
and the total remuneration to directors was
NT$43,756,848.

4.Passed the Company's 2019 business report
and financial statements.

5.Passed the Company's 2019 earnings
appropriation of cash dividend at NT$1.35
per share.

6.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd. for the renewal of the short term credit
obligation in Cathay United Bank.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2020.03.31

20th meeting
of the 23rd
board

1.Passed the amendment to the agenda of the
Company's 2020 shareholders meeting.

2.Passed the 24th director candidate list review.

3.Passed the removal of non-compete clause for
the 24th board of directors and their
representatives by resolution of the 2020
shareholders meeting.

4.Established the baseline date for distribution
of cash dividends and issue date in 2019.

5.Passed the amendment of the Company's
2020 Audit Plan.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2020.05.12

21th meeting
of the 23rd
board

1.Passed the Company's Quarter 1 consolidated
financial reports for 2020.

2.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee for the

subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.
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Ltd. for the renewal of the short term
credit obligation in Cathay United Bank.
3.Passed the guarantee endorsement application
short term credit obligation case with the
Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd. for the
subsidiary Fujian Dong Gang Steel Co, Ltd.

2020.05.19

Shareholder's
meeting

Important resolutions of the 2020 annual
shareholders' meeting and the implementation
status:
1.Ratifications:
(1)The 2019 business report and financial
report.
Status of implementation: Proposal passed.
(2)The surplus allocation table for 2019.
Status of implementation: Other items in the
Company’s surplus allocation table has been
approved by resolution of the 2020
shareholders’ meeting, including the legal
reserve, the contra equity item special reserve,
and changes in re-measurement of defined
benefit plan. (Distribution of cash dividends of
NT$1,355,481,821 was approved by the board
of directors on 2020.02.27, with dividend per
share of NT$1.35. On March 31, 2020, the
board of directors has approved on setting the
ex-dividend date on June 20, 2020, and the
distribution of cash dividends was completed
on July 17, 2020).
2.Matters for Discussion: Amendment of the
"Articles of Incorporation.”
Status of implementation: Passed the partial
amendments which are disclosed of the
company website
(https://www.tunghosteel.com,path:  Investor
Services / Corporate Governance / Important
Company Requlations/ Acrticles of
Incorporation).
3.Elections: Passed the re-election of the board
of directors.
Status of implementation: Passed the election
of 11 directors for the 24th term board
(including 3 independent directors), and the
change registration was approved by the
Ministry of Economic Affairs and disclosed on
the company website on June 5, 2020.
4.0ther matters for discussion: Removed the
non-compete clause for the newly elected
directors and their representatives.
Status of implementation: Representative of
Mao Sheng Investment Inc.: Director Henry C.
T. Ho, Representative of Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.: Director Yushu Hou,
Representative of Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd.:
Director Joshua P.H. Tung, Representative of
Episil  Holding  Incorporation:  Director
Chih-Ming Huang, Representative of Liang
Cheng Investment Co., Ltd.: Directors Pao-He

The chairman
required all
shareholders to be
present, and the
request passed
without dissent.
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Chen and Yen-Liang Ho, Representative of
Taiwan Zhi Di Co. Ltd.: Directors Chao-He
Lin, Independent Directors I-Chi Liu and
Der-Ming Lieu may compete with themselves
or against others within the Company’s
business scope. The proposal was passed
without dissent and implemented.

The aforementioned important resolutions are
disclosed on the company  website
(https://www.tunghosteel.com,path:___Investor
Services / Shareholders’ Section / Important
Company Regulations / Investor Services /
Shareholders' Section / 2020 Information of the
Shareholders’ Meeting / Minutes of the 2020
Shareholders' Meeting).

2020.05.19

1st meeting
of the 24th
board

Passed the election of Mao Sheng Investment
Inc. legal representative director Henry C. T.
Ho as Chairman of the board, and Mao Sheng
Investment Inc. legal representative director
George Y. S. Ho as the Vice Chairman.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2020.06.03

2nd meeting
of the 24th
board

1.Independent directors Chuang-Hsi Chang and
I-Chi Liu, and Professor Chengming Zhu of
Applied Economics and Management of
National Ilan University, were appointed as
members of the Company's 4th term
Remuneration Committee.

2.Passed the appointment of Chairman Henry
C. T. Ho, and independent directors
Chuang-Hsi Chang and Der-Ming Lieu as
members of the Company’s 2nd term
Corporate Governance Committee.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2020.06.22

3rd meeting
of the 24th
board

1.Report on ethical corporate management
performance.

2.2019 Corporate Social Responsibility Report.

3.Passed the formulation the Company's risk
management policies as follows: Through
institutional systematic management
procedures, we can effectively identify,
prevent and control risks to maintain normal
operations and achieve corporate
sustainability.

4.Donation of NT$5 million and 160 tons of
scrap steel to the "Tung Ho Steel
Foundation™ for organizing steel sculpture
artistic creation exhibitions and conference
expenses. If the COVID-19 border control
measures affect the participation of foreign
artists and delays in on-site design schedules,
donations will be made in periodic
installments according to the design progress.

5.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation case of US$8 million with
Cathay United Bank for the subsidiary Tung
Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

6.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$29.5

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.
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million with Taipei Fubon Bank for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd.

7.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation case of US$3 million with
Taishin International Bank for the subsidiary
Fujian Dong Gang Steel Co, Ltd.

2020.08.13

4th meeting
of the 24th
board

1.Passed the company's Quarter 2 consolidated
financial reports for 2020

2.Passed the amendment to the "Intellectual
Property Management Regulations”, which
incorporates intellectual property
management into the corporate governance
structure and elevates it’s supervision level to
that of the Board of Directors.

3.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee medium
term credit obligation case of US$25 million
with Taipei Fubon Bank for the subsidiary
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

4.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$20
million with Bank SinoPac for the subsidiary
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

5.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$15
million with Mega International Commercial
Bank for the subsidiary Tung Ho Steel
Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

6.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$47
million with Mizuho Bank Taiwan for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd.

7.Passed the  endorsement/  guarantee
collateralized credit obligation renewal case
of US$5 million with Bank SinoPac for the
subsidiary Fujian Dong Gang Steel Co, Ltd.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2020.11.12

5th meeting
of the 24th
board

1.Passed the Company's Quarter 3 consolidated
financial reports for 2020.

2.Passed the liability insurance report of
directors, supervisors and major staff.

3.Passed the proposal for 2021 Audit Plan.

4.Passed the accountant public expenses review
proposal for 2020.

5.Passed the contracting of NT$91.88 million
(excluding tax) of the subsidiary Tung Kang
Engineering & Construction Corp. for
expansion project of Taichung Harbor
Logistic Office.

6.Passed the formulation of Risk Management
Policies and Operating Procedures.

7.Passed the appointment of the Company’s
accounting supervisor.

8.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$8
million with BNP Paribas, Ho Chi Minh City

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.
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Branch and Hanoi Branch for the subsidiary
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

9.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$13
million with First Commercial Bank for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd.

10.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short
term credit obligation renewal case of
RMB$25 million with Bank of Taiwan
Fuzhou Branch for the subsidiary Fujian
Tung Kang Steel Corp., Ltd.

11.Passed the endorsement/  guarantee
collateralized credit obligation renewal case
of US$50 million with Mizuho Bank
(China), Ltd. Shenzhen Branch for the
subsidiary Fujian Tung Kang Steel Corp.,
Ltd.

2020.12.22

6th meeting
of the 24th
board

1.The promotion of corporate governance:

oDevelop intellectual property management
plans that are linked to operational objectives

oProgram to prevent dishonest behavior

02020  Stakeholder Identification  and
Communication

oRisk management

olnformation security management

oSupplier management

oThe Environmental sustainability team
operation

2.Passed the budget for the Company's
Taoyuan Processing Center.

3.Formulation of the Remuneration Policies.

4.Formulation of greenhouse gas management
strategies, reduction targets and plans.

5.Formulation of supplier management policy.

6.Amendment of the Board of Directors'
Meeting Procedure.

7.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$15
million and additional credit of US$5 million
with Taishin International Bank for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2021.01.18

7th meeting
of the 24th
board

Passed the formulation of redemption
procedures for the Company's 7th domestic
unsecured convertible bonds, the suspension of
listing at Taipei Exchange, and other related
matters.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.

2021.03.23

8th meeting
of the 24th
board

1.2020 Board of Directors Performance
Evaluation Report
2.Passed the independence and suitability
evaluation of the accountant.
3.Passed the distribution of employee and
director remuneration for 2020. The total
employee remuneration was
NT$114,899,075, and the total remuneration
to directors was NT$91,919,260.

The entire Board
adopted without
objection.
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4.Passed the Company's 2020 business report
and financial statements.

5.Passed the Company's 2020 earnings
appropriation of cash dividend at NT$1.5 per
share.

6.Passed the cash capital reduction and refund,
the cash  capital reduction totaled
NT$3,596,575,520, with  cash capital
reduction ratio of 33%, and shareholders can
receive cash refund of NT$3.3 per share.
After the capital reduction, paid-in capital
dropped to NT$7,302,138,180, translating to
common shares of 730,210,000 shares.

7.Passed the short term credit obligation case of
US$35 million for the subsidiary Tung Ho
Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

8.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$20
million with Cathay United Bank for the
subsidiary Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

9.Passed the endorsement/ guarantee short term
credit obligation renewal case of US$3
million with Taishin International Bank for
the subsidiary Fujian Dong Gang Steel Co,
Ltd.

(X1 The primary content of directors who have dissented on critical resolutions
passed by the Board of Directors, where such dissents have been recorded
or documents in recent years up to the annual report publication date:
None.

(XHI)Summary of resignation or dismissal for chairman, general manager,
accounting manager, finance director, head of internal audit, corporate
governance managers, and R&D managers in recent years up to the annual
report publication date: None.
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V. Information on fees to CPA
(HRange
Name of the CPA name Audit period Remarks
accounting firm
KPMG International CihuiLi | Hsinying Kuo | 202.01~2020.12 None
Cooperative
Unit: NT$thousand
Public expense item Public Non-public
Amount bracket expenses for | expenses for Total
audit audit
1 | Below NT$2,000,000 v v
2 | NT$2,000,000
(inclusive)-NT$4,000,000
3 | NT$4,000,000
(inclusive)-NT$6,000,000
4 | NT$6,000,000 v v
(inclusive)-NT$8,000,000
5 | NT$8,000,000
(inclusive)-NT$10,000,000
6 | Over NT$10,000,000
1.Disclosure of audit fees, non-audit fees and details of non-audit services, if the sum of
non-audit fees paid to the CPA, CPA’s firm and affiliated companies amount to more
than one-quarter of total audit fees:
Unit: NT$thousand
Name of_the CPA Public Non-public expenses for audit Audit
accounting name | €xpenses S S m eriod Remarks
firm for audit dyst_em usiness | Human | e | guptoral | P
esign | registration Resources
(1) Public expenses
for R&D
consultancy in
2020:
NT$240,000.
(2) The expenses for
2020
Country-by-Cou
IR ntry Report and
KPMG | Cihui Li, 2020.01~ | Master File
International | Hsinying | 6,310 0 40 0 1,920 | 1,960 2020.12 totaled
Cooperative |  Kuo ' NT$930,000.
(3) Smart machinery
consulting
service fees in
2020 was
NT$60,000.
(4) Transfer pricing
was NT$690,000
in 2020.

2.1f the accounting firm has been changed and the annual audit public expenses were
lower for the year of the firm change compared to that of the previous year, then
audit public expenses before and after the changes and the reason for such changes
should be disclosed: Not applicable.
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3.1f the audit public expense has been decreased by over 10% compared to the previous
year, the amount, ratio, and reason of the public expense reduction shall be disclosed:
Not applicable.

(1 The professional fees for auditing services referred to in the preceding item
means the professional fees paid by the company to a certified public
accountant for auditing, review, and secondary reviews of financial reports,
financial forecast reviews, and tax certification.

V1. Exchange accountant information: None.
VII. The company's chairman, general manager and Vice general manager,

financial responsible person, or accounting affairs manager who has served in
a certified public accountant firm or its affiliates: None.
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Vl1ll.Share transfer by directors, managers and shareholders holding more than 10%
equity and changes to share pledging by them in the past year and up to the date of

report

(I)Share equity change status for directors, managers, and major shareholders

2020 Up to March 31, 2021
Title Name Number of shares held Numbers of pledged Number of shares held Numbers of pledged
added (subtracted) shares added added (subtracted) shares added
(subtracted) (subtracted)
Directors Mao Sheng Investment Inc. 8,175,000 0 850,000 0
Mao Sheng Investment Inc.
Directors Representative: Henry C. T. 0 0 0 0
Ho
Mao Sheng Investment Inc.
Directors Representative: George Y. 0 0 0 0
S. Ho
Directors Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd. 11,165,000 0 280,000 0
Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd.
Directors Representative: Hui-Ming 0 0 0 0
Wu
Director and . Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd.
concurrent Senior Representative: Joshua P.H
Vice General P ' ok 30,000 0 0 0
. Tung
Manager, Finance and (Note 1)
Accounting Division
Directors Liang Cheng Investment 0 0 0 0
Co., Ltd.
Liang Cheng Investment
. Co., Ltd.
Direct ' . 2,480, 2,000,
irectors Representative: Pao-He (2,480,000) (2,000,000) 0 0
Chen
Directors Episil Holt_jmg 0 0 0 0
Incorporation
Episil Holding
. Incorporation
Directors Representative: Chih-Ming (4,800,000) 0 0 0
Huang
Directors Yen-Liang Ho 0 0 0 0
Directors Taiwan Zhi Di Co. Ltd. 0 0 0 0
Taiwan Zhi Di Co. Ltd.
Directors Representative: Chao-He 0 0 0 0
Lin
Independent Directors [I-Chi Liu 0 0 0 0
Independent Directors |Chuang-Hsi Chang 0 0 0 0
Independent Directors |Der-Ming Lieu 0 0 0 0
hai |
Chairman/Genera Henry C. T. Ho 0 0 0 0
manager
ior Vi I .
Senior Vice General |r., jing Chen 326,000 0 0 0
Manager
Vice General Manager
of Operations Kuanren Gu 35,000 0 0 0
Department
Executive President Binghua Huang 0 0 (642) 0
Vice General Manager| .. . .
of Assets and Trade Qixie Lin 0 0 0 0
Department
Assistant manager 0?‘ Changhong Li 0 0 N/A N/A
the general manager's [(Note 2)
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Title

Name

2020

Up to March 31, 2021

Number of shares held
added (subtracted)

Numbers of pledged
shares added
(subtracted)

Number of shares held
added (subtracted)

Numbers of pledged
shares added
(subtracted)

office

Assistant manager of
the sales department

Ru-ying Fan

Assistant manager of
the sales department

Zhengbin Qiu

Assistant manager of
the investment
division

Zhenyuan Chen

Assistant manager of
the investment
division

Xu Yizhi

Assistant manager of
the investment
division

Hou-sheng Jian

Assistant manager of
IT Department

Zhe-chong Lin

18,000

Head of Corporate
Governance and
Assistant Manager of
the Management
Department

Ruyu He

5,000

Director of Taoyuan
Works

Te-xiu Chen

Director of Miaoli
Works

Ming-zong Liu

60,000

Director of Kaohsiung
Works

Zong-yu Wang

(240,000)

Major shareholders
holding more than
10% of the shares

Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd.

11,165,000

0

280,000

0

Note 1: Director Joshua P.H. Tung, the representative of the corporate director Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd., was newly appointed on May 19,

2020.

Note 2: Senior VP Changhong Li of the President's Office has retired on June 29, 2020.

(INShare equity transfer information for directors, managers, and shareholders with

the shareholding ratio of 10% or greater: None.

(111)Equity pledge information for directors, managers, and shareholders with the
shareholding ratio of 10% or greater:

Name

Reason for
pledge
changes

Date of
change

Transaction
counterparty

Relationship
between
transaction
counterparty;
company,
director,
supervisors
managers as
as
with more
10% stake

the

well

shareholders

than

Number of
shares

Sharehol
ding ratio

Pledge
ratio

Pledge loan
(redemption)
amount

Liang Cheng
Investment
Co., Ltd.

Pledge | 2017.11

China Bills
Finance
Corporation

N/A

10,000,000
Shares

1% 1.00%

None

120




IX. Information on the relationship between any of the top ten shareholders (related party,

spouse, or Kinship within the second degree)

April 26, 2021

Name

Personal shareholding

Shares held by spouse
and underage children

Total shareholding by
nominee arrangement

Shareholders with the top 10
shareholding ratios who are
related, or their spouses and
second-degree relatives' names

and their
relationships

respective

Remarks

Shares Held
(Shares)

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Shares
Held
(Shares)

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Shares
Held
(Shares)

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Title
(or full name)

Relationship

None

Earle Ho and
Sons, Ltd.

146,136,779

13.41

N/A

N/A

0

None

None

None

Earle Ho and
Sons, Ltd.
Representative:
Hui-Ming Wu

128,432

0.01

None

None

None

Earle Ho and
Sons, Ltd.
Representative:
Joshua P.H.
Tung

23,381

160,000

0.01

None

None

None

Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.

66,173,877

6.07

N/A

N/A

None

None

None

Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Representative:
Henry C. T. Ho

142,426

0.01

113,000

0.01

Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Representative:
George Y. S.
Ho

Brother

None

Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Representative:
George Y. S.
Ho

10,000

Mao Sheng
Investment Inc.
Representative:
Henry C. T.
Ho

Brother

None

He Zhao
Investment Co.,
Ltd.
Representative:
Henry C. T. Ho

64,705,150

5.94

N/A

N/A

None

None

None

Public Service
Pension Fund
Management

Committee

28,437,385

2.61

N/A

N/A

None

None

None

Yu Tai
Investment Co.,
Ltd.
Representative:
Chih-Ming
Huang

19,381,193

1.78

N/A

N/A

None

None

None

Goldman Sachs
Emerging
Markets CORE
Equity Portfolio
Base Account
entrusted to the
Sales &
Marketing
Division of
Standard
Chartered Bank

12,514,000

1.15

N/A

N/A

None

None

None
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Yuanta Taiwan
High-Yield
Leading
Company Fund
Account 12,310,000 1.13 N/A N/A 0 0 None None None
entrusted to
Chang Hwa
Commercial
Bank

Vanguard
Emerging
Market ~ Stock
Index Fund
Account 11,835,660 1.09 N/A N/A 0 0 None None None
entrusted to
JPMorgan
Chase Bank
Taipei Branch

Nan Shan Life
Insurance Co.,
Ltd. 11,611,000 1.07 N/A N/A 0 0 None None None
Representative:
Tang Chen

Chi-cheng
Investment Inc.
Representative:
Pao-He Chen

11,314,080 1.04 N/A N/A 0 0 None None None

X. The shareholding of the Company, directors, management and an enterprise that is

directly or indirectly controlled by the Company in the invested company
December 31, 2020

Investments by directors,
Invecs:tgwn? n;r?y the managers and directly or Comprehensive investment
) ) pany indirectly controlled enterprises
Reinvestment business
Shares |Shareholding Shares Shareholding ratio |  Shares Shareholding
(thousands)| ratio (%) | (thousands) (%) (thousands) ratio (%)

Slaogang Warehousing 2,384 19.87 0 0 2,384 19.87
Hexawave Inc. 2,564 6.39 0 0 2,564 6.39
Taiwan Aerospace 1,621 1.19 0 0 1,621 1.19
Overseas investment 1,000 1.11 0 0 1,000 1.11
LI-Shi'Venture Capita 677 5.68 0 0 677 5.68
YU Venture Capital 558 4.76 0 0 558 4.76
Jatwan High Speed Rall 1,013 0.03 0 0 1,013 0.03
Dongjing Investment 0 9.13 0 0 0 9.13
Industrial Bank of
Taiwan 1,313 4.17 0 0 1,313 4.17
Global Venture 2,800 2.33 0 0 2,800 2.33
Chien Shing Harbour
Service Co. Ltd. 8,204 10.11 0 0 8,204 10.11
Katec Creative
Resources Corp. - 577 65.18 0 0 577 65.18
preferred shares
Tung Kang Wind Power 15,500 100 0 0 15,500 100
Fada 100 100 0 0 100 100
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Tung Yuan International

Corporation 0.08 100 0 0 0.08 100
Tung Kang Steel

Structure Co., Ltd. 197,565 97.48 5,097 2.52 202,103 99.71
Taiwan Steel Union Inc. 24,829 22.31 0 0 24,829 22.31
Katec R&D Corporation 4,705 46.19 0 0 4,705 46.19
Katec Creative

Resources Corp. 95,724 99.01 0 0 95,724 99.01
Galdham Development 15,000 100 0 o 15000 100
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam 100 100
Corp., Ltd. 0 0 0 0

Fujian Tung Kang Steel

Corp., Ltd. 0 0 0 100 0 100
Tung Kang Engineering

& Construction Co., Ltd. 0 0 25,000 100 25,000 100
Fujian Sino-Japan Metal

Corp. 0 0 0 35 0 35
3 Oceans International 0 0 1840 66.67 1840 66.67
Inc. ' ) ' )
De Or International

Enterprise Co., Ltd. 0 0 8,154 96.00 8,154 96
China Merchandise

Corp. 0 0 3 0.66 3 0.66
Tech Alliance Corp 0 0 569 5.69 569 5.69
Ding-Xing Development 0 0 150 15 150 15
Fujian DongSheng metal

processing co., Ltd. 0 0 0 51 0 51
Dung Tang Energy 5,400 36 0 0 5,400 36

Service Co., Ltd.
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D. Fund-raising Conditions

I. Capital and Shares
(I)Source of capital

1.Type of shares
April 27, 2021
Authorized capital
Type of h issued and Remarks
shares Shares Issued an Unissued shares Total
outstanding
Listed
ordinary 1,089,871,370 410,128,630 1,500,000,000 None
shares
2.Formation of capital
Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remarks
Par value
Year/ Offset share amount
month per share | Shares Held Amount (NT$) Shares Held Amount (NT$) Source of capital with assets other than Others
(NT$) (Shares) (Shares)
cash
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2007.01 10 1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 824,347,119 8,243,471,190 [ bonds of None 09601012140 issued
NT$243,601,360 on January 18, 2007
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2007.05 10 1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 884,130,387 8,841,303,870 [ bonds of None 09601100430 issued
NT$597,832,680 on May 9, 2007
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2007.07 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 911,739,989 9,117,399,890 | bonds of None 09601181070 issued
NT$276,096,020 on July 30, 2007
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2007.10 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 937,447,345 9,374,473,450 | bonds of None 09601254410 issued
NT$257,073,560 on October 17, 2007
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2007.12 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 943,812,404 9,438,124,040 | bonds of None 09601310120 issued
NT$63,650,590 on December 19, 2007
Canceled treasury Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2009.01 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 873,812,404 8,738,124,040 | stock of None 09801010110 issued
NT$700,000,000 on January 16, 2009
Capitalization of Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2009.09 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 900,017,836 9,000,178,360 | profits of None 09801200710 issued
NT$262,054,320 on September 7, 2009
Cash capital Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2009.10 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 944,517,836 9,445,178,360 | increase None 09801234430 issued
NT$445,000,000 on October 12, 2009
Converted corporate
bonds of .
Shou-Shang-Zi No.
NT$28,526,460 .
2009.11 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 947,072,482 9,470,724,820 None 09801265140 issued
Canceled treasury
stock of on November 13, 2009
NT$2,980,000
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2010.04 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 950,189,593 9,501,895,930 [ bonds of None 09901076350 issued
NT$31,171,110 on April 20, 2010
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2010.05 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 970,079,690 9,700,796,900 | bonds of None 09901100840 issued
NT$198,900,970 on May 18, 2010
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2010.07 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 976,178,411 9,761,784,110 | bonds of None 09901150550 issued
NT$60,987,210 on July 12, 2010
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2011.05 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 976,295,900 9,762,959,000 [ bonds of None 10001098990 issued
NT$1,174,890 on May 18, 2011
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Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remarks
Par value
Year/ Offset share amount
per share | Shares Held Shares Held . .
month Amount (NT$) Amount (NT$) Source of capital with assets other than Others
(NT$) (Shares) (Shares)
cash
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2011.11 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 980,929,084 9,809,290,840 [ bonds of None 10001272260 issued
NT$46,331,840 on November 30, 2011
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2012.09 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 980,949,968 9,809,499,680 [ bonds of None 10101193050 issued
NT$208,840 on September 14, 2012
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2012.11 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 987,498,693 9,874,986,930 [ bonds of None 10101236480 issued
NT$65,487,250 on November 14, 2012
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2013.03 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 991,771,203 9,917,712,030 | bonds of None 10201046600 issued
NT$42,725,100 on March 18, 2013
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2013.06 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 998,146,821 9,981,468,210 | bonds of None 10201103060 issued
NT$63,756,180 on June 3, 2013
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2013.09 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 998,202,069 9,982,020,690 [ bonds of None 10201181010 issued
NT$552,480 on September 3, 2013
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2014.12 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 998,221,448 9,982,214,480 [ bonds of None 10301251470 issued
NT$193,790 on December 5, 2014
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2017.12 10 1,200,000,000 12,000,000,000 1,000,224,069 10,002,240,690 | bonds of None 10601165320 issued
NT$20,026,210 on December 5, 2017
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2017.12 10 1,500,000,000 15,000,000,000 1,004,060,608 10,040,606,080 | bonds of None 10701033630 issued
NT$38,365,390 on March 28, 2018
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2020.12 10 1,500,000,000 15,000,000,000 1,016,790,163 10,167,901,630 | bonds of None 10901227680 issued
NT$127,295,550 on December 18, 2020
Converted corporate Shou-Shang-Zi No.
2021.04 10 1,500,000,000 15,000,000,000 1,089,871,370 10,898,713,700 | bonds of None 11001062940 issued
NT$730,812,070 on April 27, 2021
(I1)Shareholder structure
April 26, 2021
Foreign
Shareholder
Government | Financial Other legal Individual | organizations and
structure Total
) Agencies Institutions person investors foreign
Quantity
individuals
Number of
Shareholders 5 70 270 66,850 388 67,583
Number of shares
held 42,388,420 | 89,136,819 | 408,183,612 |287,253,401| 262,909,118 | 1,089,871,370
Shareholding ratio
%) 3.89 8.17 37.46 26.35 24.13 100
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(111)Shareholding distribution status

Par value of NT$10 per shareApril 26, 2021

) o Number of : .
Shareholding classification Number of shares held | Shareholding ratio (%)
shareholders

1-999 30,397 4,995,190 0.46
1,000 - 5,000 28,636 57,518,062 5.28
5,001 - 10,000 4,372 33,018,337 3.03
10,001 - 15,000 1,350 16,603,941 1.52
15,001 - 20,000 762 13,959,244 1.28
20,001 - 30,000 641 15,990,216 1.47
30,001 - 50,000 500 20,129,963 1.85
50,001 - 100,000 381 27,401,767 251
100,001 - 200,000 177 25,126,480 2.31
200,001 - 400,000 123 35,475,354 3.26
400,001 - 600,000 64 31,529,927 2.89
600,001 - 800,000 35 24,363,496 2.24
800,001 - 1,000,000 22 19,750,857 1.81
1,000,001 and above 123 764,008,536 70.09
Total 67,583 1,089,871,370 100

(IV)List of major shareholders: Shareholders with equity ratio of more than
5% or the names of the top 10 shareholders as well as their

shareholding amount and ratio.

April 26, 2021
Shares
Number:ecl); shares Shareholding ratio (%)

Name of the major shareholders
Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd. 146,136,779 13.41
Mao Sheng Investment Inc. 66,173,877 6.07
He Zhao Investment Co., Ltd. 64,705,150 5.94
Public Service Pension Fund Management Committee 28,437,385 2.61
Yu Tai Investment Co., Ltd. 19,381,193 1.78
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets CORE Equity Portfolio
Base Account entrusted to the Sales & Marketing Division of 12,514,000 1.15
Standard Chartered Bank
Yuanta Taiwan High-Yield Leading Company Fund Account
entrusted to Chang Hwa Commercial Bank 12,310,000 113
Vanguard Emerging Market Stock Index Fund Account
entrusted to JPMorgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch 11,835,660 1.09
Nan Shan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 11,611,000 1.07
Chi-cheng Investment Inc. 11,314,080 1.04
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(V)Market price per share, net worth, earnings, dividends, and the related

information for the last 2 years.

Unit: NT$
Year Up to March 31,
2019 2020
Item 2021
] Highegt 23.75 40.60 45.90
Markethp”ce Lowest 18.55 19.20 35.90
per share Average 21.53 25.92 40.19
Before distribution 24.10 27.16 N/A
Net worth per .
After distribution 25.55
share 22.75 N/A
(Note 1) (Note 6)
Weighted average number
_ 1,004,061 1,012,599 N/A
of shares (in thousands)
Before
retrospective
. ) 1.56 3.52 N/A
Earnings per adjustments
share Earnings (Note 2)
per share After
retrospective
i 1.56 3.52 N/A
adjustments
(Note 2)
Cash dividends (NT$) 1.35 1.50 N/A
Earnings 0 0 N/A
Dividend per Stock Capital
apita
PeT | dividends P 0 0 N/A
share Reserve
Accumulated unpaid
. 0 0 N/A
dividends
Price to earnings ratio
13.80 7.36 N/A
(Note 3)
Return on Price to dividends ratio
. 15.95 17.28 N/A
investment (Note 4)
Cash dividend yield
6.27 5.79 N/A
(Note 5)

Note 1: Fill-in based on the circumstances of the shareholders' meetings for the next year.
Note 2: Imputed based on basic earnings per share.
Note 3: Price earning ratio = average closing price per share for the year / earnings per share.
Note 4: Price earning ratio = average closing price per share for the year / cash dividends.
Note 5: Cash dividend yield = cash dividends / average closing price per share for the year.
Note 6: Passed the 2020 amount of cash dividend by resolution of the board of directors on March 23, 2021.
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(VI1)Dividend policy and implementation status
1.Dividend policy:

The amendment of the Company's Articles of Incorporation has been approved by
resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting in 2019, while the 2020 earnings distribution by
cash shall be handled by the resolution of the board of directors and reported to the
shareholders meeting.
The Company’s dividend policy is formulated by resolution of the board of directors,
taking into account the Company’s operating conditions, changes in the overall
environment and shareholder interests. Without considering other special circumstances,
the amount of earnings distributed for the current year shall be no less than 50% of net
profit.
In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, annual surpluses concluded by the
Company are first subject to taxation and reimbursement of previous losses, followed by a
10% provision for legal reserves, and provision or reversal of special reserves, as the
company operation or laws may require. The residual balance is then added to
undistributed earnings carried from previous years and may be distributed as earnings.
The Company's operational life span has reached a positive, stable, and mature stage. With
regard to earnings distribution, cash dividends shall be no less than 80% of total dividends,
and stock dividends shall be no higher than 20%.

2.Dividend distribution by resolution of the board of directors: After the company's 8th
annual Board of Director's meeting of the 24th term has approved to allocate cash
dividends of NT$1.50 per share, amounting to NT$1,634,807,055 with a total of
1,089,871,370 shares, if the number of shares outstanding is subsequently affected for
some other reason, and caused the interest rate for the allocated shares to change as a result,
the chairman shall be authorized to provide adjustments accordingly.

(V1) The effects of the stock dividends proposed by the shareholders' meeting on the
company's business performances and earnings per share: Not applicable.

(VIHT)Remuneration of employees and directors

1.Percentages or ranges of remuneration of employees and directors under the Articles of
Incorporation

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, if the company sustains profit for the
current year, 2.5% or more of the income shall be set aside as remunerations to employees,
and 2% or less of the income shall be distributed as director remuneration. The distribution
shall be resolved by the Board of directors and reported in the shareholder's meeting.
However, an amount shall be set aside first to compensate cumulative losses, if any. The
allocation of employee remuneration does not include the employees of the Company’s
affiliates.
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If employee remuneration is distributed in the form of new stock, employee stock shall be
calculated based on the closing price of the day before the Board of directors' meeting.

2.Basis for estimating the amount of remuneration of employees and directors, basis for
calculating the number of shares to be distributed as employee remuneration, and the
accounting treatment of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed amount and
the estimated amount, for the current period:
The distribution of the 2020 remuneration of employees by cash and 2020 director
remuneration have been approved by resolution of the board of directors on March 23,
2021. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. If the estimated
amount differs from the actual distributed amount, the discrepancies will be considered an

accounting estimation and adjusted in the annual report.

3.Remuneration proposals passed by the Board of Directors:
(1) Employee and director remuneration will be distributed in cash or stocks:

Unit: NT$
ltem Resolution of the Board of Directors
(March 23, 2021)
Director remuneration (cash) 91,919,260
Employee remuneration (cash) 114,899,075

(2) If the amount is different than the estimated annual expense amounts, the
discrepancy amount, reason, and disposal status shall be disclosed:
There was no discrepancy with estimated annual expense amounts.

(3) The amount of employee bonus to be paid in stocks out of the current
company-level financial report in terms of the sum of net profit after tax and
employee bonus: Not applicable as the Company has no plans on distributing

employee stock dividends.

4.Any discrepancy between actual distribution of remuneration of employees and directors
(including the number of shares, the amount and stock price) and the recognized
remuneration of employees and directors and disclosure of the differences, reasons and

responses:
Unit: NT$
Actual allocation Resolution of the Board of Directors Difference
amount (February 27, 2020)
Director 43,756,848 43,756,848 None
remuneration (cash)
Employee 54,696,060 54,696,060 None
remuneration (cash)
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(IX)Status of company share buy back None.
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Il. Corporate bond issuance status
(Corporate bond issuance status

March 31, 2021

The 7th domestic unsecured

Company bond type convertible bonds
Issuance (processing) date 2018.05.14
Face value NT$100,000

Location of issuance and
transactions

Taipei Exchange

Issuing price Issued based on face value
Total NT$2,000,000,000
Interest rate 0%

Duration

Five-year maturity date: 2023.05.14

Guarantee institution

None

Trustee

Trust Department of Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

Underwriting institution

Taishin Securities Co., Ltd.

Visa attorney

Yi-Cheng Peng

CPA

Huizhi Kou and Hsinying Kuo

Repayment method

Repayment of principal by cash on due
date except otherwise for matters
related to conversion regulations,
exercise of selling rights, early
redemption, or repurchase and
cancellation.

Outstanding principal

NT$0

The terms of redemption

The convertible bonds shall be
redeemed at 100.75% face value after
three years of issuance,

or prepayment and redeemed at 101.00% face value
after four years of issuance.

Restriction clause None

The credit rating institution's

name, date of rating, and N/A

corporate bond rating results

Converted to
ordinary

(exchange or
subscription)
shares, global

depository
receipts, or
: other
Other  rights
attached marketable

securities as of
the date of this
annual report

The 7th series convertible bonds were
converted to Tung Ho Steel's common
shares at NT$858,107,620.

Issuance and
conversion

(exchange or  |Omitted
subscription)
method

Issuance and conversion, None
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exchange or subscription
methods, and the condition of
issuance that may dilute share
equity and affect equity rights
for the existing shareholders

Name of the commissioned
custodian institution for the
exchange bid

None

(INConvertible bond data

Note: The convertible bond has been suspended listing at Taipei Exchange on March 8, 2021.

Unit: NT$
Company bond type The 7th domestic unsecured convertible bonds
Year From this year to March 5,
ltem 2019 2020 2021
(Note 3)
Market Highest 106.50 173.00 156.00
price of the Lowest 100.00 100.50 153.00
Cont‘)’sr:gb'e Average 102.86 120.00 154.66
Conversion price 24.80 (Note 1) 23.30 (Note 2) 23.30
Issuance date and Issuance date:_May .14' Issuance date: May 14, | Issuance date: May 14,
: . . 2018, conversion price : : i .
conversion price during during issuance 201_8, _conversion  price 201_8, _conversion  price
issuance NT$27.80 during issuance NT$27.80 | during issuance NT$27.80
Method of conversion Issuance of new shares Issuance of new shares Issuance of new shares

Note 1: The conversion price of the 7th domestic unsecured convertible bond was adjusted to NT$24.80 due to distribution of
cash dividend on July 22, 2019.
Note 2: The conversion price of the 7th domestic unsecured convertible bond was adjusted to NT$23.30 due to distribution of

cash dividend on June 20, 2020.
Note 3: The 7th domestic unsecured convertible bond has been suspended listing at Taipei Exchange on March 8, 2021.

I11.1ssuance of preferred stocks: None.
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IV. Issuance of global depositary receipts (GDR)
March 31, 2021

Issuance (processing) date
September 22, 1994

Item

Issuance (processing) date 1994.09.22

Location of issuance and transactions  |Bourse de Luxembourg

Total amount issued USD103,200,000

Issue price per GDR USD17.20

Units issued 6,000,000 units

Underlying Securities Common shares of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation

Common Shares Represented 68,610,809 Shares

Rights and obligations of the GDR Enjoy the same rights and obligations as those of Tung Ho Steel
holders Enterprise Corporation’s shareholders

Trustee The Bank of New York Mellon

Depository bank The Bank of New York Mellon

Custodian bank Far Eastern International Bank

Outstanding Balance 734,513 units

Allocation method for the related The issuance expenses shall serve as capital reserve reduction,

expenses during the issuance and and the subsisting period expenses shall serve as current expenses

subsisting periods

Terms and conditions for depositary and |The depository institution shall exercise the voting rights of the
custodial contracts original securities attached to the depositary receipts in
accordance with the instructions provided by the deposit receipt
holders as well as the depositary contract and the laws and
regulations of the Republic of China

Highest 7.67
2019 Lowest 6.04
Average 6.95
Market Highest 13.60
price per 2020 Lowest 6.40
unit Average 8.82
Highest 15.80

Up to March
Lowest 11.20

31, 2021

Average 12.99

V. lIssuance of employee subscription right and restricted stock awards: None.

V1. Mergers, acquisitions or issuance of new shares for acquisition of shares of other
companies: None.
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VIl.Implementation status of the capital utilization plan
Issued the 7th domestic unsecured convertible bonds

() The total amount of funds required for this project: NT$2.5 billion.

(I)Source of funds: The 7th domestic unsecured convertible bonds of 20,000 units, with
denomination of NT$100,000, have been issued at 100.5% face value, which raised total
funds of NT$2.01 billion. The coupon rate is 0% under a bond duration of five years. If the

requirement is deemed to be insufficient, it shall be covered by the Company’s own funds.

(lMPlan project, expected progress, and the expected possible benefits
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

_ Expected capital spending
o Expected Total amount of capital
Project item ] ) schedule
completion date required
Quarter 2 2018
Repayment of bank loans Quarter 2 2018 2,512,500 2,512,500
Total 2,512,500 2,512,500

Expected benefits

Repaying the bank loans can save NT$22,070,000 in interest expenses for

2018, and can save NT$37,835,000 in interest expenses each year starting

from 2019.

(IV)The anticipated benefits and the actual results: For the fundraising plan, NT$2,010,000,000
was for the repayment of bank borrowings. Up to Quarter 2 2018, the actual amount spent
was NT$2,010,000,000. Meanwhile, the company has saved interest expenses of
NT$20,583,000 in 2018, and is expected to save interest expenses of NT$35,286,000 in the
following fiscal years. As of Quarter 2 2018, the funding progress and its implementation

complies with the original schedule, and there has been no significant difference between

the estimated and actual benefits.
(V)Implementation status: As of the second quarter of 2018, the expected capital spending was
NT$2,010,000,000, while the actual amount of expenditure was NT$2,010,000,000. After
the Company completed the repayment of 100% bank borrowings in accordance with the

expected capital spending schedule, it reported to the TWSE for complying with the original

repayment schedule in July 2018, with no material irregularities.
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E. Business Overview of the Company and Its Subsidiaries
Business content
(1)Scope of business
1.Main content:

Main business item

Parent company and subsidiary

Main contents and the current product (service) lineup

(1) Manufacturing processing and sales of re-bar, flat
iron, angle iron, channel iron, plate element, and
other steel products.

Manufacturing processing and sales of steel and
alloy steel, tool steel, high carbon steel, and other

special steel.

()

(3) Processing and trading of iron and steel industrial
Parent Tung Ho Steel Enterprise raw materials, hardware, machinery, iron electrical
company Corporation materials, and light metal manufacturing.

(4) lron and steel smelting, rolling, heat treatment,
painting, plating, and processing operations.

(5) Manufacturing, processing, and trading of steel
plates, bars, and rails.

(6) Design, manufacture, processing, and trading of
various structural steel, steel materials, and
mechanical bodies.

Tung Kang Steel Structure Co., | (1) Iron and Steel Rolling, Drawing, and Extruding.
Ltd. (2) Steel Construction.
(1) Waste/scraps disposal industry.
Katec Creative Resources Corp. (2) Waste and resource_recycling industry.
(3) Iron and steel smelting industry.
(4) Other non-ferrous metal basic industries.
Tung Kang Wind Power Co., Ltd. I[II))OeV\\/Izlropment, production, distribution and sales of wind
Fada Corp. Recycli_ng, lease, wholesale of recycled supplies,
international trade.
3 Oceans International Inc. Foreign investments.

(1) Comprehensive management of construction and
maintenance.

(2) Synthesis Construction.

(3) Recycling.

Subsidiaries Lo (4) Wholesale of construction materials.
Tung Kang Engineering & .
Construction Co., Ltd. (5) Wholesale of ironware.

(6) New plant construction.

(7) Construction engineering business.

(8) Public works.

(9) Iron and Steel Rolling, Drawing, and Extruding.
(10) Wholesale of recycled materials.

Fujian Tung Kang Steel Co., Ltd.

(1)Produce steel products and related products as well as
provide the corresponding installation and ancillary
services.

(2)Stone materials, construction and decoration materials,
welding materials, plastic products, aluminum alloy
products, metallurgical materials, and metal products.

Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd.

Production and sales of billets, re-bar, small steel, and wire

DongSheng Metal Processing

Manufacturing and sales of metal structures.
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Co., Ltd.

Dung Tang Energy Service Co., | Fertilizer manufacturing and renewable energy self-use

Ltd. generation equipment.
Duc Hoa International J.S.C. Manufacture of quicklime.
(Note)

Note: Duc Hoa International J.S.C. has been incorporated in the preparation of consolidated financial reports since January 20,
2020.

2.Revenue Breakdown

ltem As a percentage c_Jf As a percentage c_Jf

Products cumulative operating cumulative operating

revenue for 2019 (%) revenue for 2020 (%)
Re-bar 48 49
Section beam (Note 1) 28 32
Billet 4 1
Others (Note 2) 20 18
Total 100 100

Note 1: The section beams include H-beams, plates, channels, I-beams, and steel sheet piles.

Note 2: Others refer to the operating income of consolidated subsidiaries from products other than
re-bars, section beams and billets in the consolidated financial report after consolidations and
write-offs, and the balance on construction contracts (Tung Kang Steel Structure Co., Ltd.
and Fujian Tung Kang Steel Corp., Ltd.)

3.New merchandise to be developed
Development of billets with high steel cleanliness and high toughness,
development of low-carbon green process technology for electric furnace,
electric furnace scrap preheating continuous feeding process research,
development of H-beam Universal Edging (UE) new rolling technology,
development of H-beam/ steel plate on-line size automatic measurement and
surface quality inspection system, development of angle and flat bar H/V
(horizontal/ vertical) combination rolling, development of Al applications and
smart chemical process technology, and research on carbon steel oxidizing
slag asphalt pavement and testing.

(1) Industry overview
1.Current status and development of the industry
Tung Ho Steel’s consolidated sales came in at NT$42.866 billion in 2020,
which fell by 4.45% compared to the NT$44.864 billion in 2019, whereas the
consolidated sales volume increased by 3.79% YoY to 2.235 million tons in
2020 from 2.1533 million tons in 2019. Given the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic, the decline in international steel raw material prices slightly
dragged down the Group’s sales. Nonetheless, the pandemic prevention was
successful in Taiwan, and coupled with the affect of US-China trade war,
Taiwan’s overall economy grew by 2.98% against headwinds, which was top
among the developed countries in the world. Tung Ho Steel's 2020

consolidated net profit grew by 128.31% compared to 2019, and hit record
136



high since the financial tsunami in 2008, while EPS significantly increased to
NT$3.52 in 2020 from NT$1.56 in 2019. Tung Ho Steel has been adhering to
the marketing strategy of complementary products re-bars and H-beams, and
implementation of raw material procurement and inventory control, which
doubled overall profits in 2020.

Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd. is Tung Ho Steel’s first overseas
production base which include electric furnace smelting and rolling mill.
Since it commenced re-bar production in 2019, Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd. brand image has gradually gained market recognition, and turned to
profits in the fourth quarter of 2020. Overall, Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,
Ltd. suffered losses in 2020, but the amount of loss has reduced year by year.
Tung Ho Steel's long-term overseas investment strategy involves deployment
in the emerging steel market in Southeast Asia. In view of the rapid economic
growth in Vietnam and ASEAN countries, the deployment may contribute to
better long-term operating performance of the parent company.

Furthermore, in the first half of 2020, Tung Kang Steel Structure Co., Ltd. ‘s
projects under construction and new constructions were mostly delayed due
to the pandemic. This caused the annual sales volume to decrease by 27.87%
and 14.19% when compared to 2019. However, with the success of Taiwan’s
epidemic prevention in the second half of the year, operational performance
significantly improved, and with current orders now extending to mid-2022,
operational performance continues to grow. On the other hand, with the
effects of the pandemic in China and growing anti-China sentiments around
the world, Fujian Tung Kang Steel Corp., Ltd. has experienced a dramatic
decrease of 53.69% in sales compared to 2019. The domestic and
international trade problems faced by foreign companies in China are the key
issues and challenges related to operational performance this year.

Tung Ho Steel has been actively investing in green energy and environmental
protection businesses in the past: The invested companies include Tung Kang
Wind Power Corp., Dung Tang Energy Service Co., Ltd., Katec Creative
Resources Corp., Katec R&D Corporation and Taiwan Steel Union Inc. Tung
Ho Steel's investment in green energy and environmental protection
businesses are currently at the seeding stage. These two industries are closely
related to Tung Ho's primary business and are key to determining the future
competitiveness of steel businesses. In future, green energy, waste reduction
and carbon reduction will become the core competitiveness of steel industries,
an aspect that Tung Ho aims to incorporate in its long-term investment
planning and corporate sustainability. In 2020, the "Major Electricity User
Clauses" was officially announced, and the amendment of "Climate Change
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Response Act" according to the Greenhouse Gas Reduction and Management
Act would be completed. To achieve the goal of carbon neutrality by 2050 in
response to global climate change, Tung Ho Steel actively participates in
international initiatives related to environment and climate change in 2020,
including EPD (Environmental Product Declaration), TCFD (Task force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures), and CDP (Carbon Disclosures Project)

- climate change.

2.The status of the upper, middle, and downstream relationships for the industry
(1)Tung Ho Steel
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(2) Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., Ltd.

Consumable matenials
(refractories, electrode rods,

copper mold)
I
¥
Raw matenals
(castwon, |~ * Steel makmg *  Steel rollmg #  Steel embryo
SCTAP 1on)
i
I
- f1 Export
Quacklime, coke. and alloy won Dt’:}l: E o4 - s.ﬂp:s
inchiding silicon, manganess,
vanadium and won
L b r
Small Wire rod
mﬁm;k Rtbﬁl conl
r L J
Domestic Expon
sales sales

(111)Overview of Technology and R&D
1.R&D plan for the last two fiscal years

Item

2020 R&D program

2021 R&D program

(1) Steelmaking

a.Development of billets with
high steel cleanliness and high
toughness.

b.Development of SM570 steel
plate of 50mm thickness.

c.Development of high-strength
re-bar.

d.Development of advanced
steel material for ships.

e.Development of
ultra-high-strength steel.

f.Testing of various supplies and
refractory materials.

a.Development of billets with
high steel cleanliness and high
toughness.

b.Development of SM570 steel
plate of 50mm thickness.

c.Development of high-strength
re-bar.

d.Development of advanced
steel material for ships.

e.Development of
ultra-high-strength steel.

f.Testing of various supplies and
refractory materials.

g.Research on off-gas detection
of electric furnaces and
dynamic control of burners
and combustion chambers.

h.Research on ORC power
generation technology for
electric furnace waste heat
recovery.

i.Development of low-carbon
and green manufacturing
technology for electric
furnace.

j.Electric furnace scrap
preheating continuous feeding
process research.

(2) Steel rolling

a.Leading R&D
developing the

plan in
new

a.Leading R&D
developing the

plan in
new
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technology for low-energy
direct rolling to increase
tensile strength of
ultra-high-strength re-bar by
more than 1.6 times.
b.Development of billet welding
technology and application of
direct rolling technology for
continual re-bar rolling.

c.The R&D plan of universal
edging, a new special rolling
technology for the production
of H-beams with B value of
more than 300mm.

d.Development of H-beam/ steel
plate on-line size automatic
measurement and  surface
defect detection system.

e.Development of smart
combustion control system for
heating furnace.

f.Development of angle and flat
bar H/V (horizontal/ vertical)
combination rolling.

g.R&D plan for tandem
reciprocating universal edging
round profiled material rolling
technology.

h.Leading small-scale R&D plan
for domestic small steel.

i.Development of
ultra-high-strength steel.

technology for low-energy
direct rolling to increase
tensile strength of
ultra-high-strength re-bar by
more than 1.6 times.
b.Development of billet welding
technology and application of
direct rolling technology for
continual re-bar rolling.

c.The R&D plan of universal
edging, a new special rolling
technology for the production
of H-beams with B value of
more than 300mm.

d.Development of H-beam/ steel
plate on-line size automatic
measurement and  surface
quality inspection system.

e.Development of smart
combustion control system for
heating furnace.

f.Development of angle and flat
bar H/V (horizontal/ vertical)
combination rolling.

g.R&D plan for tandem
reciprocating universal edging
round profiled material rolling
technology.

h.Leading small-scale R&D plan
for domestic small steel.

i.Development of
ultra-high-strength steel.

(3) Others

a."Research on Curved Steel
Pipes Formed by Cold
Bending for Buildings"

b."Research on Temperature
Change and Post fire
resistance Assessment for

High-Strength Screw
Deformed Rebars and
Couplers ™.

c."Research on Carbon Steel
Oxidizing  Slag  Asphalt
Pavement and Testing" new
technology R&D projects.

a.Development of Al
applications and smart
chemical process technology.
b."Research on Temperature
Change and Post fire
resistance  Assessment for

High-Strength Screw
Deformed Rebars and
Couplers ™.

c."Research on Carbon Steel
Oxidizing  Slag  Asphalt
Pavement and Testing" new
technology R&D projects.

d.Comprehensive and innovative
solutions to promote a
circular economy in the steel
industry.
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2.R&D expenditure in most recent years up to the date of publication of annual report

Unit: NT$

Year Up to March 31,
ltem 2019 2020 2021
Total research and
development expenses for 3,603,857 2,652,989 504,371
Taoyuan plant
Total research and
development expenses for 23,675,130 25,720,581 6,018,680
Miaoli plant
Total research and
development expenses for 12,246,451| 10,592,858 2,666,591
Kaohsiung plant
Total R&D expenditure 39,5625,438| 38,966,428 9,189,642
Ratio of total R&D
expenditure to net sales (%) 0.09 0.09 0.18

(IV)Long- and short-term business development plans:

1.Short-term development plan - marketing business strategies:

(1)Given successful development and introduction of COVID-19 vaccines and active
arrangements of vaccinations, we are optimistic towards global economic recovery, and
expect that the world will face inflation. With that, we will further strengthen risk
management in accounts receivables and control the volume and scheduling of raw
material procurement.

(2)Observing the impact of continuous steel capacity expansion of emerging countries on the
global steel market, especially in India and Southeast Asian countries.

(3)Observation and evaluation of the follow-up impact on the global steel market since China
has lifted export tax rebates on most steel products on May 1, 2021.

(4)Evaluation of opportunities and risks for global economic development considering that the
US-China trade war has led to oppositions between communists and democratic countries,
as well as geopolitical turbulence.

(5)In response to the government's Paris Agreement NDC (National Determined
Contribution), Tung Ho Steel has formulated the carbon reduction plan based on
greenhouse gas emissions in 2005.

(6)The key aspects that require careful studying for the medium and long term include: the
official announcement of "Major Electricity User Clauses", green power generation issues,
and prolonged price tension in domestic electricity.

(7)The amendment of "Climate Change Response Act" would be completed in 2020,
stipulating measures such as imposing carbon taxes and the control of total carbon
emissions, which may exert a significant impact on the steel industry.

(8)Strengthen the monitoring of raw material and steel product international price volatility
trends to disperse the sources of raw material procurement.

(9)Urge the government to pass the CNS international standard verification and registration
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system for various types of steel products as soon as possible.

(10)Implement the industry and marketing project involving order-based productions and
deepen cost-control project productions.

(11)Strengthen and integrate domestic and foreign sales channels.

2.Long-term development plan - marketing business strategies:

(1)Develop new markets for high value added products.

(2)Respond to the market supply/demand and competition relationship changes, and
reintegrate Tung Ho Steel's market position and product orientation.

(3)Prudently develop measures and the possibility to eliminate market trade barriers in
developing countries, and strengthen the practical overseas investment feasibility
evaluations.

(4)Tapping into the Vietnam and ASEAN markets, and strengthening the knowledge of local
legal affairs and taxation, with local market analysis and relevant investments.

Il. Status of Market and Sales
(Market analysis
1.Sales region for the main products.
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; %

Year 2020 2019

Region Amount % Amount %

_ Asia 3,540,385 8.26| 4,402,603 9.81
Foreign )

sales America 46,747 0.11| 1,616,046 3.60
Others 675,784 1.58| 842,246 1.88
Subtotal 4,262,916 9.95| 6,860,895 15.29
Domestic sales 38,603,374 90.05|38,002,705 84.71
Total 42,866,290 100.00|44,863,600 100.00

2.Domestic market share of the Company’s main products

Unit: Tons
Year 2020 2019
Item

Total domestic sales 993,946 870,529

H-beam volume
This company 566,482 481,498
Market share (%) 56.99 55.31
Total domestic sales 6,589,351 5 982,643

Re-bar volume
This company 1,073,104 1,076,545
Market share (%) 16.29 18.00

Source: Taiwan Steel & Iron Industries Association
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3.Supply and Demand for the future market
Looking forward to 2021, given slowdown of COVID-19 pandemic, we are optimistic
towards quick global economic recovery. Thanks to Taiwan’s successful pandemic
prevention and benefits from US-China trade war, we forecast upbeat demand on domestic
investment, with orders visible in the short and medium term, and coupled with strong
demand in the construction industry, we expect Tung Ho Steel to achieve better business
performance.

However, there are still various factors to be observed in 2021. Firstly, despite
successful development and introduction of COVID-19 vaccines and active arrangements of
vaccinations, the allocation is uneven around the world. Hence, the key factors for the
slowdown of COVID-19 pandemic and global economic recovery include whether the
COVID-19 pandemic in developing countries may be effectively controlled, and countries
around the world can receive the COVID-19 vaccines through the COVAX Mechanism.

Secondly, international brands and companies have faced national boycott in China as
they were deemed to “smear and attack China and hurt Chinese interests while making
profits in the Chinese market”. All individuals and companies must express their own views
due to peer pressure, which led to oppositions between communists and democratic countries.
In addition, the U.S. recently held a Global Climate Action Summit. The participating
countries emphasized on their specific contributions in response to climate change, energy
conservation and carbon reduction, whereas China pledges to achieve CO2 emissions peak
before 2030, which once again led to oppositions between developed countries and
developing countries for long-term climate change issues, and intensified geopolitical
turbulence.

Furthermore, China has cancelled export tax rebates on most steel products since May 1,
2021, which immediately alleviated the pressure from Chinese steel dumping in the global
steel market. Nonetheless, Chinese steel companies have actively invested in foreign
countries in recent years, especially in Southeast Asia, including: Alliance Steel (M) Sdn.
Bhd., Dexin Steel Indonesia, Qingshan iron and Steel Co., Ltd., and Hebei Iron & Steel
Group Co. Ltd. plans to jointly establish an integrated steel plant with 8 million tons capacity
in the Philippines, and coupled with the rapid growth of steel companies in Southeast Asia,
G20 Global Forum on Global Forum on Steel Excess Capacity (GFSEC) announced in the
video conference in 2020 that: The steel production capacity of Southeast Asian countries
will surge from 89.5 million tons nowadays to 151 million tons in the next few years.
Moreover, India has surpassed Japan in 2018, and became second only to China for global
crude steel production. According to China Iron and Steel Association, India’s steel
production capacity is estimated to reach 300 million tons in 2030. These emerging countries
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could replace China on influencing the global steel market, and exacerbate the problem of
excess capacity in the global steel industry.

Finally, thanks to successful COVID-19 pandemic prevention and benefits from the
US-China trade war, we see booming fixed-asset investment (FAI) growth amid strong
demand in the construction industry. However, there were unfavorable factors which will
exert a negative influence on Taiwan's overall economic growth, including the worsening
labor shortage in Taiwan’s construction industry due to aging population and unwillingness
of youth to participate in the 3K industries, as well as the recent severe water scarcity in

Taiwan due to global climate change.

4.Competitive niche

(1)Long years of industry experience

Since its establishment in 1962, the company has specialized in steel rolling and
steelmaking for more than 50 years, and its senior management also served in the company
for more than a decade, with high professional familiarity in the steel industry, and lead the
company in formulating effective competitive strategies in response to industrial changes.
(2)Excellent product quality

In view of fierce competition in the steel industry, the Company adheres to improving
product quality to maintain its competitiveness. The Miaoli, Taoyuan, and Kaohsiung plants
have obtained 1SO certification, while the Company has maintained stable relationships
downstream customers over the years on the back of stable steel quality.
(3)R&D excellence

In the past years, the Company's R&D achieved outstanding results. The main
steelmaking R&D achievements include: Development of high strength steel billets for
rebars, ultra-high strength steel, restored melted slag process development, and furnace
material recycle technology development. The main R&D achievements are as follows:
High-strength threaded rebar, high-strength threaded rebar coupler, U-shaped steel sheet
piles, billet induction heating processing, ultra-thick H-shaped steel and various shaped
steels with distinct specifications were developed in order to diversify our products, enhance
our technical capability, and increase the Company's revenue and profit. The R&D plans
under progress include: Research on off-gas detection of electric furnaces and dynamic
control of burners and combustion chambers, development of billets with high steel
cleanliness and high toughness, R&D for low-energy direct rolling of ultra-high-strength
re-bar, development of billet welding and endless rolling technology technology, R&D for
tandem reciprocating universal edging round profiled material rolling technology,
development of low-alloy ultra-high-strength steel plate, and development of restored melted
slag recycling process.
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5.Favorable and unfavorable factors for the development
(1)Favorable factors

a.Since the Tung Ho Steel Taoyuan Plant was officially put into production on October
31, 2010, its energy conservation and carbon reduction based environmental friendly
production process can reduce production costs by approximately 30% to 40%
compared to that of the traditional steel plants. The second production line officially
commenced production in the 4th quarter of 2017, which will aid Tung Ho steel to
further implement an environmental protection process for energy conservation and
carbon reduction, and its contributions to Tung Ho Steel's overall operating
performance materialized in the past two years. Looking forward, we expect the second
production line to strengthen Tung Ho Steel's competitive advantage in the domestic
re-bar market.

b.The Neihu MRT's steel medium-capacity rails and guide rails developed and produced
by Tung Ho Steel enables Tung Ho Steel to become the only steel manufacturer in the
entire Asia with medium-capacity steel rail projects, which is conducive to the
company's expansion to the United States, China, and Southeast Asia export markets.

c.China lifts export tax rebate on most steel works.

d.Successful prevention of COVID-19 pandemic in Taiwan and the US-China trade war.

e.The global warming and greenhouse gas emission issues have received great attention.
"Carbon customs tax,” "carbon and energy taxes,” and "carbon trading” will be
common problems that the global industry must face together. Tung Ho Steel’s electric
arc furnace production process has a competitive advantage compared to that of the
blast furnace process, and its investment in energy conservation and carbon reduction
equipment is also ahead of its peers.

f.The amendment of "Climate Change Response Act" would be completed in 2020,
stipulating measures such as imposing carbon taxes and the control of total carbon
emissions.

g.Tapping into the Vietnam and ASEAN markets with active deployment.
(2)Unfavorable factors

a.Whether the emerging developing countries can follow the effective COVID-19 pandemic
prevention and control in advanced countries.

b.Taiwan’s water resource in response to global climate change.

c.The presence of high-cost alternative and green energy will further exacerbate the pressure
of operating cost control.

d.Labor shortage in Taiwan’s construction industry due to aging population and unwillingness
of youth to participate in the 3K industries.

e.The US-China trade war has led to tensions between communists and democratic
countries, as well as geopolitical turbulence.

f.Export businesses are facing more severe challenges given rising steel production
capacity in developing countries, especially in Southeast Asia and India, as well as the
prevalence of trade protectionism.

145



(3)The external environmental issues:
a.Despite successful development and introduction of COVID-19 vaccines and active

arrangements of vaccinations, the allocation is uneven around the world. It still remains

o

be seen whether the COVID-19 pandemic in developing countries may be

effectively controlled.

b.Taking into account the impact of COVID-19 pandemic for the deployment of global

upstream and downstream supply chains.

c.The US-China trade war has led to tensions between communists and democratic

countries, as well as geopolitical turbulence.

d.The excess steel production capacity of developed countries and rising steel production

capacity of emerging countries.

e.Green power generation issues and prolonged price tension in domestic electricity.

f.Taiwan’s water resource management in response to global climate change.

g.Labor shortage in Taiwan’s construction industry due to aging population and

unwillingness of youth to participate in the 3K industries.

(I)Major product manufacturing processes
1.Product use

1)
)

©)
(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Rebar: Civil engineering and construction steel material.

Billet: Production of steel, steel bars, wire rods, H-beams, channel steel, steel
semi-finished products.

H-beam: Structural steel base material for steel construction and civil engineering.
Universal steel plate: Structural steel materials for assembly type steel such as welded
H-beams, box columns, and truss columns.

Large steel channel: Structural steel materials for steel construction, mechanical and
electrical equipment, etc.

U-shaped steel sheet pile: Broadly used in retaining walls, piers, dams and levees, and
other projects. Moreover, it can be recycled and reused, with evident effects of protecting
the environment. U-beam steel sheet piles are characterized by high strength, light weight,
good waterproofing, durability, and easy of construction.

Steel structure: Plant, high-rise buildings, span building, civil construction, construction
steel materials and consolidated construction.

Environmental protection business-restored steel: Sold to steel refining plants for use as
raw materials for steel refining.

Environmental protection business-crude zinc oxide: Sold to Zn metal refining plants for
use as raw materials.

Environmental protection business-Slag products: Used as subbase material and

aggregates.
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(11) Wind power generation: The electricity generated is sold to TPC and delivered to users.
(12) Quicklime: Steel refining auxiliary materials.

2.Production process

(1) Billet refinement
Power transmissionAuxiliary materials

Vo

Scra_p metal —_— Mate_rlal Fusion period Reflnlng
weighing loading period
+
Billet — Contlr}uous Molten_ steel Analysis tests
casting tapping
(2) Rolling steel
B_|Ilgt High-frequen Rough rolling Interm_edlate
weighing cy furnace rolling
_ ]
Rebar <+— | Strapping Mechanical Finishing
tests
(3) Rolled H-beam
B_llle_t —_— Furnace Un_lversa_tl Unl\_/ersal_
weighing rolling mill roughing mill
¥
Roll Universal H-beam wing
H-beam | correction S . width rolling
. finishing mill .
machine mill
(4) Universal plate rolling
B_lllgt Furnace Un_lversa}l Vertical roller
weighing rolling mill edger
Steel plate Plate leveling Universal Universal
P - machine finishing mill roughing mill
(5) Large channel for rolling
Billet Furnace Billet opening Universal
weighing ' machine roughing mill
¥
Large steel .ROII . Universal Horizontal roll
<+— | straightening N .
channel machine finishing mill edger
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(6)

Steel structure manufacturing
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(7) Environmental protection process

Steel refining industry,
urban furnace, healthcare
industry, plating industry, oil
refining industry, plastic

industry and battery
manufacturing industry

Acquire substances in various
output wastes that contain

Create new technology
industries with strategic
drives and environmental
protection causes

valuable metal, recyclable
energy and can be used as
reducing agents.

Waste gas and

Raw material wastewater
recycling

Agglomeration
plant
Melting plant

Key environmental
protection-related
industry

el

Recycle treatment
equipment and equipment
associated with thistypeof ~ \ | TTTTTT77% g
industry, including melting
furnace equipment, powder
agglomeration equipment, Products
crushing equipment,
restored steel production
equipment, and transformer
equipment.

Waste/ scraps

Industries  supplying raw materials and
industries that use renewable resources to
convert or regenerate products

Output products such as restored steel,
nickel-chromium alloy steel slag and
concentrated ZnO-containing secondary dust
can be provided to refining plants and raw
materials used by metal refining manufacturers.
Furnace slags can be used as raw materials for
construction developers.
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Engineering industry that
uses waste gas treatment
equipment and water
treatment equipment.

Domestic and foreign raw
material reduction and
re-circulation related
industry

In this project, almost no
wastes are produced. If the
produced secondary dust (i.e.,
crude ZnO) contains ZnO at a
level not satisfying the
required standard, it can be
re-processed in a furnace or
solidified and buried.



(8)

Supply,
installation and
maintenance of

Wind power generation

cecinm i Wind power Transmission —_—
gﬁgmfg'&%mg = | generation | ™ line - TPC User
(Enercon in
Germany)
(1) Main raw material supply of the parent company and subsidiaries
1.Purchase of main raw materials in 2020
Unit: Tons
Quarter
) . Second . Fourth
Company Quantity | First quarter quarter Third quarter quarter Total
Product name
Domestic 240,548 218,854 216,726 248,417 924,545
Scraps
Foreign 264,068 224,553 244,990 197,228 930,839
Domestic 2,293 0 0 0 2,293
Pig iron
Foreign 0 36,459 9,046 0 45 505
Domestic 0 0 0 0 0
Ferro-silicon
Tung Ho Foreign 1,400 1,000 400 1,500 4,300
Steel Ferro-mangan Domestic 0 0 0 0 0
ese Foreign 500 600 500 821 2,421
Ferro-Silicon- Domestic 0 0 0 0 0
Manganese | Eoreign 5,700 5,200 6,200 6,300 23,400
Domestic 0 0 0 0 0
Billet
Foreign 13,055 8,000 0 29,150 50,205
Domestic 4,395 9,142 11,155 11,371 36,063
Section beam
Tuns%etlang Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Sructure Domestic 15065 20709 15690 26408 77,872
' Steel plate
Foreign 6,726 9,268 8,789 6,437 31,220
Domestic 37,045 26,512 43,602 63,931 171,090
TuSr][g ';'0 Scraps
Vieteneam Foreign 51,948 22,828 26,912 71,648 173,336
Corp., Ltd. L. .
Pig iron Domestic 1,505 0 2,298 4,967 8,770




Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Domestic 767 650 692 1,468 3,577
Steel plate
N Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Fujian Tung
Kang Steel .
Corp., Ltd. H-beam Domestic 771 480 1,992 1,969 5,212
Steel .
. Domestic 365 452 374 648 1,839
Profiled
material Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Dust Domestic 2,089 1,444 1,553 1,721 6,807
collection Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Katec ;
Creative Mediical Domestic 185 219 173 208 785
Re(s:c(;t:rr)(.:es wastes Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Domestic 149 2,373 1,404 4,179 8,105
Other waste/
scraps Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
Domestic 33,229 44,923 31,285 45,195 154,632
Limestone
Duc Hoa Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
International
J.S.C. Domestic 1,738 3,456 2,817 3,185 11,196
Blind Coal
Foreign 0 0 0 0 0
2.Primary importing regions for raw materials and the supply status
Primary importing regions for
Company Product name raw materials Supply status
. . USA, South & Central
Scrap, pig iron and billet America, Japan, Vietnam Good
Tung Ho Steel Ferro-silicon,
ferro-manganese, China, India, Malaysia Good
ferro-silicon-manganese
USA, Japan, South & Central
) Scraps . X Good
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam America, Australia
Corp., Ltd. . S,
Pig iron Purchased in Vietnam Good
Tung Kang Steel Structure Steel plate, section beam Japan Good
Co., Ltd.
Duc Hoa International J.S.C. | Limestone, blind coal Purchased in Vietnam Good
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(IV)Names of customers who accounted for more than 10% of the sales in any of the
last two years, sales as a percentage of total sales, and the reasons for addition or
reduction changes.
1.Customer name for those whose sales volume are more than 10% of the total in any given year for

the last 2 years:

2020 2019
Amount ) . Amount ) )
Relationship Relationship
(Thousands of | Net sales ) (Thousands of | Net sales )
Name . ) with the Name . . with the
New Taiwan ratio (%) ) New Taiwan ratio (%) )
issuer issuer
Dollars) Dollars)
Others 42,866,290 100 None Others 44,863,600 100 None
Net sales 42,866,290 100 N/A Net sales 44,863,600 100 N/A

The Company’s sales targets are less concentrated, and the amount sold per single target has not exceeded 10%
in 2019 and 2020.
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2.The top 10 customer name with the highest total sales for the last 2 years.

2021 up to the end of the first quarter 2020 2019
Amount Total annual |Relationship Amount Total annual |Relationship Amount Total annual | Relationship
(Thousands of . . (Thousands of - - (Thousands of . .
Name . net sales ratio | with the Name . net sales ratio | with the Name . net sales ratio with the
New Taiwan (%) issuer New Taiwan (%) issuer New Taiwan (%) issuer
Dollars) ° Dollars) 0 Dollars) 0
Lih Dar Steel Lih Dar Steel Lih Dar Steel Parent
Co.. Ltd. 1,086,885 8.46 Co., Ltd. 2,939,052 6.86 Co.. Ltd. 2,341,627 5.22 company’s
customer
Customer of
the subsidiary
Cheng Gang | g4 514 4.90 Cheng Gang | 4 97 599 4.66 Collaborated | ) 57 647 4.36 Tung Kang
Industry Parent Industry Parent [manufacturing Steel
company’s company’s Structure Co.,
customer customer Ltd.
Gir Gai Gir Gai Gir Gai
Trading Co., 550,998 4.29 Trading Co., 1,483,321 3.46 Trading Co., | 1,373,191 3.06
Ltd. Ltd. Ltd. Parent
. . company’s
Yul_lsh_lng YuI_|sh_|ng Cheng Gang customer
Building 533,853 4.15 Building 1,406,771 3.28 1,349,222 3.01
e . Industry
Utilities Utilities
Vietnamese
customer of
Customer of Customer of | ~3 NG TY the subsidiary
. the Collaborated the :
Lixin 314,550 2.45 o . 1,143,420 2.67 o CP THEP 1,344,493 3.00 Tung Kang
subsidiary |manufacturing subsidiary | poMINA 2 Steel
Tung Kang Tung Kang Structure Co.,
Steel Steel Ltd
Structure Structure — '
CO., Ltd. Taiwan CO., Ltd. YUI]Sh_Ing Parent
TSMC 307,493 2.39 K . 982,806 2.29 Building 1,161,182 2.59 company’s
umagai —
Utilities customer
Customer of
the subsidiary
.. Parent . Parent Far Eastern
Superiority 301,575 2.35 company’s | 16" i Steel} 044 608 1.96 company’s | Construction | 1,045,182 2.33 Tung Kang
Steel Co., Ltd. Co. Steel
customer customer Co.
Structure Co.,
Ltd.
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Parent

Teh Tai Steel Superiority Superiority ,
Co. 282,726 2.20 Steel Co., Ltd. 762,300 1.78 Steel Co., Ltd. 964,954 2.15 company’s
customer
Customer of
T the subsidiary
Kai Hong asa Tung Kang
SANWA 277,757 2.16 Steel 717,451 1.67 Construction 938,179 2.09 Steel
Corp. Structure Co.,
Ltd.
Customer of
. the
Cglérr']ge'r;m subsidiary Parent
257,921 2.01 Tung Kang | New Asia 643,109 1.50 SANWA 829,945 1.85 company’s
Contractors
Ltd Steel customer
' Structure
Co., Ltd.
Subtotal 4,543 971 35.36 Subtotal 12,916,358 30.13 Subtotal 13,305,622 29.66
Others 8,306,784 64.64 Others 29,949,932 69.87 Others 31,557,978 70.34
Total 12,850,755 100.00 Total 42,866,290 100 Total 44,863,600 100
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3.Primary supplier information for the recent two years

Period 2021 up to the end of the first quarter 2020 2019
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Relationship (Thousands Relationship (Thousands | annual [Relationship
(Thousands of | annual net . annual net . )
Name . with the Name of New with the Name of New net with the
New Taiwan | purchase . . purchase . . .
ltem Dollars) ratio (%) issuer Taiwan ratio (%) issuer Taiwan purchase issuer
Dollars) Dollars) | ratio (%)
Bestcheer Bestcheer
1 Industrial 1,079,458 10.65 None Others | 26,451,323 100 None Industrial | 3,148,969 10.35 None
Ltd. Ltd.
2 Others 9,056,600 89.35 None Others | 27,264,291 89.65 None
Total Net 10,136,058 100 N/A Net 26,451,323 100 N/A Net 30,413,260 100 N/A
Purchases Purchases Purchases

The Company's suppliers in 2020 are less concentrated compared to that in 2019, and the amount purchased per single supplier has not exceeded 10% in 2020..

4.Name of top 10 customer with the highest total import volume for the last 2 years

2020 2019
Name Amount (Thousands of Total annual net purchase ratio (%) Name Amount (Thousands of Total annual net
New Taiwan Dollars) P 0 New Taiwan Dollars) purchase ratio (%)
Bestcheer Bestcheer
Industrial Ltd. 2,572,784 973 Industrial Ltd. 3,148,969 10.35
Hong Kuan Metaltrade
Metal Co., Ltd. 1,293,331 4.89 Pacific Ltd. 2,454,965 8.07
Metaltrade Hong Kuan
Pacific Ltd. 1,098,703 415 Metal Co., Ltd. 1,005,374 3.31
Qian Jing 871,185 3.29] Hong Mao 980,606 3.22
Chun Ying 754,688 2.85| ChunYing 768,798 2.53
CSC 730,461 2.76 Qian Jing 715,253 2.35
Nippon Steel 621,432 235 JINIL 563,155 1.85
Corporation
Hong Mao 527,866 2.00 CsC 551,652 1.81
JINIL 464,047 1.75| Nippon Steel 541,662 1.78
Corporation
Daehan Steel 419,284 1.59| NEW ASIA 524,903 1.73
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Co., Ltd.

Total 9,353,781 35.36 Total 11,255,337 37.01
Others 17,097,542 64.64 Others 19,157,923 62.99
Net Purchases 26,451,323 100.00| Net Purchases 30,413,260 100.00
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(V)Annual production value for the last 2 years

Unit: Tons; Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year 2020 2019

Production

olume and

value| Production | Production Production Production | Production | Production
capacity volume value capacity volume value

Product name
Billet 3,650,000 2,213,191 28,068,661 3,650,000 2,177,603 31,870,845
Re-bar 2,100,000 1,295,821 17,873,188 2,100,000 1,202,128 18,954,052
H-beam 590,919 9,211,570 508,000 9,080,525
Steel plate 111,901 1,757,755 98,521 1,813,511
Channel 1200000 36,997 648,342 1200000 35,443 708,728
I-Beam 1,835 32,318 2,706 54,759
Eltfg sheet 3,064 49,573 637 12,059
Steel structure 123,600 143,385 6,250,131 123,600 197,443 8,157,790
Environmental 46,368 46,368
protection 16,480 208,521 9,545 128,983
processing
ZZ:}Z‘:“OEOW” 28,000 26,624 53,248 28,000 27,573 55,146
fe‘\’/';‘:’]t;‘;zt'on 0 0 438,778 0 0 77,552
Others (Note) 100,000 93,927 464,773 0 8,407 519,908
Total 7,247,968 4,534,144 65,056,858 7,147,968| 4,268,006 71,433,858

Note: Others include fixed-size and formed rebar processing, rebars sold, coupler materials sold and quicklime of the subsidiary.

(VI)Sales value for the last 2 years

Unit: Tons; Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year 2020 2019
Sales volume Domestic sales Foreign sales Domestic sales Foreign sales
and value
Volume Value Volume | Value | Volume Value Volume | Value
Product name
Billet 31,528 404,868 6,409 3,333 3,686 51,604| 242510| 1,470,548
Re-bar 1,063,294| 18,011,420| 243,447(3,022,047| 1,074,085|19,666,816 5,867| 1,901,498
H-beam 530,524 11,012,400| 25,893| 478,999| 419,023| 8,843,698 80,684| 2,089,629
Steel plate 51,791 1,144,587 0 o| 39639 912,354 0 0
(self-made)
Steel plate
. 5,586 123,919 0 0 1,378 32,327 0 0
(transaction)
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Year 2020 2019
Sales volume Domestic sales Foreign sales Domestic sales Foreign sales

and value

Volume Value Volume | Value | Volume Value | Volume | Value

Product name
Channel 17,989 340,150 18,607 339,133 14,969 308,825 22,912 469,480
I-Beam 2,090 49,239 70 1,735 1,927 46,214 26 775
Steel structure 120,066| 6,334,294| 11,853| 386,291| 166,824| 7,461,721| 26,233| 899,118
Sale and
purchase of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
steel
Environmental
protection 16,480 208,521 0 0 9,545 128,914 0 0
processing
Steel sheet 2,798| 61,951 0 0 634 13,949 0 0
piles
Wind power 26,624 53,248 0 0| 27,573 55146 0 0
generation
Construction 0| 429,904 0 0 o 77,682 0 0
revenues
Others (Note) 49,123 428,873 10,812 31,378 15,736] 403,455 0 29,847
Total 1,917,893 38,603,374| 317,091|4,262,916| 1,775,019|38,002,705| 378,232| 6,860,895

Note: Others include fixed-size and formed rebar processing, rebars sold, coupler materials sold and quicklime of the subsidiary.
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. Number of employees, average years of service, average age, and education
of employees for the last two years until the public date of this report

From this year to
Year March 31, 2021 2020 2019
Head office 185 188 187
Kaohsiung Plant 274 271 267
Taoyuan Plant 539 529 501
Miaoli Plant 523 525 539
Number of Temporary 6 8 7
Foreign employees 237 237 215
employees
(persons) |  1otal -parent 1,764 1,758 1716
company
Subsidiary
(including foreign 1,064 1,076 918
employees)
Total 2,828 2,834 2,634
Average age (Note) 42.02 41.05 41.09
Average years of services (Note) 11.61 11.38 11.72
Doctorate 0.04 0.04 0.05
Degree Master 3.74 3.96 4.18
distribution | University/ College 57.96 57.59 64.45
ratios (%) )
(Note) High school 19.90 19.35 21.14
Senior High
School and below 18.36 19.00 10.18

(Note) Average age, average years of service, and degree distribution ratios refer to those of formal employees, and excluding
those of temporary employees and foreign employees.
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IVV. Environmental protection expenditures
(I)Losses suffered by the company in the most recent 2 fiscal years and up to the annual report publication

date due to labor disputes (including any violations of the Labor Standards Act found in labor inspection,

specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, the substance

of the legal violations, and the content of the dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses

that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken:

Contents of
Environmental
Protection .
. — Countermeasures (improvement
Penalty Environmental violations Penalty .
and preventive measures)
Cases
Company
1June 12, 2020(Disposition reference No.: 1.Altered business waste disposal
Tao-Huan-Ji-Zi No. 1090100081 issued on proposal.
October 28, 2020): 2.Check whether other similar items
Inspection by the Environmental Protection are reported in the business waste
Bureau on iron oxide scale produced during | Penalty fine of | disposal proposal.
steel refining and rolling. The iron oxide scale NT$6,000.
and its production process were not disclosed in
the business waste disposal proposal, which is
in violation of Item 1, Paragraph 1, Article 31
Taoyuan of the Waste Dispos.al A(?t..
Plant 2.July 27, 202_0(D|sp05|t|0n reference  No.: 1.The Company made
Tao-Huan-Ji-Zi No. 1090118409 issued on improvements  and  attached
Parent December 28, 2020): relevant supporting documents for
company Review by the Environmental Protection altering the business waste
Bureau on iron oxide scale produced during Penalty fine of disposal proposal, and the iron
steel refining and rolling. The iron oxide scale NT$12.000 oxide scale and its production
and its production process were not disclosed in e process were disclosed in the
the business waste disposal proposal, with no business waste disposal proposal.
improvements within a specified period, which 2.Check whether other similar items
is in violation of Item 1, Paragraph 1, Article 31 are reported in the business waste
of the Waste Disposal Act. disposal proposal.
Miaoli None None None
Plant
Kaohsiung None None None
Plant
Subsidiaries None None None

(IDEnvironmental protection expenditure for this company from the most recent fiscal year to the

publication date of this annual report:

The company not only continues to enhance product quality and customer service, but also

dedicated efforts in pollution prevention and control,

industrial

waste reduction, and

environmental protection. To fulfill corporate social responsibility, the company also invested on

relevant environmental protection activities. In 2020, the parent company’s environmental

protection expenditure (depreciation) was approximately NT$79,351,000 and the running
expense was approximately NT$570,384,000, which bring about a total of NT$649,735,000.

Environmental protection expenditure for the parent company and its subsidiaries from the most recent fiscal year to
the publication date of this annual report:
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Environmental protection

Environmental protection expenditures (Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

expenditures

Item Up to March 31, 2021 2020
Company
EnV|ror_1mentaI protection 11,385 41,362
expenditures (depreciation)
Taoyuan Plant Running expenses for
ning Exp : 71,284 301,763
environmental protection
Taoyuan Plant Subtotal 82,669 343,125
Environmental protection
- expenditures (dgpreciation) 9,234 37,731
Parent Miaoli Plant RunNing expenses for
company environmental protection 77,092 259,320
Miaoli Plant Subtotal 86,326 297,051
EnV|ror_1mentaI protection 65 258
. expenditures (depreciation)
Kaohsiung Plant Running expenses for
ning €xp : 2,913 9,301
environmental protection
Kaohsiung Plant Subtotal 2,978 9,559
Total - parent company 171,973 649,735
Environmental protection
Tung Kang Steel expenditures (depreciation) 97,851 391,404
Structure Co., -
Running expenses for
Ltd. : . 0 0
environmental protection
Environmental protection
L Tung Ho Steel expenditures (depreciation) 1,089 4,358
Subsidiaries | Vietnam Ccorp., -
Running expenses for
Ltd. : . 55 33
environmental protection
Environmental protection
Katec Creative | expenditures (depreciation) 645 2,581
Resources Corp. Running expenses for_ 929 1,839
environmental protection
Total - subsidiaries 100,569 400,215
Total 272,542 1,049,950

(I1)Estimated major environmental protection expenditures in the next two years

1.The Company has set extremely high environmental protection standards for plant operations, which fully
comply with environmental protection regulations, and can reduce the risk of irregularities. No major

pollution has occurred in recent years, and thus improvements had not affected the Company's earnings,

competitiveness and capital expenditures.

2.The Company has always invested on equipment and staff training for minimizing industrial pollution,

and has obtained 1S0O-14001 Environmental

investments according to improvements and the pollution status.

V. Labor-management relations

(DThe company's employee benefits,

continuing education,

Management System certification, with continual

training,

retirement systems, and the status of their implementation, as well as the
status of agreements between labor and management, and all measures
aimed at preserving the rights and interests of employees:

1.Employee welfare:

The company and its subsidiaries deeply believes that employees are a
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company's greatest asset and the key driver to business management; therefore, the
company is committed to taking care of its employees. In addition to enrolling
employees into labor insurance and national health insurance as required by law,
the company also buys group insurance for its employees (including foreign labors),
including term life insurance, accidental injury, occupational accident, travel
insurance for cases of business travel to overseas, in order to protect employees’
safety. Other welfare benefits:
(1)Establish a joint employee welfare committee

The company established the Employee Welfare Committee for major
operating bases (head office, Taoyuan plant, Miaoli plant, Taichung Harbor
Logistic Office and Kaohsiung plant), which is responsible for various employee
welfare activities and subsidies, including: employee trips, subsidies for social
group events, group insurance, subsidy for education of employees' children, three
festive bonuses, wedding, funerals and other celebratory event subsidies, and
retirement subsidies. Employees are encourage to create social clubs including
hiking, softball, golf, badminton, and health-walk clubs and hold club events at a
nonperiodic interval. The company also motivates employees to partake in
health-promotion activities such as health-walking, healthy exercise, and aerobic
exercise.

(2)Establish employee canteen to ensure a healthy diet for employees.

(3)Establish employee dormitory to offer accommodation to employees who live in remote
areas or in areas where transport is inconvenient.

(4)Regular health check-up

Each year, health examinations superior to those required by law are provided
to existing employees, including general checkups and health examinations for
employees involved in special operations, and assistance on self-health care
management is afforded to employees.

(5)Build an integrated occupational medical health service for employees

Physicians are invited to visit the plants and provide individual consultations
services and evaluations to employees (including suitability and reinstatement
assessments).

Physicians, safety and health professionals, and qualified nurses are gathered to
offer preventive medical services in the workplace both remotely and onsite, thus
ensuring workplace health and safety. The service content includes medical advices,
referrals, health education, occupational injury and disease consultation, diagnosis
and prevention, health-promotion planning, safety training, health examinations,
health management, survey on the quality of health institutions, and health
management of contagious disease.
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(6)Nonperiodic provision of medical-related information and hosting of health education
activities
Educational information regarding disease prevention, healthy diet, and
nutrition is afforded as a reminder to employees that they should monitor their
body weight and blood pressure frequently. Furthermore, employees are educated
on health-related issues in a timely manner.
(7)Employee remuneration
In accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if the Company
earns a profit in the current year, the proportion of employee remuneration shall be
no less than 2.5%, in order to align employees with the Company’s operating
performance.
(8)Employee stock options: During capital increase, a portion of new outstanding stocks is
retained for purchase by employees.

2.Continuing education

Training is based on the principles of career development. Based on business
requirements and career planning each year, training programs, internal or external
courses are developed and provided to enhance employees' knowledge and skills,
cultivate positive work attitudes in employees, promote employee career development,
recruit various management and professional talents and encourage employees to
improve themselves, thereby enhancing the human resource quality in the organization
and developing highly competitive human resources.

3.Retirement System

The company has formulated retirement policy for employees in accordance with
the Labor Standard Act and Labor Pension Act and was approved to set up a "retirement
reserve fund supervisory committee,” In addition to calculating old labor pension fund
for each year and convening regular meetings to protect employee rights and interests,
the retirement reserve funds as of the end of 2020 are sufficient to cover the pensions of
retired employees in the following year. The new labor pension scheme refers to
voluntary pension contributions by employees that are subject to the new labor
retirement system, which means that the employees can deposit 6% of the employees’
monthly wages into their individual labor pension account according to the pension
range.

4.Status of Industrial Relations Agreement

The Company has established labor unions at its business offices, and held
employer-employee meetings on a regular basis. The labor union members can elect
representatives to participate in employer-employee meetings for labor-management
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relations, communications, and collaborations. In accordance with the Collective
Agreement Act, the labor union of Miaoli plant held meetings to negotiate on the
Collective Agreement since September 2019, and completed the signing of Collective
Agreement on December 17, 2020. The work unions also elect representatives as
committee members of the Employee Welfare Committee and Retirement Reserve Fund
Supervisory Committee who are responsible for supervising and protecting employees'
rights and interests.

5.Grievance system
The Company attaches great importance to labor-management relations, and
regularly holds employer-employee meetings, in order to promote collaborative
labor-management relations and improve work efficiency. In addition to
employer-employee meetings, the Company has formulated the "Regulations Governing
Employee Complaints and Grievances". Employees may submit an appeal for any unfair
treatment or unreasonable discrimination in the Company, or any incomplete matters or
negligence on the Company’s system, rules, or regulations which will damage the rights

and interests of employees.

6.Sexual harassment prevention

In the aim to protect its employees from sexual harassment and create a friendly
working environment, the company formulated the "Regulations Governing the
Prevention of Sexual Harassment”. This involves providing regular education and
training, and strengthening the advocacy of sexual harassment prevention and complaint
channels through websites and bulletin boards. The company also established a Sexual
Harassment Complaint Committee, which shall be objective, impartial and professional
in dealing with sexual harassment complaints, and adopting prevention measures to
create a harassment-free working environment.

(I1)Disclose the losses suffered due to industrial relation disputes in recent
years up to the publication date of this annual report as well as
estimations for similar losses in the future and coping measures:

There is no such industrial relation dispute related losses in recent years up to the
publication date of this annual report. The company's management system will continue
to improve staff welfare and pursue industrial relation unity, and no losses are expected
to occur due to labor disputes.
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V1. Significant contracts between parent company and subsidiary

Important contracts

Nature of the . . Start and end dates of .
ature Contracting parties artan > Content Restriction clause
contracts the contract
Company
Hao Shen
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Hwa Shen Relevant monthly
Construction Environmental Disposal and settlements are
contract Co., Ltd. 2020.01.01~2020.12.31 |recycling of calculated based on
Chium Shing oxidizing slag the actual carrying
Environmental capacity.
Protection Co.,
Ltd.
Sunrise PV One Completed 2000kw
Co., Ltd. of installation
Lease and o
. capacity in 2019.
construction of solar
Completed 3000kw
. PV system . .
Construction . 2019~2039 installation sites of installation
contract  |Cathy Sunrise (Estimated capacity in 2020.
Cleotc Power installation capacit The plant collects
Two Co., Ltd. PACTY | rent as a percentage
of 6000Kw)
of the amount of
electricity generated.
Bonita Enterprise Taoyuan plant EF02 .
Equipment |Co., Ltd P mair):and%uxiliaw Deposit: 30%
T 2020.02.05~2020.09.05 Acceptance
procurement crane speed reducer |. . .
inspection fund: 70%
procurement
Equibment Formosa Heavy Taoyuan plant LD01 |Deposit: 30%
quip Industries 2020.02.05~2020.09.05 |main crane speed Acceptance
procurement . - )
reducer procurement |inspection fund: 70%
Equipment Jet Caring Procurement of Deposit: 70%
Parent Taoyuan quip Enterprise Co., 2019.05.24~2020.05.24 |Trench series Acceptance
procurement : : . 200
company Plant Ltd. reactors inspection fund: 30%
. . .. |Deposit: 30%
Equipment |GNP International 2020.04.10~2021.01.31 Procurement of Coil Acceptance
procurement |Ltd. Innovation Reactors |. - .
inspection fund: 70%
Procurement of
Equipment Metrotek '(I;Laar;lsggrr:aég;réetlcl)r Acceptance
guip International Co., [2020.04.20~2020.05.30 ge e inspection fund:
procurement Ltd (TCR) (Harbin 100%

Electric Corp. in
China)

Taiwan Cement
Corporation Su-Ao
Plant

2019.05.01~2020.04.30

Construction [Ruentex Materials Disposal and Charges calculated
2020.07.01~2025.06.30 |recycling of restored |based on the actual
contract  |Co.,Ltd. . :
- melted slag carrying capacity.
Taiwan Steel
Resources Co., 2020.12.01~2021.07.16
Ltd.
Procurement of Deposit: 30%
crushing and duct deli .
Equipment Soon _Strong screening equipment Product delivery:
Machinery Works |2020.05.25~2020.07.31 |; 50%
procurement in restored melted .
Co.,Ltd. s1ag Drocessin Inspection and
gp g acceptance: 20%
plants
Temperature sensing .
. . . Deposit: 30%
Equipment |Pro Machinery |4 g6 94-9021.02.15 [foPoticamand 1o o, ot delivery:
procurement |Co., Ltd. components 20%
procurement 0
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Important contracts

Nature of the Contracting parties Start and end dates of Content Restriction clause
contracts the contract
Company
ISO 50001
.. . |Advanced B Qualification Inspection and
Certification management 2020.07.01~2020.10.31 Conversion acceptance: 100%

Accreditation

Certification

Good Suitable
International
Management
Consultants Co.,
Ltd.

2020.08.01~2021.01.30

Consultation on
review of JIS Mark
certification

Inspection and
acceptance: 100%

Procurement of new

Equipment Tatung Co., Ltd. |{2019.10.09~2020.04.30 |rolling machine Inspection fmd
procurement acceptance: 100%
transformer
Rough and Product delivery:
Equipment |Shang Yu _ intermediate rolling [{90%
procurement |Industrial Co., Ltd. 2020.07.~2021.04.30 equipment Inspection and
procurement acceptance: 10%
]I?urcrﬁlase agreement Product delivery:
Equipment |Shang Yu or't y cutting edge 90%
. 2020.09.28~2021.03.31 |machine of the .
procurement |(Industrial Co., Ltd. Inspection and

rolling production
line

acceptance: 10%

Charges calculated

Construction Jinji X'T‘ 2019.11.01~2020.12.31 Iron oxide sales based on the actual
contract  |Enterprises Ltd. contract . :
carrying capacity.
Addition of
Xinding g%{:gﬁgﬂg:g;ual Full payment within
Equipment |Engineering 2019.11.20~2020.07.31 |equipment for 30 days from the
procurement |Consultants Co., month of inspection

Ltd.

161KV AC relay
panels in change
transmission stations

and acceptance.

Construction
contract

Katec Creative
Resources Corp.

2019.12.01-2020.11.30

Commissioned
removal of industrial
waste (dust)

Settlement once a
month, and the sight
draft is paid on the
25th of the following
month.

Construction

Luo Chin-Cheng

2019.10~

Application for building

Acrchitectural
planning and
detailed design of

Contract: 10%
Building permit
registration: 70%

contract |Construction Co. permit Taoyuan Processing |Obtained building
Center permit: 10%
. Cheng Ho Hsing .
Equipment Heavy Industries |2020.12.01~2021.06.30 120 ton molten steel |Inspection f':md
procurement Co. Lid ladle procurement  |acceptance: 100%
Equioment |Formosa Hea Procurement of Steel|Deposit: 20%
quip . VY 12020.12~2021.10.31 Rolling 7H-12V Product delivery:
procurement |Industries
Gearbox 80%
Yicheng

Certification

International
Enterprise Co.,
Ltd.

2021.01.01~2021.07.31

Taoyuan plant KSA
certification
outsourcing

Inspection and
acceptance: 100%

Equipment
procurement

Cheng Ho Hsing
Heavy Industries
Co., Ltd.

2021.02.26~2021.07.31

Update of electric
furnace

Deposit: 30%

Product delivery:
60%
Inspection and

acceptance: 10%
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Important contracts

Nature of the

Contracting parties

Start and end dates of

Content

Restriction clause

contracts the contract
Company
EUR$1.537 million
Deposit: 20%
Equipment SMS/ELOTHERM|2021.03.15~2022.02.28 Upgrade of billet Product delivery:
procurement rolling heater 70%
Inspection and
acceptance: 10%
Miaoli Plant None
1.Plant management
technical support
services.
2.Provision of
Kaohsiung | Technical g\ ivy corp,  |2020.07.01~2022.06,30 | 2dministrative oo
Plant services and data analysis.
3.0ther matters
related to the
technical service
agreement.
TPC acquires all the |The electricity
electricity produced |supply (power
Power Taiwan Power by Tung Kang Wind |generation) per hour
Procurement c 2016.09~2031.08 Power shall not exceed full
ompany L
Agreement capacity with the
Tung Kang gengration of 5 wind
Wind Power turbines.
Co., Ltd. Wind The contracting
Turbine party is responsible
; ; for the maintenance
Op:]a;'on Coercon TaWan 1a016.08~2026.07 and repair of wind | None
Maintenance turbines
Contract
Construction of a
new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial
Construction |Jehng Long 2020.02.04~ Park by Shen Tai Loan: 90%
Engineering |Engineering completed construction |Electric Cable Co., |Reserve fund: 10%
Ltd.: Mechanical
engineering
Subsidiaries (materials)
Construction of a
new plant in
Construction |Jehng Long 2020.02.04~ Taoyuan Industrial | Construction fund:
Engineering |Engineerin completed construction Park by Shen Tai 90%
Tung Kang g 9 |=ng g P Electric Cable Co., |Reserve fund: 10%
Engineering Ltd.: Mechanical
& engineering (wages)
Construction Construction of a
Co., Ltd. new plant in
Construction Wu Hsi_ung Taoyuan Industri_al
Engineering Enterprise Co., 2020.02.21~2021.07.30 |Park by Shen Tai Loan: 100%
Ltd. Electric Cable Co.,

Ltd.: Ready-mixed
concrete (materials)

Construction
Engineering

Goldsun Co.,Ltd.
Zhongli Plant

2020.01.13~
completed construction

Construction of a
new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial
Park by Shen Tai
Electric Cable Co.,
Ltd.: Ready-mixed
concrete (materials)

Loan: 100%
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Important contracts

Company

Nature of the
contracts

Contracting parties

Start and end dates of
the contract

Content

Restriction clause

Construction
Engineering

Ji-Feng Enterprise

2020.01.15~
completed construction

Construction of a
new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial
Park by Shen Tai
Electric Cable Co.,
Ltd.: Formwork
engineering for
factory buildings
(wages)

Construction fund:
90%
Reserve fund: 10%

Construction
Engineering

Ji-Feng Enterprise

2020.01.14~
completed construction

Construction of a
new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial
Park by Shen Tai
Electric Cable Co.,
Ltd.: Formwork
engineering for
factory buildings
(materials)

Loan: 90%
Reserve fund: 10%

Construction
Engineering

Tung Ho Steel

2020.12.18~
completed construction

Expansion of Tung
Ho Steel Taichung
Logistics Center
Warehouse
(construction)

Construction fund:
97%
Reserve fund: 3%

Construction
Engineering

Tung Ho Steel

2020.12.18~
completed construction

Expansion of Tung
Ho Steel Taichung
Logistics Center
Warehouse
(materials)

Loan: 97%
Reserve fund: 3%

Construction
Engineering

Yung Shin
Metalworks Co.,
Ltd.

2020.06.03~
completed construction

Construction of a
new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial
Park by Shen Tai
Electric Cable Co.,
Ltd.: Construction of
aluminum doors and
windows (including
shutters)

Construction fund:
90%
Reserve fund: 10%

Construction of a

new plant in
Taoyuan Industrial Construction fund:
Construction |Chian Aided 2020.12.03~ Park by Shen Tai '
S L . : 95%
Engineering |Engineering completed construction |Electric Cable Co., Reserve fund: 5%
Ltd.: Wall & $o7
Plastering (plant) -
wages
Purchase agreement |Deposit: 20%
Equipment DANIELI 2019.04~2021.03 for re-bar roII_mg and |equipment fund: 75%
Tung Ho | procurement water quenching acceptance
Steel equipment inspection fund: 5%
Vietnam Deposit: 10%
Corp., Ltd. | Marketing VIETSO 2019.10~2021.05 TV advertising progress payment:
expense agreement 80% acceptance
inspection fund: 10%
Deposit fund: 30%
Katec Product delivery
. . Full-plate sealing of{fund: 30%
RCreatlve Plant upgrade Eﬁ ?nueaer;ilr\]/lachme 2020.02.06~2020.12.31 |old factory  dust|Installation fund:
esources g g collection equipment |20%
Corp. Acceptance

inspection fund: 20%
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Important contracts

Nature of the Contracting parties Start and end dates of Content Restriction clause
contracts the contract
Company
- Y
Engineering & Factory road P '

Plant upgrade

Construction Co.,
Ltd.

2020.05.15~2020.06.15

maintenance

60%
Acceptance
inspection fund: 10%

Equipment
upgrade

Yi Kai Machinery
Co., Ltd.

2020.07.03~2020.10.31

Burning tower
renewal construction

Deposit fund: 30%
Product delivery
fund: 30%
Installation fund:
30%

Acceptance
inspection fund: 10%

Plant upgrade

Cheng Shin Metal

2020.09.04~
Passed the acceptance
inspection

Renewal of old
factory  corrugated
metal roofing sheets

Deposit fund: 30%
Product delivery
fund: 20%
Installation fund:
45%

Acceptance
inspection fund: 5%

Addition of inlet and

Deposit fund: 30%
Product delivery
fund: 30%

Equipment i Kai Machinery 2020.09.29~2020.11.25 |discharge conveyor|Installation fund:
upgrade |Co., Ltd. .
of disc granulators  |30%
Acceptance
inspection fund: 10%
Deposit fund: 30%
Product delivery
. - . . fund: 30%
Equipment -\ ¥i Kai Machinery |59 15 15-2021.03.05 [©°01iN9 tOWer!) | tallation fund:
upgrade |Co., Ltd. renewal construction 30%
Acceptance
inspection fund: 10%
Purchase
agreement_ ANLAN Coal 2017.01.01 Procurement of blind None
(agreement in coal
principle)
Purchase
agreement Gr_eat Wall 2019.02.15 P_rocurement of None
(agreement in Mineral limestone
Duc Hoa principle)
International Sales Tung Ho Steel  |2021.01.01~2021.12.31 |Sales of quicklime |None
JS.C. agreement
Sales Tung Ho Steel
Vietnam Corp., 2021.01.01~2021.12.31 |Sales of quicklime |None
agreement Ltd
Sales -
GT Co., Ltd. 2021.01.01~2021.12.31 |Sales of quicklime |None
agreement
Sales |Katec Creative 1,1 51 0990911231 |Sales of quicklime |None
agreement |Resources Corp.
Fada Corp. None
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F. Financial Status Overview of the Company and Its Subsidiaries
I. Condensed balance sheet and condensed consolidated income statement for the last 5

years

(1)1.Condensed balance sheet - consolidated

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Financial information for the last 5 years
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Item
Current assets 12,504,478 14,835,353| 22,968,952 23,009,268 21,192,142
Property, plant and 17,888,505| 20,582,554/ 20,694,943| 19,648,493| 18,390,406
equipment (Note 1)
Intangible assets 213,235 190,187 186,738 177,149 163,396
Other assets (Note 1) 5995096 5,689,298 4,707,860 4,856,593 4,675,143
Total assets 36,601,314] 41,297,392 48558493 47,691,503 44,421,087
_Before 8,611617| 13,268,068 17,489,725 15,670,438/ 13,815,783
distribution
.C“.”.e.”t After
liabilities | it ibution | 9.000.304| 14.673.753 18,694,598| 17,025.920| 15,450,590
(Note 2)
Non-current liabilities | 4,436.843|  3,996293|  7,058,004| 7,719,654 2.897.479
Before 115048460 17264361 24.547.720| 23.390002| 16,713,262
distribution
Total After
liabilities | it ribution |14,346,147|  18,670,046| 25,752,602| 24,745,574 18,348,069
(Note 2)
Equity attributed to the
owners of the parent 23462,063| 23952441 23,903,085 24,199,492 27,503,307
company
Share capital 0982215 10,040,606] 10,040606| 10,040,606 10,587,599
Capital surplus 6247267 6,320178] 6,592,236] 6,592,236|  7.287,920
_Before 7.034617| 7399469 7,917,267 87272,.872| 10,450,151
) distribution
Retained After
€arnings | jistribution | 5,736.930]  5.993.785  6,712.394|  6.917,390| 8815344
(Note 2)
Other equity 197,964 192,188]  (647,024)] (706,222)]  (822,363)
Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interest 90,791 80,590 107,679 101,919 204,518
Before 150 00) 54| 24033031 24010764 24301411 27,707,825
distribution
Total After
GUIY | Gistribution [22,255.167| 22.627,346| 22.805.801| 22.945.920| 26.073,018
(Note 2)

Note 1: Real estate, plant, and equipment decisions are made based on the book value of the real estate investment.
Cases with conversion date on or after January 1, 2012 shall adopt the deemed cost exemption provisions
provided by IFRS1; and cases on or prior to December 31, 2011 shall adopt the "For-profit Enterprise Asset
Reevaluation Measures" to calculate the value of the asset revaluation to serve as the deemed cost of the

asset.

Note 2: On March 23, 2021, the 2020 cash dividend distribution was approved by resolution of the board of directors,

and reported to the shareholders meeting.
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2.Condense balance sheet - individual

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Financial information for the last 5 years
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Item
Current assets 0322.204| 10.326,718| 17.428.675| 17.387.667| 14,307.234
Property, plant, and 12,390,131| 13,572,371| 13,352,838 12,638,857| 11,960,389
equipment (Note 1)
Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0
Other assets (Note 1) | 12,127,572| 12,366,127| 12,032,116] 11,409,964| 10,991,440
Total assets 33,839.907| 36,265216| 42,813,629] 41436488 37,259,063
Before | oo13370 8322513 12732.372| 11,042221 7,668,044
distribution
Current
liabilities | . Ml
distribution| 7,241,057| 9,728.198| 13,937,245/ 12.397,703| 9,302,851
(Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 4434474 3,990,262 6,178,172 6,194,775 2,087,712
Before | 10377844 12312.775| 18.910544| 17.236,996|  9.755.756
distribution
Total After
liabilities | . ibution| 11.675,531] 13.718.460| 20115417| 18,592,478 11.390563
(Note 2)
Owners’ equity 23.462.063] 23.952.441| 23,903,085 24.199.492| 27,503.307
Share capital 0,982,215 10,040,606] 10,040,606] 10,040,606] 10,587,599
Capital surplus 6247267 6,320,178| 6592236 6,592,236| 7,287,920
Before | o 04617 7.390460| 7917267 8272.872| 10.450,151
. distribution
Retained After
€arnings | yistribution| 5736,930| 5993785 6712,394| 6,917,390| 8,815,344
(Note 2)
Other equity 197 964 192,188] (647,024)] (706,222)] (822,363)
Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0
Before |5 160063 23.952.441| 23903085 24,199,492 27,503,307
distribution
Total After
qUItY | jistribution | 22,164,376| 22.546.756| 22.698.212| 22.844.010| 25.868,500
(Note 2)

Note 1: Real estate, plant, and equipment decisions are made based on the book value of the real estate
investment. Cases with conversion date on or after January 1, 2012 shall adopt the deemed cost
exemption provisions provided by IFRS1; and cases on or prior to December 31, 2011 shall adopt the
"For-profit Enterprise Asset Reevaluation Measures" to calculate the value of the asset revaluation to

serve as the deemed cost of the asset.

Note 2: On March 23, 2021, the 2020 cash dividend distribution was approved by resolution of the board of
directors, and reported to the shareholders meeting.
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(11)1.Condensed income statement - consolidated
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Financial information for the last 5 years
Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating revenue 25,209,558| 31,749,271| 39,769,621| 44,863,600 42,866,290
Gross profit 2,970,262| 3,801,861| 3,324,682| 4,131,766 6,620,704

Operating profit and

loss 1,491,657| 1,841,990| 1,275,353| 2,106,598 4,421,487

Non-operating
income and 190,573 157,093|  (20,250) 15,534 68,083
expenditure

Net profit before tax 1,682,230] 1,999,083| 1,255,103| 2,122,132| 4,489,570

Net profit of
continuing 1,479,564| 1,700,734 888,939 1,557,798 3,556,583
operations
Losses from
discontinued units 0 0 0 0 0
Net profit (loss) 1,479,564| 1,700,734 888,939 1,557,798 3,556,583

Other
comprehensive
income (net income
after-tax)

61,706|  (54,171)| (115,685) (68,984)| (140,008)

Total
comprehensive
income for the
period

1,541,270 1,646,563 773,254| 1,488,814 3,416,575

Profit attributable to

1,484,673 1,714,931 887,932| 1,566,059| 3,562,064
owners of the parent

Net profit
attributable to
non-controlling

equity

(5,109)|  (14,197) 1,007  (8,261)]  (5,481)

Total
comprehensive
income attributed to 1,546,892| 1,656,764 762,869 1,494,574| 3,418,766
the owners of the
parent company

Total

comprehensive
income attributed to (5,622)  (10,201) 10,385 (5,760) (2,191)
non-controlling

equity

Earnings per share 1.49 1.72 0.88 1.56 3.52
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2.Condensed income statement - individual
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Financial information for the last 5 years
Item 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating revenue 21,079,344| 24,704,836| 34,692,282| 35,247,359| 34,263,435
Gross profit 2,690,024| 3,377,611 3,177,085 4,117,593| 6,062,161
Operating profitand | -y 559,153 2,086,827| 1,593,327 25549,525| 4,267,440
Non-operating
income and 158,267 (101,605)| (366,522)| (460,135) 121,705
expenditure
Net profit before tax
from continuing 1,687,420 1,985,222 1,226,805| 2,089,390 4,389,145
operations
Losses from
discontinued units 0 0 0 0 0
t';'r?;pmf'“’”he 1,484,673 1,714,931 887,932 1,566,059| 3,562,064
Other

comprehensive
income (net income
after-tax)

Total
comprehensive
income for the
period

Earnings per share 1.49 1.72 0.88 1.56 3.52

62,219  (58,167)| (125,063) (71,485)| (143,298)

1,546,892 1,656,764 762,869 1,494,574| 3,418,766

(I11)Names of the certification accountants and their audit opinions for the last 5

years
Names of the
Year certification Audit opinion Description
accountants
Cihui Li and - -
2020 Hsinying Kuo Unqualified opinion None
Cihui Li and - -
2019 Hsinying Kuo Unqualified opinion None
2018 Hu'.Zh'.KOU and Unqualified opinion None
Hsinying Kuo
Huizhi Kou and - -
2017 Hsinying Kuo Unqualified opinion None
2016 Cihui Lllfgl? Huizhi Unqualified opinion None
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Financial analysis for the last five years

(11.Financial analysis—consolidated

Year (Note 1) Financial analysis for the last five years
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Analysis Item (Note 2)
Financial |Debt-to-assets ratio 35.65 41.80 50.55 49.04 37.62
structure  |Long-term capital property,
%) olant, and equipment ratio 156.47 136.18 150.13 162.97 166.42
Solvenc Current ratio 145.20 111.81 131.33 146.83 153.39
%) y Quick ratio 57.60 39.32 31.34 32.32 43.37
Interest coverage ratio 16.76 19.12 6.36 7.80 23.51
Efrf]ee';;ab'es turnover ratio 7.77 10.37 11.37 13.46 12.99
Average collection period 46.97 35.19 32.10 27.11 28.09
Inventory turnover ratio
(times) 3.88 3.85 3.06 2.75 2.77
Operating (ptf%aet;')e turnover ratio 14.79 15.41 17.59 18.26 15.61
ability T Verage days of sales 94.08 94.80 119.13 132.72 131.76
Property, plant, and
equipment turnover ratio 151 1.65 1.93 2.22 2.25
(times)
Total asset turnover ratio
(times) 0.69 0.77 0.82 0.94 0.96
Return on assets (%) 4.28 4.58 2.38 3.73 8.05
Return on equity (%) 6.35 7.15 3.70 6.45 13.68
Profitability E:;gré”tgip({}/z‘)' to income 16.85 19.91 12.50 21.14 42.40
Net profit margin (%) 5.87 5.36 2.24 3.47 8.30
Earnings per share (NT$) 1.49 1.72 0.88 1.56 3.52
Cash flow ratio (%) 36.92 (0.97) (31.10) 24.46 67.53
Cash flows gj‘sh flow adequacy ratio 171.27 107.57 30.78 29.59 44.89
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 4.44 (2.98) (13.14) 4.83 14.66
Leverage Operating leverage 3.30 2.93 3.98 3.05 2.07
g Financial leverage 1.06 1.06 1.21 1.16 1.04

The reasons that caused the changes in financial ratios of more than 20% in the last two years:

1.The debt-to-assets ratio decreased to 37.62%, and the quick ratio increased to 43.37% thanks to excellent
operating performance in 2020, while total liabilities and current liabilities dropped by NT$6,676,830,000
(down 28.55%) and NT$1,854,655,000 (down 11.84%), respectively compared to the previous year. With the
subsidiary’s better construction progress, the contract assets decreased by NT$1,082,659,000 (down 27.92%).

2.The interest coverage ratio increased to 23.51, the ratio of operating income to paid-in capital increased to
41.76%, and the ratio of ratio of net income before tax to share capital increased to 42.40%. The main reason is
that operating income increased by NT$2,314,889,000 (up 109.89%), and net income before tax increased by
NT$2,367,438,000 (up 111.56%) compared to the previous year.

3.The return on assets increased to 8.05%, while return on equity increased to 13.68%, with net profit margin of
8.30%, and EPS (NT$) of NT$3.52. This is mainly due to the Company’s excellent operating performance in
2020, of which net income increased by NT$1,998,785,000 (up 128.31%) compared with the previous year.

4.Cash flow ratio increased to 67.53%, cash flow adequacy ratio increased to 44.89%, and cash reinvestment ratio
increased to 14.66%. This was primarily because of increase of net cash inflow from operating activities by
NT$5,497,266,000 (up 143.42%) compared with that of the previous year. Furthermore, the current liabilities
reduced by NT$1,854,655,000 (down 11.84%) compared with that of last year.

5.0perating leverage decreased to 2.07 primarily because operating income increased by NT$2,314,889 (up
109.89%).

Note 1: The annual financial reports have been audited by certified public accountant.
Note 2: Financial ratio calculation formulae are as follows:
1. Financial structure

(1) Debt-to-assets ratio = total liabilities / total assets.

(2) Long-term capital ratio for real estate, plant, and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net for real estate, plant, and

equipment.
2. Solvency
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(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventories - prepaid expenses - contract assets) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = net income before income tax and interest expense / current interest expense.
3. Operating ability
(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable arising from operation notes receivable) turnover ratio = net sales / average receivables
(including accounts receivable arising from operation notes receivable) balances.
(2) Average collection period = 365 / receivables turnover.
(3) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory.
(4) Payable (including accounts payable arising from operation notes payable) turnover ratio = cost of goods sold / average payables
(including accounts payable arising from operation notes payable) balances.
(5) Average days of sales = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Real estate, plant, and equipment turnover ratio = net sales / average net for real estate, plant, and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = net sales / average total assets.
4. Profitability
(1) Return on assets = (net income + interest expenses x (1 - tax rate)) / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = net income / average total equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company - preferred stock dividends) / weighted average
number of shares issued.
5. Cash flows
(1) Cash flow ratio = new cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flows from operating activities in the past five years / (capital expenditure + increase in
inventory + cash dividend) in the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flows from operating activities —cash dividend) / (gross margin of property, plant and equipment
+ long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital).
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating income - variable operating costs and expenses) / operating income.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income - interest expenses).
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(D2.Financial analysis—individual

Year Financial analysis for the last five years
(Note 1)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Analysis Item
(Note 2)
Debl-to-assets 30.67 33.95 44.17 41.60 26.18
Financial  |Long-term capital
structure (%)|property, plant,
and equipment 225.15 205.88 225.28 240.48 247.41
ratio
Current ratio 156.85 124.08 136.88 157.47 186.58
Solvency  |Quick ratio 60.04 47.29 44.63 46.61 50.16
(%) Interest covera
ge
ratio 27.84 27.77 9.56 15.09 54.82
Receivables
turnover ratio 9.70 9.30 8.35 7.85 10.00
(times)
Average collection| 57 65 39.24 4371 46.53 36.50
period
Inventory turnover 352 3.60 356 265 257
ratio (times) ' ' ' ' '
Payable turnover
Operating |ratio (times) 21.18 18.99 22.43 20.80 18.89
abilit
Y Average days of 103.69 101.38 102.52 137.73 144.84
Property, plant,
and equipment 1.67 1.90 258 271 2.79
turnover ratio
(times)
Total asset
turnover ratio 0.62 0.68 0.81 0.85 0.92
(times)
Return on assets 4.70 5.05 253 4.00 9.22
(%)
Eﬁzt)“m on equity 6.39 7.23 3.71 6.51 13.78
Paid-in |Operating
|capital [income 15.32 20.78 15.87 25.39 40.31
Profitability ratio  |Income
(%) before tax 16.90 19.77 12.22 20.81 41.46
('\(‘,/i; profit margin 7.04 6.94 2.56 4.44 10.40
Earnings per share
(NT$) 1.49 1.72 0.88 1.56 3.52
gz;h flow ratio 41.26 1355 (36.06) 3261 109.45
Cash flow
Cash flows adequacy ratio (%) 193.83 161.71 5451 52.60 63.66
Cash reinvestment
ratio (%) 2.98 (0.37) (12.15) 474 13.88
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Operating leverage 2.77 2.32 2.84 2.23 1.84
Financial leverage 1.04 1.03 1.10 1.06 1.02

Leverage

The reasons that caused the changes in financial ratios of more than 20% in the last two years:

1.The debt-to-assets ratio decreased to 26.18% thanks to the Company’s excellent operating performance this
year, of which total liabilities decreased by NT$7,481,240,000 (down 43.40%) compared with the previous
year.

2.The interest coverage ratio increased to 54.82, the ratio of operating income to paid-in capital increased to
40.31%, and the ratio of ratio of net income before tax to share capital increased to 41.46%. This was
mainly because of the Company’s excellent operating performance, of which operating income increased by
NT$1,717,915,000 (up 67.38%), and net income before tax increased by NT$2,299,755,000 (up 110.07%)
compared to the previous year.

3.The receivables turnover ratio (times) increased to 10.00, and the average collection period decreased to
36.50 days. This was mainly due to a drop in accounts receivables by NT$954,794,000 (down 24.45%) at
the end of the period compared with the accounts receivables at the beginning of the period.

4.The return on assets increased to 9.22%, while return on equity increased to 13.78%, with net profit margin
of 10.40%, and EPS (NT$) of NT$3.52. This is mainly due to the Company’s excellent operating
performance in 2020, of which net income increased by NT$1,996,005,000 (up 127.45%) compared with
the previous year.

5.Cash flow ratio increased to 109.45%, cash flow adequacy ratio increased to 63.66%, and cash reinvestment
ratio increased to 13.88%. This was primarily because of increase of net cash inflow from operating
activities by NT$4,791,094,000 (up 133.04%) compared with that of the previous year. Furthermore, the
current liabilities reduced by NT$3,374,177,000 (down 30.56%) compared with that of last year.

Note 1: The annual financial reports have been audited by certified public accountant.
Note 2: Financial ratio calculation formulae are as follows

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt-to-assets ratio = total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Long-term capital ratio for real estate, plant, and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net for real estate, plant,
and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventories - prepaid expenses - contract assets) / current liabilities.
(3) Interest coverage ratio = earnings before interest expense and net income / interest expense.
3. Operating ability
(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable arising from operation notes receivable) turnover ratio = net sales / average
receivables (including accounts receivable arising from operation notes receivable) balances.
(2) Awverage collection period = 365 / receivables turnover.
(3) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory.
(4) Payable (including accounts payable arising from operation notes payable) turnover ratio = cost of goods sold / average
payables (including accounts payable arising from operation notes payable) balances.
(5) Awverage days of sales = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Real estate, plant, and equipment turnover ratio = net sales / average net for real estate, plant, and equipment.
(7) Total assets turnover ratio = net sales / average total assets.

4.  Profitability
(1) Return on assets = (net income + interest expenses x (1 - tax rate)) / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = net income / average total equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company - preferred stock dividends) / weighted
average number of shares issued.
5. Cash flows
(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flows from operating activities in the past five years / (capital expenditure + increase in
inventory + cash dividend) in the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flows from operating activities —cash dividend) / (gross margin of property, plant and
equipment + long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capital).
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating income - variable operating costs and expenses) / operating income.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income - interest expenses).
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I11. Report of the Audit Committee on the Review of Recent Individual and Consolidated

Financial Report
(There is dual original copy of this page, and the signature and seal must be printed out)

Audit Committee's Audit Report

The Board of Directors made the Company's 2020 business
report, financial statements (including consolidated and
stand alone financial statements) and appropriation of
earnings, among which the financial statements (including
consolidated and stand alone financial statements) were
certified by CPAs Cihui Li and Hsinying Kuo of KPMG
Taiwan, and the CPAs issued an audit report that expresses
unqualified opinion. These have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee as correctly portraying ASE's business
activities. In accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities
and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act,
this report is submitted for shareholder's examination.

The Company's 2021 General Shareholders Meeting

Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation
Audit Committee convenerl-Chi Liu

March 23, 2021
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IV. Latest financial statements: Please see page 311 of the annual report for details.

V. Latest accountant audited individual financial report: Please see page 209 of the annual report for

details.

V1. Effects of financial difficulties experienced by the company and its affiliated
companies on the Company's financial status from recent year to the publication date of
the annual report: None.
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G. Financial position and financial performance review analysis and risk

assessments
Financial summary

()1.Comparative analysis of financial status-consolidated
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year 2020 2019 Difference

Item Amount %
Current assets 21,192,142 23,009,268 (1,817,126) (7.90)
Long-term investments 1,842,457 1,870,256 (27,799) (1.49)
Property, plant and 18,390,406 19,648,493 (1,258,087) (6.40)
equipment

Intangible assets 163,396 177,149 (13,753) (7.76)
Investment properties 1,936,246 1,944,482 (8,236) (0.42)
Other assets 896,440 1,041,855 (145,415) (13.96)
Total assets 44,421,087 47,691,503 (3,270,416) (6.86)
Current liabilities 13,815,783 15,670,438 (1,854,655) (11.84)
Long-term liabilities 2,897,479 7,719,654 (4,822,175) (62.47)
Other liabilities 0 0 0 0.00
Total liabilities 16,713,262 23,390,092 (6,676,830) (28.55)
Share capital 10,587,599 10,040,606 546,993 5.45
Capital surplus 7,287,920 6,592,236 695,684 10.55
Retained earnings 10,450,151 8,272,872 2,177,279 26.32
Other equity (822,363) (706,222) (116,141) 16.45
g;’rt:r']tegg%::;'gws;'s to 27,503,307 24,199,492 3,303,815 13.65
Non-controlling interest 204,518 101,919 102,599 100.67
Total equity 27,707,825 24,301,411 3,406,414 14.02

than NT$10,000,000)

Description of items with significant changes (change ratio greater than 20% or change amount greater

1.Long-term liabilities: Decreased by NT$4,822,175,000 compared to the previous year. The main reasons
include the repayment of long-term borrowings given upbeat profits in the current year, which led to
decrease of NT$2,620,038,000 in long-term borrowings; and corporate bonds decreased by
NT$1,935,021,000 due to the creditors’ selling rights for 12,745 units of 7th series convertible bonds
due three years from the date of issue are reclassified as repayable within one year.
2.Retained earnings: Increased by NT$2,177,279,000 compared to the previous year, as net profit grew by
NT$1,996,005,000 compared with that in the previous year.
3.Non-controlling interest: Increased by NT$102,599,000 compared to the previous year mainly because
of equity change of the Company’s subsidiary in the current fiscal year.
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2.Comparative analysis of financial position - individual

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Difference
Year 2020 2019
Item Amount %
Current assets 14,307,234 17,387,667 (3,080,433) (17.72)
Long-term investments 8,476,309 8,777,589 (301,280) (3.43)
Property, plant and 11,960,389 12,638,857 (678,468) (5.37)
equipment
Intangible assets 0 0 0 0.00
Investment properties 2,000,835 2,010,800 (9,965) (0.50)
Other assets 514,296 621,575 (107,279) (17.26)
Total assets 37,259,063 41,436,488 (4,177,425) (10.08)
Current liabilities 7,668,044 11,042,221 (3,374,177) (30.56)
Long-term liabilities 2,087,712 6,194,775 (4,107,063) (66.30)
Other liabilities 0 0 0 0.00
Total liabilities 9,755,756 17,236,996 (7,481,240) (43.40)
Share capital 10,587,599 10,040,606 546,993 5.45
Capital surplus 7,287,920 6,592,236 695,684 10.55
Retained earnings 10,450,151 8,272,872 2,177,279 26.32
Other equity (822,363) (706,222) (116,141) 16.45
Total equity 27,503,307 24,199,492 3,303,815 13.65
Description of items with significant changes (change ratio greater than 20% or change amount greater
than NT$10,000,000)
1.Current liabilities: Decreased by NT$3,374,177,000 compared to the previous year. The main reasons
include the repayment of short-term borrowings and short-term notes and bills payable given upbeat
profits in the current year, which led to total decrease of NT$5,179,367,000 in short-term borrowings
and short-term notes and bills payable; and corporate bonds decreased by NT$708,893,000 due to
the creditors’ selling rights for convertible bonds due three years from the date of issue are
reclassified as repayable within one year.
2.Long-term liabilities: Decreased by NT$4,107,063,000 compared to the previous year. The main
reasons include the repayment of long-term borrowings given upbeat profits in the current year,
which led to decrease of NT$1,900,000,000 in long-term borrowings; and corporate bonds decreased
by NT$1,935,021,000 due to the creditors’ selling rights for 12,745 units of 7th series convertible
bonds due three years from the date of issue are reclassified as repayable within one year.
3.Retained earnings: Increased by NT$2,177,279,000 compared to the previous year, as net profit grew
by NT$1,996,005,000 compared with that in the previous year.
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Financial performance

(1)1.Comparative analysis of operating performance-consolidated
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

the period

Year Amount Percentage of

ltem 2020 2019 increase change (%)
(decrease)

Total operating income 43,249,055 45,148,140 (1,899,085) (4.21)
Less: Sales returns 3,676 5,638 (1,962) (34.80)
Sales discounts 379,089 278,902 100,187 35.92
Net operating income 42,866,290 44,863,600 (1,997,310) (4.45)
Operating costs 36,245,586 40,731,834 (4,486,248) (11.01)
Gross profit 6,620,704 4,131,766 2,488,938 60.24
Operating expenses 2,199,217 2,025,168 174,049 8.59
Net operating profit 4,421,487 2,106,598 2,314,889 109.89
L\'Xopr;'r?gi‘:ﬂ‘;‘gng Income and 68,083 15,534 52,549 338.28
'C\'Oerftf’rm]tgbg;‘;ztt%ﬁ ;rom 4489570 | 2,122,132 2,367,438 111.56
Less: Income tax expenses 932,987 564,334 368,653 65.33
Net profit of the term 3,556,583 1,557,798 1,998,785 128.31
_Other comprehensive income (net (140,008) (68,984) (71,024) 102.96
income after-tax)
Total comprehensive income for 3,416,575 1,488,814 1,927,761 129.48

than NT$10,000,000)

process.

Description of items with significant changes (change ratio greater than 20% or change amount greater

1.Gross profit and net operating profit: Increased by NT$2,488,938,000 and NT$2,314,889,000
respectively compared with those in the previous year. The main reasons include the decline in ASP
of scrap steel, and reduced operating costs given ongoing improvements of the manufacturing

2.Non-operating income and expenses: Increased by NT$52,549,000 compared with the previous year.
This was mainly due to decrease in bank borrowings given upbeat profits in the current year,
reducing financial costs by NT$106,266,000, while the drop in invested companies’ profit led to
decrease of NT$20,901,000 in proportionate share of the affiliated companies' earnings recognized
by the equity method, and decrease of NT$33,358,000 in other profits and losses.
3.Income tax expenses: Increased by NT$368,653,000 compared to the previous year mainly because of
increase in net profits in the current fiscal year.
4.Net profit before tax: Increased by NT$2,367,438,000 compared to the previous year due to higher net
operating profit and non-operating income and expenses in the current fiscal year.
5.0ther comprehensive income (net income after tax): Decreased by NT$71,024,000 compared to the
previous year. The main reasons include increased foreign exchange losses of NT$36,285,000 in the
foreign financial statements given USD and VND depreciation; and the unrealized gains of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive gains and losses decreased by NT$52,930,000.
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2.Comparative analysis of operating performance - individual

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Year Amount Percentage of

ltem 2020 2019 increase change (%)
(decrease)

Total operating income 34,576,358 35,523,207 (946,849) (2.67)
Less: Sales returns 1,557 4,024 (2,467) (61.31)
Sales discounts 311,366 271,824 39,542 14.55
Net operating income 34,263,435 35,247,359 (983,924) (2.79)
Operating costs 28,201,274 31,129,766 | (2,928,492) (9.41)
Gross profit 6,062,161 4,117,593 1,944,568 47.23
'S-aelsess Unrealized gains from 82,953 25,818 57,135 221.30
Plus: Realized sales profit 25,818 43,741 (17,923) (40.98)
Gross profit 6,005,026 4,135,516 1,869,510 45.21
Operating expenses 1,737,586 1,585,991 151,595 9.56
Net operating profit 4,267,440 2,549,525 1,717,915 67.38
Total non-operating income 121,705 (460,135) 581,840 (126.45)
and expenses
Net profit (loss) before tax 4,389,145 2,089,390 2,299,755 110.07
Less: Income tax expenses 827,081 523,331 303,750 58.04
Net profit (loss) 3,562,064 1,566,059 1,996,005 127.45
Other comprehensive income
(net incomg after-tax) (143,298) (71,485) (71,813) 100.46
Total comprehensive income 3,418,766 1494574 | 1,924,192 128.75
for the period

Description of items with significant changes (change ratio greater than 20% or change amount

greater than NT$10,000,000)

1.Unrealized gains from sales: Increased by NT$57,135,000 compared with the previous year mainly
due to stocking demands for the orders from invested companies in the fourth quarter of 2020,
which led to increase in sales amount to invested companies.

2.Gross profit and net operating profit: Increased by NT$1,869,510,000 and NT$1,717,915,000
respectively compared with those in the previous year. The main reasons include the decline in
ASP of scrap steel, and reduced operating costs given ongoing improvements of the manufacturing
process.

3.Non-operating income and expenses: Increased by NT$581,840,000 compared with the previous
year. This was mainly due to decrease in bank borrowings given upbeat profits in the current year,
reducing financial costs by NT$66,206,000, while the outstanding performance of invested
companies led to increase of NT$544,828,000 in proportionate share of the subsidiaries’ and
affiliated companies' earnings recognized by the equity method.

4.Net profit before tax: Increased by NT$2,299,755,000 compared to the previous year due to higher
net operating profit and non-operating income and expenses in the current fiscal year.

5.Income tax expenses: Increased by NT$303,750,000 compared to the previous year mainly because
of increase in net profits in the current fiscal year.

6.0ther comprehensive income (net income after tax): Unrealized gains from sales decreased by
NT$71,813,000 compared to the previous year. The main reasons include increased foreign
exchange losses of NT$37,059,000 in the foreign financial statements given USD and VND
depreciation; and the unrealized gains of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
gains and losses decreased by NT$54,982,000.
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I11. Cash flows
(1.Liquidity analysis for the last two years -consolidated

ltem Year 2020 2019 Increase (decrease) ratio (%)
Cash flow ratio (%) 67.53 24.46 176.08

Cash flow adequacy 44.89 29.59 51.71

ratio (%)

Cash reinvestment ratio 14.66 483 203.52

(%)

Analysis description for items with increase and decrease ratio change of over 20% is as
follows:

Cash flow ratio increased to 67.53%, cash flow adequacy ratio increased to 44.89%, and cash
reinvestment ratio increased to 14.66%. This was primarily because of increase of net cash
inflow from operating activities by NT$5,497,266,000 (up 143.42%) compared with that of
the previous year. Furthermore, the current liabilities reduced by NT$1,854,655,000 (down
11.84%) compared with that of last year.

2.Cash flow analysis for the coming year - consolidated

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash balance at | Annual net cash |Cash outflow| Cash surplus Cash srr:]oerz::ilrle;emedy
beginning of flow from for the entire (shortage) Investment | Financing
year operation activities year amount
plan plan
1,933,168 4,383,440 6,669,832 (353,224) N/A Applicable

1.Cash flow status analysis:
(1) Operating activities: Operating revenue and surplus are expected to increase during 2021,
and the net cash flow from business activities is expected to be NT$4,383,440,000.
(2) Investing activities: Cash flow mainly for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(3) Financing activities: Cash flow mainly for payment of dividends and cash flow from long-
and short-term loan repayments.
2.Expected cash deficit remedies and liquidity analysis:
The Group is expected to adopt increasing bank loans as a measure for shortage of cash.

(1N1.Liquidity analysis for the last two years-individual

Year Increase (decrease)
Item 2020 2019 ratio (%)
Cash flow ratio (%) 109.45 32.61 235.63
Cash flow adequacy 63.66 52.60 21.03
ratio (%)
Cash reinvestment ratio 13.88 4.74 192.83
(%)

Analysis description for items with increase and decrease ratio change of over 20% is as

follows:

Cash flow ratio increased to 109.45%, cash flow adequacy ratio increased to 63.66%, and
cash reinvestment ratio increased to 13.88%. This was primarily because of increase of net
cash inflow from operating activities by NT$4,791,094,000 (up 133.04%) compared with
that of the previous year. Furthermore, the current liabilities reduced by
NT$3,374,177,000 (down 30.56%) compared with that of last year.
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2.Cash flow analysis for the coming year - Individual
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash balance at | Annual net cash | Cash outflow | Cash surplus Cash srr:]%r;:alrlegemedy
beginning of flow from for the entire (shortage) Investment | Financing
year operation activities year amount
plan plan
818,176 3,518,914 5,868,383 (1,531,293) N/A N/A

1.Cash flow status analysis:

(1) Operating activities: Operating revenue and surplus are expected to increase during 2021, and the
net cash flow from business activities is expected to be NT$3,518,914,000.
(2) Investing activities: Cash flow mainly for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(3) Financing activities: Cash flow mainly for payment of dividends and cash flow from long- and
short-term loan repayments.

2.Expected cash deficit remedies and liquidity analysis: Not applicable.

IV. The effects that significant capital expenditures have on financial operations in the recent
year: None.

V. Investment policy in the past year, profit/loss analysis, improvement plan, and investment
plan for the coming year:

(DInvestment policy in the past year
The Company's investment policy involves management of domestic and foreign investments and
deployment in upstream and downstream industries to meet business needs. The investment management is
in accordance with the Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets and Rules for Management of
Investee Companies, in order to keep track of the financial and business conditions of investee companies,
and supervise that it is implemented or handled in accordance with laws and regulations to optimize
operating performance.

(I)Profit/loss analysis, improvement plan, and investment plan for the coming year: None.
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V1. Risk issues and analysis evaluation
(Impact of interest rate and exchange rate changes and inflation on Company's profit

and response measures:
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; %

Item 2020 2019
Net operating income 42,866,290 44,863,600
Net interest gains (losses) (181,676) (290,720)
Net exchange gains 46,835 35.722
(losses)
Ratio of net interest gains
(losses) to net sales (%) (0.42) (0.65)
Ratio of net exchange
gains (losses) to net sales 0.11 0.08

(%)

(1)Interest rate changes

The Company's interest rate risks arise from the liabilities and financial investments of
operating activities. Given that the Company's interest income and expenses are affected by
interest rate changes in Taiwan and the U.S., the Company’s funding needs are mainly from cash
inflow from operating activities, long-term and short-term borrowings to reduce interest rate risks,
while some are from long-term bonds with fixed interest rates. In terms of financial investment,
the Company mainly focus on short-term fixed-income securities with high liquidity and high
rating to preserve capital and maintain liquidity. However, the hedging only offset part of the
financial impact that arise from interest rate fluctuations.

(2)Foreign exchange rate changes

The Company's primary products include rebar, structural steel and steel plates. Most of
customers are located in Taiwan, and products are sold in NT dollars, and 50% of the main raw
material scrap steel is also purchased domestically in NT dollars. Hence, there were no foreign
exchange rate risks. The export of products and 50% import of raw materials are mainly
denominated in US dollars. The gap between foreign currency gains and losses is affected by
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. As such, sharp fluctuations in NTD/ USD exchange rate will
have evident impact on the Company’s financial status.

Thanks to NTD/ USD appreciation in 2020, the Company recognized net foreign exchange
gains of NT$46,835,000, which accounted for 0.11% and 1.06% of annual operating revenue and
operating profit, respectively, exerting limited impact on the Company’s annual sales and profits.

In order to avoid disruption of normal operations by foreign exchange rate fluctuations, the
Company has adopted the following countermeasures to effectively mitigate the impact of foreign
exchange rate:

A. The Company collects daily information for foreign exchange rate changes to keep track of
foreign exchange rate trends, and make timely decisions related to currency conversion or hold
foreign currency debts. It also consult with the bank's foreign exchange department for hedging
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strategies, and decide on foreign currency positions according to the actual funding needs and
foreign exchange rates.

B. In terms of FX budgeting, the Company’s rights and obligations were offset given natural
hedging between foreign exchange income from the export of finished products, and the
foreign exchange expenditures that arise from the import of raw materials.

C. Timely hedging, such as trading foreign exchange options and forwards, in order to avoid the
foreign exchange risks.

(3)Inflation, deflation and overall market volatility

Any sudden change in market consensus for inflation and deflation will often affect the
global economy. Market efficiency may be reduced for both high inflation or deflation, which
influence consumers in making investment decisions, and tend to negatively effect the macro and
micro economy. In recent years, the political turmoil among the world's major economies and
ultra-loose monetary policies have exacerbated the effect of market consensus for inflation or
deflation on market volatility. The market fluctuations caused by policy changes have no direct
impact on the Company, but may indirectly affect the willingness of countries for capital
investments on national construction, which will thereby affect the medium and long-term steel
demand.

In 2020, Taiwan's moderate inflation (based on the average consumer price index of the
Directorate General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics) is around -0.23%, which has no
material impact on the Company's sales. Nonetheless, the Company cannot guarantee that there
will be no major changes in nature, extent or scope of inflation or deflation in the future, which
may adversely affect the Company's sales.

(1) The primary reasons for gain or loss and future response measures for high-risk and
high-leveraged investments, loans to others, guarantee endorsements, and derivative
transaction policy:

1. The Company has not engaged in high-risk, high-leveraged financial investments in recent
years. The primary reason for buying U.S. Dollar and engaging in long-term foreign exchange,
option operations, and interest rate swap operations is to circumvent exchange rate and interest
rate fluctuations and stabilize sales costs and capital costs. The company has not suffered any
significant losses from engaging in derivative transactions. In addition, the company's
derivative transaction policy is based on the actual hedging demand, and the relevant
operations are handled based on the company's "Policies and Procedures for Financial
Derivatives Transactions."

2. As of the end of 2020, the Company has no fund loans to its subsidiaries. Meanwhile, to
support the funding needs of Duc Hoa International J.S.C., the subsidiary Tung Yuan
International Corp.’s short-term fund loans amounted to NT$25,480,000 (Unit: Thousands of
New Taiwan Dollars). In addition, the Company's loaning of funds to others are handled in
accordance with the "Procedures for Extending Loans to Others™ of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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As of the end of 2020, since the subsidiary’s margin trading requires financing guarantees, the
ending balance endorsements/ guarantees for the subsidiaries Fujian Tung Kang Steel Co., Ltd.
and Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Co., Ltd. were NT$698,515,000 (Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan
Dollar and NT$7,903,200,000, (Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars). The subsidiary
Tung Yuan International Corp. has provided endorsements/ guarantees for the investment in
Fujian Sino-Japan Metal Corp. and Best-Steel Trade Corp. The ending balance of
endorsements/ guarantees for Fujian Sino-Japan Metal Corp. is NT$149,520,000 (Unit:
Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars). In November 2020, Tung Yuan International Corp. sold
shares and lost control over Best-Steel Trade Corp. The endorsements/ guarantees by the
Company and its subsidiaries are handled in accordance with the "Procedures for
Endorsements and Guarantees” of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(I11)Future R&D projects and estimated R&D expenditure:

1.

In terms of steelmaking: Development of billets with high steel cleanliness and high toughness,
development of SM570 steel plate of 50mm thickness, development of high-strength re-bar,
development of low-carbon and green manufacturing technology for electric furnace, and electric
furnace scrap preheating continuous feeding process research.

In terms of steel rolling: Leading R&D plan in developing the new technology for low-energy
direct rolling to increase tensile strength of ultra-high-strength re-bar by more than 1.6 times,
development of billet welding technology and application of direct rolling technology for
continual re-bar rolling, the R&D plan of universal edging, a new special rolling technology for
the production of H-beams with B value of more than 300mm, development of H-beam/ steel plate
on-line size automatic measurement and surface defect detection system, development of angle
and flat bar H/V (horizontal/ vertical) combination rolling, and the R&D plan for tandem
reciprocating universal edging round profiled material rolling technology, in order to diversify our
products, enhance our technical capability, and increase the Company's revenue and profit.

Other: Al technology application and development of smart factory technologies, “"Research on
Carbon Steel Oxidizing Slag Asphalt Pavement and Testing" new technology R&D projects, and
comprehensive and innovative solutions to promote a circular economy in the steel industry.

The company is expected to invest another NT$100 million for R&D.

(1V)The affect that domestic and international policies and law changes have on the
company's financial operations as well as the responding measures:

The Company has kept close track of policies and regulations that may affect the Company's

business operations, and formulated relevant risk management procedures. In 2020 and up to the date

of publication of the annual report, the Company’s major changes in law in regard to business

operations:

1.Articles 2 and 15 of the "Regulations for Establishing Measures of Prevention, Correction,
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Complaint and Punishment of Sexual Harassment at Workplace™ were amended on April 6, 2020, in
order to protect the grievance rights of employees or job applicants, so that employees won’t be
afraid or immediately quit their jobs when the employer is the harasser. Job applicants may not
know the company’s internal channels, and did not seek help from it. Therefore, the additional
provisions specify that when the employer is the harasser,the employee or applicant may also file a
complaint with the local competent authority in addition to filing a complaint through the
company’s internal channels. Hence, filing a complaint through the company’s internal channels
shall not be the first priority. In response, the Company actively made amendments and adjustments
on relevant personnel management regulations.

2.Article 80-1 of the "Labor Standards Act" was amended on June 10, 2020. Due to public welfare
related to protecting the rights and interests of workers, new provisions are added, stipulating that
for the business entity that is fined for violations of the Act, the competent authority shall publicly
announce the name of such business entity or its owner(s), the person(s) in charge, the date of the
disposition, and the violation of the provisions and the amount of the disposition, so that workers
can timely obtain material information related to working conditions, while the employers are urged
to actively keep track and adhere to relevant labor regulations.

3.Partial amendments of the "Regulations Governing Occupational Safety and Health" have been
announced on September 24, 2020, which prevent operational hazards on machinery vehicles for
construction, power fork lift truck, drying equipment, mobile cranes, decompression chambers, and
construction or freight elevators, with adjustments to the qualifications of occupational safety and
health managers in response to the current safety and health status of micro-enterprises,
encouraging business entities to improve occupational safety and health management systems and
automated inspection items and scopes, and clarifying data storage methods. The amendments
comply with the release of international standard 1ISO45001 and the national standard CNS45001
for managing the safety and health of workers and materials. As such, the Company has instructed
the environmental safety units of each plant for the amendment of various procedures, or legal
compliance on safety facilities improvement and installation.

4.Amendments of Articles 19 and 19-1 of the "Regulations on the Permission and Administration of
the Employment of Foreign Workers™ have been announced on January 6, 2021. An employer who
fail to comply with the foreign workers’ disciplinary will be required to improve within a deadline
by the local competent authority that regards the issue to be a minor plot, except as otherwise for
serious adverse effects on safe accommodation or health of foreign workers, which shall be punished
immediately. The foreign workers’ disciplinary stipulated in Article 19-1 was consolidated and
deleted, and the Company’s labor safety unit will provide counseling and improvement in
cooperation with intermediaries, especially for care services such as food, accommodation and
personal safety of foreign workers.

5.Amendments of Articles 12, 13, 973, 980 and other provisions of the "Civil Code" were announced
on January 13, 2021, mainly related to "lowering the age of majority as prescribed in the Civil Code
from 20 to 18 in order to correspond to the physical and psychological development of today’s
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youths and protect their rights. This is also a move to be in line with international norms. The
amended age of majority as prescribed in the Civil Code will be the same as the age of full
responsibility as prescribed in the Criminal Code and administrative laws"”, and “the age of
marriage/ engagement for men and women have been unified to 18/ 17 years of age from the
original minimum engagement age requirements of 15 years old for females and 17 years old for
males, and original minimum marriage age requirements of 16 years old for females and 18 years
old for males." At the same time, the Ministry of Justice has also enact regulations to support the
change of the age of majority in the Civil Code. With respect to the rights or benefits (e.g., pension,
survivor’s annuity, stipulated child support after the parents’ divorce, etc.) which have been
provided by law or administrative disposition, ruled by the court, or stipulated in a contract to be
enjoyed by the minor until the age of 20 or the age of majority prior to the enforcement of the
amendment, after the amendment becomes effective, the change of vested rights and interests prior
to and after the enforcement of the amendment can still be enjoyed by the minor until the age of 20.
In addition, with respect to those who have been married prior to the enforcement of this
amendment and has yet to turn 18 after the amendment becomes effective, the supporting
regulations expressly provide that their requirements for marriage and their relevant statuses will
not be affected by this amendment so that their rights may be protected. The sunrise clause was
formulated for preparation and response to the implementation of the new Act which is scheduled
on January 1, 2023. To comply with new legislations, the Company shall make appropriate updates
or amendments for provisions that have the effect of such civil actions.

6.Amendments to Article 205 of the "Civil Act" have been announced on January 20, 2021, trimming
the upper limit of the "agreed rate of interest" from 20% to 16%, and the exceeded part of the
agreement is invalid. In order for all sectors of society to be fully prepared and avoid disputes
between the application of old and new laws, the amendment of Article 36 and addition of Article
10-1 of the "Enforcement Act of the Part of Obligations of the Civil Code" has been announced on
the same day, stipulating that the amendment of Article 205 of the Civil Act will be implemented 6
months after its release. If the agreement on interest rate has been made before the effective date for
the amendment, its interest debt becomes effective after the amendment comes into force, that is,
the revised Article 205 of the Civil Act shall not apply to any interests occurred before the revision
comes into force as it is not retroactive, but shall still apply to interests occurred after the revision
comes into force if the agreement on interest rate has been made before the effective date for the
amendment.

(V)The affect that technological changes and industrial changes have on the company's
financial operations as well as the responding measures:

In 2020 and as of the publication date of the annual report, the Company's operational strategies
include continuous efforts in improving our technical capability and management efficiency,
lowering production costs, and ramping up collaboration of production and sales so that we can raise
the Company's competitive advantages in the domestic market. We will also carry out aggressive
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expansion of our overseas market and customer base simultaneously. Another important strategy of
the Company is the continual research and development of new steel products and applications, to
further expand and consolidate the company's operational foundation.

The steel products market has the feature of always being deeply affected by changes in the
business cycle, which exerted an impact on steel product manufacturing services. Since most of the
Company's customers are from industries such as the public construction, automotive, machinery
manufacturing, and electronic parts and accessories, the Company's sales and profits are also
affected by order fluctuations.

The steel products industry is facing great recession and excess capacity in China. Since the
Company’s current and future business operations are contributed by customers in the steel products
industry, it may be dragged down along with the overall steel manufacturing industry due to the
aforementioned industrial recession and excess capacity in the supply chain. As such, the Company’s
revenue, profits and profitability would be affected if the Company cannot effectively offset the
decline in demand through cost reduction or other measures.

In response to continuous industrial and technological changes for steel products, and
strengthening the Company's competitive advantage of precision processing would enable it to
produce more advanced steel products. If the Company has not developed the vision for
technological improvement and rapidly establish innovative business models, or if competitors
unexpectedly obtained more advanced technology, the Company’s competitiveness may not be
strong enough to win more orders. Although the Company has dedicated efforts in maintaining its
R&D advantages, its competitiveness may weaken without the support of leading technologies or
business models.

(V1) The effects that enterprise image change have on enterprise crisis management as
well as the responding measures:

The company has always maintained the operation principles of professionalism, quality, and
integrity as well as emphasized on corporate image and risk management. There are currently no
foreseeable crisis matters.

(VII)Expected benefits and potential risks of merger and acquisition and response
measures:

There have been no mergers and acquisitions in 2020 and up to the date of publication of the
annual report. However, the changes in market supply/ demand and prices in the global steel market
will affect the company's sales and profits. Therefore, the company will kept close track of the
changes in market supply and demand for the adjustment in sales strategies, and continue to add

value to products in order to mitigate potential risks.

(VIINThe expected benefits and possible risks of plant expansion as well as the
responding measures:

There have been no plant expansions in 2020 and up to the date of publication of the annual
report. However, the changes in market supply/ demand and prices in the global steel market will
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affect the company's sales and profits. Therefore, the company will kept close track of the changes in
market supply and demand for the adjustment in sales strategies, and continue to add value to
products in order to mitigate potential risks.

(IX)Risks faced by concentrated sales or purchasing as well as the responding measures:

1.The Company has thousands of customers in Taiwan. In 2020, the Company’s top ten customers
accounted for 39.93% of the Company’s net sales, of which the largest customer accounted for
8.94%, while the top ten customers of the Company and its subsidiaries accounted for 30.13% of
consolidated net sales, of which the largest customer accounted for 6.86%, which meant that the
sales were not concentrated in 2020.

2.In 2020, the Company's top ten suppliers accounted for 43.06% of the Company's net purchases,
while the top ten suppliers of the Company and its subsidiaries accounted for 35.36% of the
consolidated net purchases. Considering that some of the Company’s raw materials that were
purchased according to company features are from single suppliers, we suspect that demands could
not be met if there is no alternative source of supply. We expect the Company’s sales and profits to
decline if the company cannot timely obtain the required raw materials, or upon surging raw
material prices with rising costs unable to be passed on to customers. Therefore, the Company is
committed to purchasing raw materials from different suppliers, or suppliers from different
regions, in order to ensure safe raw materials supply, and reduce the risk of concentrated
purchasing.

(X)The effects that large share equity transfers by directors or major shareholders
holding more than 10% of the company shares have on the company as well as risk
and responding measures:

The Company’s existing shareholders have not engaged in sales of large number of common
shares. In 2020 and as of the publication date of the annual report, directors or major shareholders
holding more than 10% of the company shares have no risks of large share equity transfers or

replacements that may affect the Company’s normal operations.

(XI)The effects that change in management has on the company as well as risk and
responding measures:

There have been no risks from change in management in 2020 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report.

(X1DIn terms of litigation or non-litigation matters, the company and the company's
directors, general managers, actual responsible person, shareholders holding more
than 10% of the company shares, and affiliated companies, who are involved in a
major lawsuit of a subsidiary company that has either been decided or is still pending
whereby the results of the case may have a significant impact to shareholder interests
or securities prices, must be specified. The status of the disputed facts, bid amount,
litigation commencement date, and the primary parties involved in such litigations up
to the publication date of this annual report shall be disclosed:

1.There have been no major lawsuits 2020 and up to the date of publication of the annual report.
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2.The directors, general managers, actual responsible person, shareholders holding more than 10%
of the company shares, and affiliated companies were not involved in major litigations in 2020
and as of the publication date of the annual report, and there are currently no major litigations still
pending.

(X111 Other critical risks and response measures:
1.Information security risk assessment:

The Company's Information Security Risk Assessment Report is as follows:
(1)Purpose
In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, the Company shall take into account company
goals to conduct information security risk assessment, determine various information security
requirements, and adopt necessary information security measures to ensure continual operations and
minimize operating losses.
(2)IT environments and instructions
A.Network structure
Chunghwa Telecom FTTB VPN and ADSL VPN are used as backup for main network
connection of the Company's bases. Each of the Company's bases are directly connected to the
Internet.

Internet
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Company external network FTTB VPN and ADSL VPN

B.Information system
The Company’s information systems are mainly divided into two categories. The first category is
the common type system that support the operations in the Company’s information environment,
including e-mail, anti-virus, anti-spam systems, and file servers. The second category is the operational
application systems for accounting management, human resource, business operations, production
management, and manufacturing. The servers that support systems operations include Windows server
and IBM AS400.

(3)Information security policy
For information security management, the Company has formulated the "Guidance for

Information Security Management” for implementing information security. Information security
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policy:

A.Information security management regulations should comply with the law and contract

requirements.

B.Maintaining the integrity and availability of information.

C.Limited access to confidential information.

D.Ensure that authorized users in accessing files and resources.

E.Prevent unauthorized use.

F.Prevent accidental damages on hardware, software, and other resources.

G.Prevent vandalism of hardware, software, and other resources.

H.Prevent improper use of network resources.

(4)Information security and cyber risk analysis

Information asset risk analysis:

Name of Risk event o
Existing control measures
the asset Weakness Threat
System Routinely fix system
o System hacked o
vulnerabilities vulnerabilities
Difficult system System virtualization and
No system backup ]
recovery backup on different hosts
] Duplicate hard disk backup
No data backup Data corruption
and tape backup
Server
) The account password must
_ Unauthorized _
No strict control meet complexity
access )
over the account requirements and changed
Data breach
regularly
] Set up remote backup
Natural disaster System crash
system
Install Windows Server
System ]
o System hacked Update Services (WSUS)
vulnerabilities )
for system security updates
PC Establish a centralized
) ) ) antivirus system to cyber
Computer virus Malware infection ) o
security monitoring and
incident exclusion.
No periodic Unauthorized _
o Annual review of user
o authorization access to .
Application . ) permissions
checks information
system . ——
No stringent Program modification for
. Data error ) .
program testing rigorous operation
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processes

Malware infection | Advocacies on information
Lack of cyber ] )
Employees ) Stolen account and | security on an irregular
security awareness _
data basis

(5)The impact of information systems malfunction on the Company's business and countermeasures

To ensure uninterrupted service, the Company will gradually establish a high availability remote
host and data backup mechanism for the information system structure based on its risk level. The
backup media will be sent for remote storage, strengthening the system backup and recovery drills to
ensure normal operations of the information system and data preservation, and thereby lowering the
risk of system interruption caused by unexpected natural disasters and human negligence, while
ensuring that the recovery time is in line with expectations.

According to the recent cyber threat analysis, the source of threat mostly comes from external
hacks, followed by human negligence and lack of information security awareness of internal
employees, while the root causes behind these information security incidents are due to system
vulnerabilities or execution of unknown malware. Therefore, we will subsequently attach more
importance on task executions. Although we have a backup and recovery mechanism for the last line
of defense after information security incidents, losses from information security incidents may be
greatly reduced if precautions are taken.

2.Risk management

The Company has established the Corporate Governance Committee under the board of directors,
covering the corporate governance, corporate social responsibility, ethical management, environmental
sustainability, and risk management teams, of which the risk management team is in charge of
implementing risk management, coordinating relevant departments in risk identification, evaluation,
management and supervision, and regularly reporting the implementation status to the Corporate
Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for reporting the overall
risk management implementation status to the board of directors at least once a year. The Company
formulated the risk management policy in June 2020, and established the Risk Management Policies and
Operating Procedures in November 2020, which were approved by resolution of the 3rd and 5th meetings
of the 24th term board of directors.

Each department assess the possibility of various risk factors and degree of impact based on their
functions, taking necessary measures, and assuring proper management of various risks. The Audit Office
is responsible for preparing annual audit plans based on the risk management policies and risk evaluation
results, conducting systems auditing based on the plan, and assisting the board of directors in supervision
and management of the potential risks in decision-making, in order to ensure effective control of
operational risks, and timely provide suggestions for improvement. Through institutional systematic
management procedures, we can effectively identify, prevent and control risks to maintain normal
operations and achieve corporate sustainability.
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Risk items and risk management

Operations

Management strategy

Corporate governance
risks

In order to ensure the legal compliance of directors, managers and employees, the Company
formulated internal regulations including the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles” and "Code of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers™ have been established,
and the business precautions are stipulated in the "Ethical Corporate Management Operating
Procedures and Code of Conduct" to regulate all employees. In addition, to implement ethical
corporate management the "Commitment to Ethical Conduct” shall be signed by directors,
managers and employees, with advocacies on ethical concepts and the prohibition of
unethical behaviors via internal publications and meetings. The board members were recused
for conflict of interests from board meetings in order to prevent unethical behaviors. The
Company also provides liability insurance for directors, in order to reduce potential liability
risks that arise from the directors’ execution of duties.

Reputational risks

The Company's Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the formulation,
supervision and review of the ethical corporate management policies and prevention
programs, and upholds the spirit of "trustworthiness in relation to all stakeholders" as moral
guidelines for business activities in the pursuit of positive value and quality assurance.

Strategic risks

The Company’s president and senior managers attend group meetings several times a week
for detailed research and analysis on aspects such as business, finance, production and
procurement, and make appropriate decisions with consideration of the Company’s
competitive advantages, current and future market conditions, and environmental conditions.
To ensure operational stability and mitigate risks, the decisions will be revised in response to
environmental changes.

Operating risks

The inter-departmental meetings for management by objectives review the production and
sales performance, and establish objectives to achieve the Company’s business goals.
Production and Marketing Meetings enables smooth coordination on production,
procurement, and sales, and thereby ensure smooth supply and lower inventory risks. The
procurement of raw materials matches the volume and price of orders, which will enable
stable operations and avoid losses that arise from transaction price.

Human resource risks

The Company has formulated human rights policies, compensation policies, and internal
regulations such as: Work rules and regulations on employee performance appraisal,
education and training, and employee job rotation, with inventory of company
documentations on a regular basis, and reviewing the legality of operating procedures to
comply with the amendment of relevant laws and regulations. In order for smooth
communication channels, the Company’s plants held employer-employee meetings,
occupational safety committee meetings, and employee welfare committee meetings on a
regular basis. Employees are allowed to express their opinions according to procedures
stipulated in the Regulations Governing Employee Complaints and Grievances. In order to
meet industrial development needs, the Company regularly review its staffing capacity, and
recruit new employees, and cultivate professional talents.

The impact of major
domestic and foreign
policies and legal changes
on corporate
sustainability.

In response to major domestic and foreign policies and laws, the Company pays attention to
daily newspapers and the media, conduct annual or monthly meetings with analysis and
discussions on future policy and legal changes, and formulate necessary countermeasures in
order to reduce negative impact on the Company’s future operations.

Finance

Management strategy

Financing risks

The Accounting Department is responsible for evaluating the flow of funds that arise from
the operation process, adoption of financing measures based on future changes and ending
balance, negotiating financing plans with domestic and foreign financial institutions, and
diversifying financing partners to avoid concentrated borrowing. The Company’s various
financing is carried out within the scope of Board authorization.

Investment risks

The Company formulated management procedures suitable for different investment types,
including the Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets and Rules for Management
of Investee Companies, which are controlled by different authority levels.

Liquidity risks

The Company regularly controls the percentage between assets including current and
non-current assets, as well as current and non-current liabilities, and regulates the solvency to
meet maturing obligations to reduce liguidity risks.

Foreign exchange risks

Collect exchange rate movement related information daily to have a full grasp on the
exchange rate, and convert currency or retain foreign currency loans at the optimal time. In
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terms of FX budgeting, the Company’s rights and obligations were offset given natural
hedging between foreign exchange income from current imports and exports. The Company
also consult with the bank's foreign exchange department for hedging strategies, and decide
on foreign currency positions according to the actual funding needs and foreign exchange
rates.

Interest rate risks

Margin trading with financial institutions is performed within the scope of authorization of
the board of directors, and the Company’s financing costs are controlled by negotiating
favorable funds rate with reference to market interest rates. In addition to transactions with
financial institutions, the Company will also carefully assess other financing tools with lower
cost in case of major capital expenditures.

Risks of loaning of funds
to others

The Company has established the Procedures for Extending Loans to Others, with limitations
on borrowers and loan conditions. It also set standards for the total guarantee amount and
individual credit limits, and investigate and evaluate the borrower’s operating conditions,
financial status, solvency, credit status, profitability and the purpose of borrowing, which
shall be reported to

the board of directors as the basis for risk evaluation. The Company and requires appropriate
terms of guarantee, and the extending of loans shall be approved by resolution of the board of
directors.

Endorsement/ guarantee
risks

The Company has established the Procedures for Extending Loans to Others, with limitations
on borrowers and loan conditions. It also set standards for the total guarantee amount and
individual credit limits, which shall be reviewed in advance by the Finance and Accounting
Division, and the credit limit shall be approved and signed by the Chairman, and submitted
for resolution by the board of directors. Subsequently, the Company’s internal auditors
perform regular auditing on the Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees with regard to
the endorsement/ guarantee items, borrowers, amount and other relevant information.

Derivatives trading risks

The Company has established the Procedures for Engaging in Financial Derivative
Transactions and the principles and types of transactions, while the authorized managers of
the board of directors is in charge for handling relevant matters in consideration of financial
trends and business needs. Set standards for the total guarantee amount and individual credit
limits. The Finance and Accounting Division is responsible for collection and provision of
relevant information, transaction instructions, evaluating the position of derivatives, creating
the evaluation cycle, and submitting the evaluation report to the Chairman or authorized
manager as reference for management, while the transaction status and profit/ loss
assessment are reported to the board of directors.

Financial
decision-making risks

The Company’s financial decision-making includes acquisitions and disposals, loaning of
funds, endorsements/ guarantees, derivatives transactions, and reinvestment business
management. Related regulations have been established in compliance with laws and
regulations, and are authorized according to different authority levels, while the audit unit
performs regular audits on related operating procedures, in order to minimize the possibility
of risks.

Operations Management strategy
Ethical management and legal compliance are the basic guidelines and requirements for
company operations. As such, the management department and accounting department timely
revise the labor, operational, and financial regulations to comply with the laws and
Legal risks regulations issued by the competent authority. The plant’s responsible units conduct monthly

inspections related to safety and health, and the environment (air pollution, water pollution,
soil pollution, waste disposal, and greenhouse gas emissions), and revise any deficiencies or
formulate relevant operating procedures in order to reduce the risk of violation.

Information security risks

In order to implement information security management, the Company has formulated
"Guidance for Information Security Management" and enforcement rules, and the
information work plans are implemented accordingly. It also formulated the "Regulations
Governing the Security and Maintenance of Personal Data™ for stringent management of data
usage and security maintenance, and established the firewall, encrypting file system, and
electronic personal data storage platform to control employees’ access rights and access
records. Meanwhile, the Company improved its endpoint security for servers and privileged
account management, in order to prevent the occurrence of information security incidents.
The Company established the system backup mechanism, with annual disaster recovery drills
to ensure data preservation and that systems will resume normal operations, lowering the risk
of system interruption caused by unexpected natural disasters and human negligence.

Occupational safety and
health management risks

The Company has set up a Safety Protection Center in the head office and each plant for
health and safety coordination. In response to the new Occupational Safety and Health
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Management System (ISO/CNS 45001: 2018), each plant amended the "Safety and Health
Management Manual" and other relevant regulations, and obtained certification to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance of the system. To ensure employee safety and health, we
continue to implement safety and health management, improve manufacturing processes and
equipment, identify risks, and eliminate or mitigate hazards. Since 2020, we conducted joint
audits on inter-plant safety and health, improvement of deficiencies, zero-disaster activities,
while the major occupational accident unit conducts project audits every year to increase the
frequency and intensity of audit coverage, in the aim to reduce various risks that arise from
occupational safety and health management.

Based on the annual evaluation plan for the Company’s internal control system, each
department conducts self-assessment on its implementation status of the current systems,
rules and regulations, and suggest improvements on internal control deficiencies discovered
by the internal audit, with amendments to procedures or regulations in order to reduce fraud
risks. In addition, the Company strengthened the legal education for employees, and
established effective communication channels to reduce the occurrence of fraud risks.

Fraud risks

Environment Management strategy

The Company has started to understand the sustainability and climate change content of
various international initiatives/ organizations, with the aim to cover the international
initiatives and evaluation criteria in formulating environmental and GHG policies, keep in
line with international development trends, and strengthen the Company's ability to respond
to climate change. Since the Company’s Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for
environmental management, it shall identify and evaluate the impact of transformation risks,
physical risks, and opportunities on business operations, as well as the probability of
occurrence according to TCFD’s framework of climate-related risks and opportunities.

Climate change risks

The Company has set up a dedicated unit to effectively manage waste gas, wastewater and
waste by use of the ISO 14001 environmental management system, with continual
investment for better pollution prevention equipment. It also adopt the Best Available
Control Technology (BACT) to implement pollution prevention, reduce industrial waste, and
strengthen water saving, wastewater recycling and reuse in compliance with environmental
protection laws and regulations. Strictly control waste production, storage and disposal
processes, and establish an independent waste audit system.

Environmental pollution
liability risks

The Company has formulated emergency response measures to prevent natural disasters, so
that effective response measures can be immediately taken when natural disasters occur,
which thereby reduce worker injuries, equipment and property losses. In addition, the
Company purchased property insurance for offices, factories, instruments, and furniture and
fixtures, while the additional e-insurance covers precision instruments and equipment to
mitigate damages caused by disasters.

Natural disaster risks

In addition to changes in global trends, industrial policies or laws and regulations, the major
external hazard risk is the recent spread of COVID-19 pandemic around the world. With that,
the Company assesses the possible impact based on the COVID-19 pandemic, and formulate
emergency response measures and business continuity management plans in advance. The
Company has set up the emergency response team and network for advanced preparation of
business continuity management plans (including human resource, equipment, information
systems, raw materials, transportation, finance, and backup plans) for key businesses.

Major external hazard
risks

3. Climate change risk management strategies

In face of global warming, extreme weather, environmental protection, energy saving, safety and
health, and increased conservation awareness, the Company disclosed the following 4 core elements
based on its climate-related financial information with reference to the TCFD (Task Force on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures) issued by the Financial Stability Board (FSB): Establish a
risk framework based on "Governance", "Strategy”, "Risk Management”, "Indicators and
Objectives", identify major risks and opportunities that may affect business operations, and
formulate relevant countermeasures. In February 2021, the Company has become an official TCFD
supporter.

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the review and guidance of climate change
strategies, action plans and annual objectives, with regular monitoring on the implementation status
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and review of GHG reduction targets and achievements on an annual basis. The Company has
established the Corporate Governance Committee (functional committee) under the board of
directors. The committee consists of three members appointed by resolution of the board of directors,
among which more than 50% of the members are independent directors. The Company’s Chairman
is appointed as the committee’s convener (chairperson), and is responsible for issues related to
climate change, including environmental sustainability, as well as the establishment, monitoring and
review of company objectives. Corporate Governance Committee meetings are held at least twice a
year, and climate change-related issues are reported to the board of directors every year.

The environmental sustainability team is set up under the Corporate Governance Committee
(functional committee), which is composed of dedicated personnel from relevant departments, with
the Executive Vice President as the Chairperson who is responsible for evaluating and managing
climate-related risks and opportunities, as well as goal and strategy formulation. The environmental
sustainability team reports its implementation status to the Corporate Governance Committee on a
regular basis.

The environmental sustainability team members hold meetings to identify climate change risks and
opportunities. Based on TCFD’s transformation risks, physical risks, and opportunities, each
department will evaluate the response measures and financial impacts of the main short, medium
and long term risks and opportunities identified in the meeting, while considering the impact of
products and services, supply chain, adaption and mitigation activities, R&D investment, and
business operations (including business types and facility location) on the Company's businesses
and strategies. Among them, the identification and evaluation of climate-related transformation risks
and physical risks include the impact on business operations, the probability of occurrence, and the
vulnerability when it occurs. As for the identification and evaluation of climate-related opportunities,
it covers the degree of impact on business operations and the probability of occurrence. Based on
the discussion of matrix analysis, the environmental sustainability team members identified 5
climate change risks, including "Capacity Control/ Emissions Trading”, "Increase in Greenhouse
Gas Emission Pricing"”, "Renewable Energy Regulations”, "Tropical Cyclones”, and "Change in
Average Precipitation". In consideration of the Company’s main risks and opportunities, the
Company has formulated countermeasures according to the risk response measures (elimination,
reduction, diversification and transfer of risks) stipulated in the Company’s Risk Management
Policies and Operating Procedures. The financial impact, risk content, response measures and costs
are described as follows:

Risk identification results

Type/ item Financial impact and risk content Countermeasures
Increase in direct costs 1.To comply with the Major Electricity
After the amendment of Greenhouse Gas User Clauses, each plant has newly
Reduction and Management Act in Taiwan, if installed solar panels, with installation

Transformation
risks - policy
and legal risks

the Company’s amount of GHG emissions in capacity of 20MW.

Cap and trade | excess of the sum of GHG emissions cannot be | 2.The affiliated company Tung Kang Wind
purchased in the emissions trading market in Power Corp. obtained an electrical
future years, a fine of NT$3,000 per ton will be contractor license in 2016, and currently
imposed, which may lead to an increase in the owns 5 wind turbines. In response to the
Company’s direct operating costs. amendment of Greenhouse Gas
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Increase in
pricing of
greenhouse
gas emissions

Increase in direct costs

After the amendment of Greenhouse Gas
Reduction and Management Act in Taiwan, the
Company’s greenhouse gas emissions will be
charged at NT$100 per ton, with an increase in
the Company’s direct operating costs. The
increase in ASP of greenhouse gas emission
will further raise the Company’s costs.

Increase in direct costs/ capital expenditures
The reason for increase in capital expenditures
was that the Company generates solar energy

Reduction and Management Act in
Taiwan, Tung Kang Wind Power Corp.
plans to add new wind turbines, which
bring about total installation capacity of
19.9MW.

3.We anticipate that starting from 2032,
Tung Ho Steel’s installed renewable
energy capacity as follows: Solar energy
capacity of 20MW, wind turbine
capacity of 19.9MW (including 11.5MW
installed in 2015). The total electricity

Renewable for self-consumption, which led to higher production from renewable energy
energy power generation price compared to that of sources is equivalent to 6.3% of total
regulations TPC. electricity demand, reducing CO2
emissions by 38,048 tons (down 4.7%),
and thereby lower the cost of carbon
pollution.
Decrease in revenue For risk transfer, the Company has
The plant and machines are damaged by | currently purchased property insurance,
typhoon, which affected production. covering fire disasters, explosion-ignited
Increase in direct costs fire, lightning, explosion, earthquake,
The typhoon dragged down production and | typhoon and flood insurance.
Physical risks - | Tropical increased costs.
immediate wind Increase in indirect costs
Raised insurance expenses as the plant and
equipment are damaged by typhoon.
Increase in capital expenditures
Repair and maintenance expenses for the plant
that is damaged by typhoon.
Decrease in revenue 1.The Company's Miaoli plant and
The low precipitation levels has led to water Kaohsiung plant have underground
resource problems in reservoirs, and some water wells, and is less affected by the
regions imposed water rationing, which tight water supply.
reduced the Company’s production volume. 2.Water procurement is required in
. . Change in Increase in_direct costs/ indirect costs/ Taoyuan plant in response to local water
Physical risks - - > 2
average capital expenditures rationing.

long term

precipitation

The Company's Miaoli plant and Kaohsiung
plant have groundwater discharge permits,
whereas the Taoyuan plant is affected by local
water rationing, and water procurement is
required to meet the Company’s production
needs.

VII. Other critical matters: None.
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H. Special note items
l.

Relevant information for the affiliated enterprises

(N

Tung Kang Wind Power Co., Ltd. (100%)

Katec Creative Resources Corp. (99.01%)

Dung Tang Energy Service Co., Ltd. (36%)

Consolidated business reports form the affiliated enterprises
1.0rganization chart for the affiliated enterprises

Goldham Development Ltd. (100%)

Fujian Tung Kang Steel Co., Ltd. (100%)

Fujian DongSheng Metal Processing Co., Ltd. (51%)

uolrelodio) asudiaug |9a1s oH Buny

Tung Kang Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (97.48%)

Tung Kang Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. (100%)

Fada Corp. (100%)

Tung Yuan International Corporation (100%)

3 Oceans International Inc. (66.67%)

Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,Ltd. (100%)

Duc Hoa International J.S.C. (96%)
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2.Basic information of the various affiliated enterprises

December 31, 2020

Enterprise name

Date of
Establishment

Address

Paid-in capital (Unit:
Thousands of New Taiwan

The main businesses or production items

Dollars)

Tung Yuan International Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay I, Lo

Corporation 1992.11 Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. 2,335|Foreign investments

3 Oceans International Inc. 2004.3  |Pillar 9 House, Suite 5, Saleufi Street, Apia, Samoa. 78,605|Foreign investments

[t’ dng Kang Steel Structure Co., 1993.07 |6F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road, Taipei City 2,026,626|Professional Construction

Tung Kang Engineering & , S . .

Construction Co., Ltd, 1991.09 |9F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road, Taipei City 250,000|Synthesis Construction

Fada Corp. 2015.03 NO'116.’ Ca_oluo, Ne|ghbor_hood 8, Baozhang Vil., 1,000|Waste and resource recycling industry
Guanyin Dist., Taoyuan City

Katec Creative Resources Corp. 1995.08 No. 231, Hyanke Rd Guanyin District, Datan Vil, 975.704 Generz_il waste clearance and disposal
Taoyuan City, Taiwan operations

[tjdng Kang Wind Power Co., 2009.10 |9F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road, Taipei City 155,000|Electric Power Supply

Goldham Development Ltd. 1997.11 Lst Floor, Lake Bu_ll_dmg,_vv_lckhams Cay 1, Road 427,200|Foreign investments
Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.

.. . . . Produce steel products and related products
Fujian Tung Kang Steel Co., 1998.01 No. 5, Yanxi Rd., H_ongkgan Ind.l.JSt“al \_/|Ilage, 427,200|as well as provide the corresponding
Ltd. Yangxia Town, Fuging City, Fujian, China . . . )

installation and ancillary services
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam 2007.04  |Phu My 2 Industrial Zone, Tan Thanh District, Ba .
Corp.,Ltd. (Note) Ria-Vung Tau Province, Vietnam. 5,016,935/Steel manufacturing
. Bach Dang Hamlet-Luu Ky Commune—Thuy Nguyen L
Duc Hoa International J.S.C. 2009.10 Distric—Hai Phong City-Vietnam 128,160|Quicklime plant
Fujian DongSheng Metal Process| 2018.08 Factory area of Fujian Runtong Hardware Co., Ltd., 39,393|Manufacturing and sales of metal structures

: g 9 ' Hongkuan 2nd Road, Fuging City, Fujian Province. ' g

Dung Tang Energy Service Co., I 2019.06 |9F, No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang'an East Road, Taipei City 150,000 Fertilizer manufacturing and renewable

energy self-use power generation equipment

Note: The date of incorporation of Fuco Steel.

3.Presumed as the same shareholder information for those who have control and subordinate relationships: None.
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4. Information for director, supervisor, and general manager of affiliated companies

December 31, 2020

Shareholding

Enterprise name Title Name or representative Number of Shareholding
shares ratio (%)
. Director Henry C. T. Ho
Jung vuan International Director Qixie Lin 82 100
P Director Joshua P.H. Tung
) Director Henry C. T. Ho
3 Oceans International Inc. Director Qixie Lin 1,840,000 66.67
Chairman Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Henry C. T. Ho
Vice Chairman Represen_tatlive of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Kuanren Gu
Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Joshua P.H. Tung
Tung Kang Steel Structure Co., Ltd. : Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise 197,565,134 97.48
Director . LY
Corporation: Zhengbin Qiu
Di Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
irector N
Corporation: Binghua Huang
Supervisor Earle Ho and Sons, Ltd.
President Zhengbin Qiu
. Representative of Dong Gang Steel Structure Co., Ltd.:
Chairman :
Yong-Zhi Chen
. Representative of Dong Gang Steel Structure Co., Ltd.:
Director
o Henry C. T. Ho
Tung Kang Engineering & : Representative of Dong Gang Steel Structure Co., Ltd.:
Construction Co., Ltd. Director Kuanren Gu 25,000,000 100
. Representative of Dong Gang Steel Structure Co., Ltd.:
Supervisor .
Zhao Liu
President Pi-Tung Chen
Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Chairman Corporation: Kuanren Gu
Fada Corp. 100,000 100
Direct Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
rector Corporation: Henry C. T. Ho
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Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise

Director Corporation: Yong-Zhi Chen
] Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Supervisor Corporation: Zhao Liu
Director Henry C. T. Ho
Goldham Development Ltd. Director Joshua P.H. Tung 15,000,000 100
Director Zhengbin Qiu
Chairman Zhengbin Qiu
Fujian Tung Kang Steel Co., Ltd. Supervisor Kuanren Gu 0 100
President Chen-Han Kuo
Chairman Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Fu-jing Chen
Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Henry C. T. Ho
Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Ching-Lian Huang 95,724,402 99.01
Katec Creative Resources Corp. Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Zhang-Qing He
Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Zhao Liu
Supervisor Katec R&D Corporation
President Yong-Zhi Chen
Chairman Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Henry C. T. Ho
Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Joshua P.H. Tung
Tung Kang Wind Power Co., Ltd. Director Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise 15,500,000 100
Corporation: Zhao Liu
Supervisor Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Corporation: Ruyu He
President Min-Ta Hsieh
Chairman Binghua Huang
Director Henry C. T. Ho
Tung Ho Steel Vietnam Corp.,Ltd. Director Qixie Lin 0 100
President Xu Yizhi
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Chairman Hou-sheng Jian
Director Qixie Lin
Duc Hoa International J.S.C. Director Xu Yizhi 8,154,419 96.00
Supervisor Zhao Liu
President Hou-sheng Jian
Fujian DongSheng Metal Processing Supervisor Zhengbin Qiu 0 51.00
Co., Ltd.
Chairman Representative of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise
Dung Tang Energy Service Co., Ltd. Supervisor Corporation: Henry C. T. Ho 5,400,000 36.00

Zhao Liu
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5.Status of operation for various affiliated companies

December 31, 2020

Total liabilities Net worth Operating net Current net (loss)
Paid-in capital Total assets (Thousands of (Thousands| Operating revenue (loss) profit profit
. (Thousands of |(Thousands of New . of New |(Thousands of New| (Thousands of (Thousands of | Earnings per
Enterprise name . . New Taiwan . . . .
New Taiwan | Taiwan Dollars) Dollars) Taiwan Taiwan Dollars) New Taiwan New Taiwan share
Dollars) (Note 1) (Note 1) Dollars) (Note 2) Dollars) Dollars)
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)

Tung Yuan International
Corporation 2,335 747,722 427\ 747,295 0 (6,746) (6,746)| (82,266)
(Note 3)
3 Oceans International Inc. 78,605 30,075 0| 30075 0 (4,331) 4,331)  (L57)
(Note 4)
Lung Kang Steel Structure 2,026,626 4,970,649 2,173,292| 2,797,357 6,587,465 498,777 415179 2.05
Tung Kang Engineering & 250,000 441,913 183,861 258,052 649,994 542 898/  0.04
Construction Co., Ltd.
Fada Corp. 1,000 1,211 314 897 1,792 (122) (104)|  (1.04)
(Gl\cl’;‘t’:jr)“ Development L td. 427,200 373,091 ol 373001 0 (61,788) (69.240)  (4.62)
E‘é'a” Tung Kang Steel Co,, 427,200 728,614 355,523| 373,001 409,471 (61,788) (69,240),  NIA
Katec Creative Resources Corp 975,704 815,730 95,632| 720,098 343,252 (13,843) (11,110) (0.11)
E‘ dng Kang Wind Power Co., 155,000 554,614 467,024) 87,590 53,248 1,840 4,047)  (0.26)
E’ dng Ho Steel Vietnam Corp., 5,016,935 6,686,977 4,039,509| 2,647,378 3,744,737 (345,339) (409,615) N/A
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Fujian DongSheng Metal

Processing Co., Ltd. 39.373 52,747 24,761 27,986 32,971 (5,437) (6,578) N/A
Dung Tang Energy Service Co. 150,000 160,341 11,156 149,185 0 (1,068) (638)  (0.04)
Duc Hoa International J.S.C. 128,160 164,459 53,623 110,837 202,550 24,404 19,003 0.00

Note 1: The average USD to NTD exchange rate on December 31, 2020 was USD1 : NTD28.48; the average CNY to NTD exchange rate was CNY1 : NTD4.377; and the average
VND to NTD exchange rate was VND1 : NTD0.00111.

Note 2: The average USD to NTD exchange rate in 2020 was USD1:NTD29.55; the average CNY to NTD exchange rate was CNY1:NTD4.282; and the average VND to NTD
exchange rate was VND1:NTD0.00115.

Note 3: Par value of US$1,000 per share.

Note 4: Par value of US$1 per share.
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Il. Status of private solicitation for marketable securities handling for the
recent year up to the publication date of this annual report: None.

1. Status of company share holding or handling by a subsidiary company
for the recent year up to the publication date of this annual report:
None.

IVV. Other necessary supplemental information: None.

I. Corporate events with material impact on shareholders' equity or stock prices
set forth in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of Securities Exchange
Act in the past year and up to the date of report: None.
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Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
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prevail.
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the statements of comprehensive income,
the statements of changes in equity, and the statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended, in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial Statements by Certified
Public Accountants, and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Furthermore, we
conducted our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance
with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public
Accountants, Rule No. 1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and the auditing
standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of
Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the parent company only financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters for
the Company’s financial statements are stated as follows:

1. Revenue recognition

Please refer to Note 4(n) “Revenue recognition” and Note 6(v) “Revenue from contracts with customers” in
the parent company only financial statements.

Explanation of the key audit matter:

The Company mainly manufactures and sells rebar and formed steel. Revenue recognition is one of the key
areas for our audit, and is where on which the report users and receivers pay great concern on. As a result,
the test on revenue recognition is one of the key judgmental areas in our audit.
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Our principal audit procedures included:

- assessing whether appropriate revenue recognition policies were applied and whether sufficient information
was disclosed ;

- testing the manual or systems-based controls on its sales and collection cycle, perform reconciliations
between the information from sales systems and the general ledger ;

- reading the sales contracts with significant clients and testing the consistency of their accounting policy ;

- performing year-to-year analysis on the revenue by product and the revenue from the ten customers with the
largest sales volume to determine if there were any abnormalities ;

- vouching internal and external information of sales in the selected period before and after the reporting date
(the length of the period was determined based on the sales terms) to determine whether sales revenue were
recorded in the appropriate period.

. Valuation of inventories

Please refer to Note 4(g) “Inventories”, and Note 6(f) “Inventories” in the parent company only financial
statements.

Explanation of the key audit matter:

Due to the changes in the international trade environment and the impact of price fluctuations on the raw
materials and finished products of the steel industry, the risk that the book value of the inventory to be higher
than the net realizable value may arise. Therefore, the inventory is one of the key judgmental areas in our
audit.

Qur principal audit procedures included:

- assessing the rationality of accounting policies for inventory evaluation ;

- assessing whether the evaluation of inventory has been in accordance with the established accounting
policies ;

- understanding the sales price used by management and the changes in market price of futures inventory
to assess the rationality of the net realizable value of inventories ;

- assessing whether the management’s disclosure of the inventory allowance is acceptable.
. Investments accounted for using the equity method (construction contracts in subsidiaries)

Please refer to Note 4(i) “Investment in subsidiaries” and Note 6(g) “Investment accounted for using the
equity method” of the parent company only financial statements.

Explanation of the key audit matter:

Contract accounting is considered to be an audit risk to the Company’s subsidiary as it requires a high degree
of estimation and judgment of matters such as the costs of the work required to complete the contract, the
stage of completion of the contract, as well as the recognition of onerous contract. Different judgments could
lead to different outcomes, which may have an impact on the Company’ s shares of gain or loss on
investments accounted for using the equity method on its financial statements.
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Our principal audit procedures included:

- reviewing significant contracts and discussing them with the management to obtain a full understanding of
the specific terms and risks, to assess whether revenue was appropriately recognized ;

selecting a sample from the ongoing constructions to verify the costs between the estimation and the
contracts, discussing with the management about the estimates for total contract costs and forecasted costs,
including taking into account the historical accuracy of such estimates ;

selecting a sample from the completed constructions to assess the settlement of revenue by examination of
external evidence ;

for warranty under the construction contracts provided to the clients by the subsidiaries, obtaining the
estimated warranty costs, vouching internal and external data to assess the rationality of the estimates and
whether there are any abnormalities in the provisions estimated by the management ;

assessing whether the loss recognized for onerous contracts appropriately reflect the expected contractual
position.

4. Investments accounted for using the equity method (Impairment of property, plant and equipment in
subsidiaries)

Please refer to Note 4(i) “Investment in subsidiaries” and Note 6(g) “ Investment accounted for using the
equity method” of the parent company only financial statements.

Explanation of the key audit matter:

Assets impairment accounting is considered to be an audit risk to the Company’s subsidiary as it requires a
high degree of estimation and judgment of matters such as determination of discount rates and expected
growth rates. Different judgments could lead to different outcomes, which may have an impact on the
Company’ s shares of gain or loss on investments accounted for using the equity method on its financial
statements.

Our principal audit procedures included:

- obtaining report of property, plant and equipment value in use from external experts appointed by the
Company’s subsidiaries ;

- assessing the professional competency, objectivity, and experience of external experts ;

- discussing with the management and raise professional skepticism of the significant key judgments
mentioned in the report of value in use ;

- appointing internal experts to assess the reasonableness of relevant assumptions used by external experts.
(including evaluation methods and related reference information.)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company Only
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a
parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the audit committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment
accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Lee, Tzu Hui and Kuo,
Hsin Yi.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 23, 2021

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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1100
1110
1150
1170
1200
1310
1410
1470

1517

1550
1600
1755
1760
1840
1990
1915
1920

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6(a))
Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6(b))
Notes receivable, net (Notes 6(d)(v) and 7)
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 6(d)(v) and 7)
Other receivables (Notes 6(e) and 7)
Inventories (Note 6(f))
Prepayments
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets:

Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income(Note 6(c))

Investments accounted for using the equity method (Notes 6(g) and 7)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 6(h) and 7)

Right-of-use assets (Note 6(i))

Investment property (Notes 6(h) and (j))

Deferred tax assets (Note 6(s))

Other non-current assets

Prepayments for equipment

Refundable deposits (Note 8)

Total non-current assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to the parent company only financial statements.

(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Amount % Amount % Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
$ 818,176 2 375,583 1 2100 Short-term loans (Note 6(k))
157,030 - 162,959 - 2111 Short-term notes and bills payable (Note 6(1))
288,493 1 122,826 - 2120 Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6(b))
2,576,598 7 3,749,844 2130 Current contract liabilities (Note 6(v))
5,938 - 720,125 2150 Notes payable (Note 7)
10,327,136 28 12,069,244 29 2170 Accounts payable(Note 6(d))
133,762 - 171,132 1 2200 Other payables (Notes 6(q) and 7)
101 - 15954 - 2230 Current tax liabilities
14,307,234 38 17,387,667 _42 2280 Current lease liabilities((Note 6(0))
2321 Bonds payable, current portion(Note 6(n))
457,230 1 456,328 1 2300 Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
8,019,079 22 8321261 20 Non-Current liabilities:
11,960,389 32 12,638,857 31 2500 Non-current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
164,452 145210 - (Notes 6(b) and (n))
2,000,835 6 2,010,800 5 2530 Bonds payable(Note 6(n))
97,031 - 137,258 - 2540 Long-term loans (Note 6(m))
68,112 - 103,740 2570 Deferred tax liabilities (Note 6(s))
28,287 - 50,322 - 2580 Non-current lease liabilities (Note 6(0))
156,414 _ - 185,045 _ 1 2640 Non-current defined benefit liability, net (Note 6(r))
22,951,829 62 24,048,821 58 2645 Guarantee deposits received(Note 7)
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity (Note 6(t))
3100 Capital stock
3200 Capital surplus
Retained earnings:
3310 Legal reserve
3320 Special reserve
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings
Total retained earnings
3400 Other equity interest

Total equity

$__ 37.259.063 100 41,436,488 1

>
<

Total liabilities and equity

ol
—_
(o)}

December 31,2020 December 31, 2019
Amount % Amount %
$ 2,005,457 5 6,964,718 18
339,725 1 559,831 1
- - 6,778 -
788,368 2 530,262 1
60,824 - 61,085 -
1,504,750 4 1,359,036 3
1,637,029 4 1,183,124 3
590,560 2 349,967 1
23,939 - 18,574 -
708,893 2 - -
8499 _ - 8846 _ -
7,668,044 20 11,042,221 _27
- - 13,000 -
- - 1,935,021 5
1,200,000 3 3,100,000 8
172,119 1 170,200 -
142,434 - 127,060 -
558,825 2 836,234 2
14334 _ - 13,260 _ -
2,087,712 _ 6 6,194,775 _15
9,755,756 _26 17,236,996 _42
10,587,599 28 10,040,606 24
7,287,920 20 6,592,236 16
3,775,123 10 3,619,075 9
706,221 2 647,025 1
5,968,807 _16 4,006,772 _10
10,450,151 _28 8,272,872 20
(822,363) _(2) (706,222) _(2)
27,503,307 _74 24,199.492 58
$_ 37,259,063 1:00 41,436,488 g




(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Share)

For the years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Amount % __ Amount %
4000 Operating revenue (Notes 6(v) and 7) $ 34,263,435 100 35,247,359 100
5000 Operating costs (Notes 6(f)(r) and 7)) 28,201,274 _ 82 31,129,766 _ 88
5900 Gross profit from operations 6,062,161 18 4,117,593 12
5910 Less: Unrealized profit (loss) from sales (Note 7) 82,953 - 25,818 -
5920 Add: Realized profit (loss) on from sales (Note 7) 25818 _ - 43,741 _ -
5950 Gross profit, net 6,005,026 _ 18 4,135,516 _ 12
6000 Operating expenses:
6100 Selling expenses(Notes 6(r)(w) and 7) 707,466 2 798,960 3
6200 Administrative expenses (Notes 6(r)(w) and 7) 977,335 3 786,658 2
6450 Expected credit loss (Note 6(d)) 52,785 _ - 373 -
6500 Total operating expenses 1,737,586 __ 5 1,585.991 _ 5
6900 Operating income 4,267,440 13 2,549,525 7
7000 Non-operating income and expenses:
7010 Other income (Notes 6(x) and 7) 79,000 - 78,199 -
7100 Interest income (Notes 6(x) and 7) 3430 - 14,715 -
7020 Other gains and losses, net (Notes 6(n) and (x)) 110,185 - 128,895 -
7050 Finance costs, net (Note 6(x)) (81,333) - (147,539) -
7060 Share of (loss) profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the equity method, net(Note 6(g)) 10,423 _ - (534.405) _ (1)
Total non-operating income and expenses 121,705 _ - (460,135) _ (1)
7900 Income before income tax 4,389,145 13 2,089,390 6
7950 Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(s)) 827.081 _ 2 523331 _ 2
Net income 3,562,064 _ 11 1,566,059 _ 4
8300 Other comprehensive income:
8310 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
8311 Losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (574) - (21,962) -
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other 11,262 - 66,244 -
comprehensive income
8330 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the equity method, 2,670 - 447) -
components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
8349 Less : income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that may not be reclassified to atsy - 4392) -
profit or loss (Note 6 (s))
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 13473 _ - 48227 _ -
8360 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements (156,771) (1) (119,712) -
8399 Less : income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or - - - -
loss
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (156,771) _ (1) (119,712) -
8300 Other comprehensive income (143.298) _ (1) (71,485) -
8500 Total comprehensive income for the period $__ 3.418,766 _10 1,494.574 _ 4
9750 Basic earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 6(u)) $ 3.52 1.56
9850 Diluted earnings per share(in dollars) (Note 6(u)) S 3.27 1.44

See accompanying notes to the parent company only financial statements. 217



Balance at January 1, 2019
Net income for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Legal reserve appropriated
Special reserve appropriated
Cash dividends of ordinary share
Other changes in capital surplus:
Capital reduction of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2019

Net income for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:

Legal reserve appropriated

Special reserve appropriated

Cash dividends of ordinary share
Conversion of convertible bonds
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
Capital reduction of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Balance as of December 31, 2020

Capital stock

(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION

Certificate of
entitlement to

Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Retained earnings

Total other equity interest

Exchange
differences on

Unrealized gains
(losses) on
financial assets
measured at

new shares translation of fair value
from Unappropriated foreign through other Total other
Ordinary convertible Total capital retained Total retained financial comprehensive equity
shares bond stock Capital surplus Legal reserve  Special reserve earnings earnings income interest Total equity

N 10,040,606 - 10,040,606 6,592,236 3,530,282 149,309 4,237,676 7,917,267 (664,948) 17,924 (647,024) 23,903,085
- - - - - - 1,566,059 1,566,059 - - - 1,566,059
- - - - - - (17,763) (17.763) (119,712) 65,990 (53,722) (71.485)
- - - - - - 1,548,296 1,548.296 (119,712) 65,990 (53,722) 1,494,574

- - - - 88,793 - (88,793) - - - - -

- - - - - 497,716 (497,716) - - - - -
- - - - - - (1,204,873) (1,204,873) - - - (1,204,873)
- - - - - - (19,796) (19,796) - 26,502 26,502 6,706

- - - - - - 31,978 31,978 - (31.978) (31,978) -
10,040,606 - 10,040,606 6,592,236 3,619,075 647,025 4,006,772 8,272,872 (784,660) 78,438 (706,222) 24,199,492
- - - - - - 3,562,064 3,562,064 - - - 3,562,064
- - - - - - (539) (539) (156,771) 14,012 (142,759) (143,298)
- - - - - - 3,561,525 3.561.525 (156,771) 14.012 (142,759) 3.418.766

- - - - 156,048 - (156,048) - - - - -

- - - - - 59,196 (59,196) - - - - -
- - - - - - (1,355,482) (1,355,482) - - - (1,355,482)
127,296 419,697 546,993 695,434 - - - - - - - 1,242,427
- - - 250 - - - - - - - 250
- - - - - - (28,764) (28.764) 63 26.555 26,618 (2,146)
$, 10,167,902 419,697 10,587,599 7,287,920 3,775,123 706,221 5,968,807 10,450,151 (941,368) 119,005 (822,363) 27,503,307
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2020 2019
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before income tax $ 4,389,145 2,089,390
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss:
Depreciation expense 989,335 992,984
Amortization expense 35,628 36,328
Expected credit loss 52,785 373
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (71,666) (41,566)
Interest expense 81,333 147,539
Interest income (3,430) (14,715)
Dividend income (18,613) (23,142)
Share of (gain) loss of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the equity method (10,423) 534,405
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 858 1,524
Loss on disposal of investment properties 43 -
Loss on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method - 307
Unrealized profit from sales 82,953 25818
Realized profit from sales (25,818) (43,741)
Unrealized foreign currency exchange loss 3,278 21,192
Total adjustments to reconcile profit or loss 1,116,263 1,637,306
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss 56,617 -
(Increase) decrease in notes receivable (165,667) 16,222
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 265,545 (92,188)
Decrease in accounts receivable from related parties 854,916 1,251,079
Decrease (increase) in other receivable 14,127 (633,892)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 1,742,108 (605,235)
Decrease in prepayments 45,373 111,484
Decrease in other current assets 15,853 81,939
Increase in other operating assets - (4.209)
Total changes in operating assets 2,828,872 125,200
Increase in contract liabilities 264,605 201,252
Decrease in notes payable (261) (99,052)
Decrease in notes payable to related parties - (640)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 131,393 (52,063)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable to related parties 14,321 (1,721)
Increase in other payables 447,795 55,807
(Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (347) 8,846
Decrease in net defined benefit liability (277,984) (31,951)
Total changes in operating liabilities 579,522 80,478
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,408,394 205,678
Total adjustments 4,524,657 1,842,984
Cash inflow generated from operations 8,913,802 3,932,374
Interest received 3,430 13,344
Dividends received 86,462 148,277
Interest paid (67,105) (136,638)
Income taxes paid (544.,228) (356,090)
Net cash flows from operating activities 8,392,361 3,601,267
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (3,708) (13,960)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 137,164
Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 13,688 51,332
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (39,000) (15,000)
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method 71,005 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (220,866) (303,580)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 668
Increase in refundable deposits 28,631 183
Decrease in other receivables 702,409 -
Acquisition of investment properties (14,725) (149,777)
Increase in prepayments for equipment and land (21,555) (35,573)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 515.879 (328,543)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term loans 43,294,031 61,160,027
Decrease in short-term loans (48,253,292) (62,483,396)
Increase in short-term notes and bills payable 2,492,000 6,090,000
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable (2,712,000) (6,640,000)
Proceeds from long-term loans 2,700,000 1,850,000
Repayments of long-term loans (4,600,000) (1,950,000)
Increase in guarantee deposits received 1,074 2,595
Payment of lease liabilities (28,709) (29,566)
Cash dividends paid (1.355.482) (1.204.873)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (8,462,378) (3,205,213)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (3,269) (21,192)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 442,593 46,319
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 375,583 329,264
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 818,176 375,583

See accompanying notes to the parent company only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

Tung Ho Steel Enterprise Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in May, 1962, as a company
limited by shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C The address of the
Company’s registered office is 6F., No. 9, Sec. 1, Chang An E. Rd., Taipei City, Taiwan (R.O.C.). The
Company is primarily involved in manufacturing and selling deformed bars, H-beams, and steel plates.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the financial statements

The parent company only financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2021.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted.

The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its financial statements, from January 1, 2020:

o Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”
e Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”
o Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material”

e Amendments to IFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”
(b) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual
period beginning on January 1, 2021, would not have a significant impact on its parent financial
statements:

e Amendments to [FRS 4 “Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9”

o Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39, IFRS7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2”

(Continued)
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TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Company, have been
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the

FSC:

Standards or
Interpretations

Content of amendment

Effective date per
IASB

Amendments to IAS 1
“Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current”

Amendments to [AS 1
“Disclosure of Accounting
Policies”

The amendments aim to promote consistency January 1, 2023

in applying the requirements by helping
companies determine whether, in the
statement of balance sheet, debt and other
liabilities with an uncertain settlement date
should be classified as current (due or
potentially due to be settled within one year)
or non-current.

The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt a
company might settle by converting it into
equity.

The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

e requiring companies to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies;

e clarifying that accounting policies related
to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and
as such need not be disclosed; and

e clarifying that not all accounting policies
that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves
material to a company’ s financial
statements.

January 1, 2023

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its financial position and financial performance. The results thereof will be
disclosed when the Company completes its evaluation.
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TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Company does not expect the following other new and amended standards, which have yet to be
endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17  Insurance Contracts”
Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipmentt— Proceeds before Intended Use”
Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts —Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to [FRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the accompanying financial statements is as

follows.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the reporting periods presented in

the parent company only financial statements.

(a) Statement of compliance

These parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter
referred to as the Regulations).

(b) Basis of preparation

(1)

(i)

Basis of measurement

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis,
except for the following material items in the balance sheet:

1)  Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;

2)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

3)  Net defined benefit liabilities are measured at the fair value of plan assets less the present
value of defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The financial statements are presented in New
Taiwan Dollar (NTD), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in NTD has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(Continued)
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TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

Foreign currency

(1)

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate on that date. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies
using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for that arising from
fair value through other comprehensive income non-monetary securities, which is recognized
through other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising from acquisition, are translated into the Company’ s presentation currency at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into the Company’ s presentation currency at average exchange rate. Exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Company
disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while
retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-
controlling interest. When the Company disposes of only part of an investment in an associate
of joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint
control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising from such a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(d) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non current.

(1)

(i)

The asset is expected to be realized, or sold or consumed, during the Company’s normal
operating cycle ;

The asset is held primarily for the purpose of trading ;

(Continued)
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TUNG HO STEEL ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

(iii) The asset is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date ; or

(iv) The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non current.

(i)  The liability is expected to be settled during the Company’s normal operating cycle ;
(i) The liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading ;
(ii1)) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date ; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Term deposits which meet the above definition and are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost ; fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) —equity investment ; or FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL :

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows ; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs,
notes and trade receivables, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial
assets),trade receivables and debt investments measured at FVOCI and contract assets.
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for
the following which are measured as 12-month ECL :

e Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company’ s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than one year past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating
is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ° investment grade which is
considered to be BBB- or higher per Standard & Poor’s, Baa3 or higher per Moody’s or
twA or higher per Taiwan Ratings’.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial
asset.
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data :

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer ;
e a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due ;

e the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider ;

e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
For corporate customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to
the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.
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(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

4)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible bonds
denominated in NTD that can be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder,
when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair
value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is initially recognized at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion at
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.
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On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

5)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to the location and condition ready for sale or production. The
allocation of fixed production overheads to the finished goods and work in process is based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. However, in the case where the practical capacity is
larger than the normal capacity, the allocation is based on the practical capacity. Variable production
overheads are allocated to each unit of production on the basis of the actual use of the production
facilities. Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost
of inventories is based on the monthly weighted-average cost. Net realizable value is the estimated
as the selling price in the ordinary course of business at the reporting date, less the estimated costs
until completion and selling expenses. If the inventory is reserved for a contract, its net realizable
value shall be based on the price of the contract.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities on which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies.

The Company’ s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are
recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying
amount of the investment in associates includes goodwill resulted from the acquisition less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with those of the
Company, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases. The Company recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the
investee within capital surplus, when an associate’s equity changes due to reasons other than profit
and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual significant influence.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from the transactions between the Company and an associate
are recognized only to the extent of unrelated Company’ s interests in the associate. When the
Company’ s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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The Company discontinues the use of the equity method and measures the retained interest at fair
value from the date when its investment ceases to be an associate. The difference between the fair
value of retained interest and proceeds from disposing, and the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued is recognized in profit or loss. The Company accounts
for all the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that
investment on the same basis as would have been required if the associates had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. If a gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income
would be reclassified to profit or loss ( or retained earnings) on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) ( or retained earnings) when the equity method is discontinued. If the Company's
ownership interest in an associate is reduced while it continues to apply the equity method, the
Company reclassifies the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognized in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest to profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint
venture becomes an investment in an associate, the Company continues to apply the equity method
without remeasuring the retained interest.

When the Company subscribes to additional shares in an associate at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment will differ from the
amount of the Company’s proportionate interest in the net assets of the associate. The Company
records such a difference as an adjustment to investments, with the corresponding amount charged or
credited to capital surplus. The aforesaid adjustment should first be adjusted under capital surplus. If
the capital surplus resulting from changes in ownership interest is not sufficient, the remaining
difference is debited to retained earnings. If the Company’s ownership interest is reduced due to the
additional subscription to the shares of the associate by other investors, the proportionate amount of
the gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
will be reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in subsidiaries

When preparing the parent company only financial statements, the Company accounts for the
investee companies on which it possesses control using the equity method. Net income, other
comprehensive income, and shareholder’s equity in the parent company only financial reports of the
Company should be the same with the net i